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About Our Company

Iron Mountain Incorporated (NYSE:IRM)

helps organizations around the world
reduce the costs and risks associated

with information protection and storage.

We offer comprehensive records
management and data protection
solutions, along with the expertise
and experience to address complex
information challenges such as rising
storage costs, litigation, regulatory
compliance and disaster recovery.
Founded in 1951, Iron Mountain is a
trusted partner to more than 100,000
corporate clients throughout North
America, Europe, Latin America and

Asia Pacific. For more information, visit
our website at www.ironmountain.com.

At-A-Glance (As of 12/31/2007)

Year Founded: 1951

Major Service Lines:

Records Management

Data Protection and Recovery

Information Destruction

Fortune 1000 Rank: 780

2007 Financial Results:

Revenues: $2.7 billion

OIBDA(1): $704 million

Net Income: $153 million

Facilities

Worldwide Clients

Corporate

EPS-Diluted: $076
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IRM Stock Performance

O Iron Mountain ® S&Pgoo B Russellyooo

The following graph compares the percentage
change in the cumulative total return on our

common stock to the cumulative total returns of

the &P 500 Index and the Russell 1000 Index
for the period from December 31, 2002 through
December 31, 2007. This comparison assumes an
investment of $100 on December 31, 2002 and
the reinvestment of any dividends.
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Financial Highlights

{Amounts in thousands, except per share data} 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Total Revenues $1,501,329 $1.817.589 $2.078,155 $2350342 § $2,730,035
Storage Revenues 875.035 1,043,366 : 1,181,551 1,327,169 1,499,074
Gross Margin (excluding depreciation) 54.7% v4.7% 54.9% 54.3% 53.8%
Operating Income: 304.893 344,496 386,784 407187 454,18
Operating Income as a % of Total Revenues 203% 19.0% 18.6% 17.3% 16.7%
OIBDA 435,81 508,125 573,706 615,560 704,012
O!BDA as a % of Total Revenues 29.0% 28.0% 27.6% 26.2% 25.8%
Interest Expense, net 150,468 185,749 183,584 194,958 228,503
Income from Coptinuin% Operations : :

per Share — Diluted : 043 | 0.48 LY 0.64 076
Net Income per Share — Dituted () 0.43 0.48 0.56 0.64 076

(1) Operating income before depreciation and amortization. See Item 6 on p.23 of the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K for a recanciliation of GiBDA to Net income.

{2} All per share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the three-for-two stock split effective December 29, 2006.
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2 Iron Mountain

Iron Mountain:

Delivering Expertise to Solve Complex
Information Management Challenges

Today, businesses face more
numerous and complex
information protection and

storage challenges than ever
before. Information is growing
exponentially. Every day more and
more information—both physical
and digital—is created and much
of that information is regulated. For
most companies, this information is
dispersed over many systems and
locations, and they are struggling
with the cost and complexity of
storing, protecting and managing
this crucial business asset.

Moreover, the range of business information that

is subjected to regulatory oversight increases every
day. The myriad of regulations being promulgated
adds a significant layer of complexity to managing
information. Organizations must retain and eventu-
ally destroy their information in compliance with a
growing number of stringent regulations covering
records retention, disaster recovery and personal
privacy. Mismanagement of regulated information
translates into fines, bad publicity and brand risk.

Further, the focus on information management prac-
tices during litigation greatly increases the costs and
liability exposures for a company. An organization’s
records management program moves to the fore-
front and can greatly impact the cost of discovery
and the eventual outcomes of litigation.

The Iron Mountain Mission

To provide superior value to our
customers by:

* Protecting and storing their
information as if it were our own

* Earning their trust with service
that is reliable and responsive

¢ Providing comprehensive
information protection and
storage solutions to reduce our
customers' costs and risks




2007 Annual Report

3

The Iron Mountain Vision

To protect and store
the world's information

Finally, businesses need to protect their information
from disaster. In an increasingly insecure world, with
24x7 business environments and absolute reliance

on information, companies must ensure their data is
always available and accessible. The problem is partic-
ularly challenging when you consider that 6o percent
of corporate information is distributed and outside the
customary protection of a data center environment.

Companies turn to Iron Mountain because we are
focused on reducing the costs and risks of protecting,
storing and managing their physical and digital
records and information. We deliver our unique
expertise through a comprehensive set of solutions in
records management, data protection and recovery,
and information destruction services. We help all
customers reduce costs while improving the manage-

ment of and access to their information, and we assist
larger companies reduce risks resulting from informa-
tion growth and an increasingly complex regulatory
environment. Delivering globaily consistent services
that are locally implemented, our expertise spans our
people, process and technology.

Trusted for more than 56 years, we serve more than
100,000 organizations of all sizes and industries
including more than 3% of the Fortune 500. Some
of the largest industries we serve include financial
services, healthcare, law firms, retail, insurance, phar-
maceutical, technology and government.

Iron Mountain Solution Set

Compliant Information
Destructicn

Disaster Recovery
Support Services

Iron
Mountain

Domain Name Management

Compliant Records Management
& Consulting Services

Fulfillment Services

‘® Health Information
. Management Services

Document Management Solutions
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In 2007, we delivered strong financial
performance while investing to
advance our strategic agenda.

To Our Shareholders:

oo7 was an excellent year for Iron Mountain.

We delivered consistent and strong financial
performance while advancing our strategy through a
focused investment program. We continue to improve
our operational efficiency using those gains to invest
against our strategic objectives. Our markets are
expanding as the primary driver, information growth,
remains unchecked and our services are becoming
more relevant to more customers. We continue
to execute according to our long held three phase
strategy for building shareholder value through global
leadership in the information protection and storage
marketplace. 2007 was a high investment year on all
fronts. And even though we saw a spike in 2007 due
to three strategic deals, the focus of our investments
is shifting away from acquisition spending to funding
internal growth, product development and infrastruc-
ture enhancements. We are well positioned to deliver
against our long-term financial goals of driving strong
revenue and operating income before depreciation
and amortization (OIBDA) growth and attractive
returns on invested capital.

C. Richard Reese

Chairmon and Chief
Executive Officer

Iron Mountain Incorparated

This annual report has a change in format fram the
past. We have eliminated the separate letter from
our CFO discussing the financial and operational
results and integrated those topics inte my letter.
My letter will discuss our strategy, our operational
results by major business segment and our recent
announcement of my impending role change and
the appointment of Bob Brennan as the next CEO
of Iron Mountain.
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Strategy to Grow Shareholder Value

e have built a market leader that operates
Win large, expanding markets with significant
opportunities to create shareholder value through
focused investment. Although we have the obliga-
tion to you and ourselves to gain as much efficiency
from our existing businesses as is prudent without
damaging them, our largest opportunities for invest-
ment are in growth. Managed properly, these invest-
ments will allow us to increase shareholder value
for a long time to come. Therefore, although we will
continue to invest for efficiency, we are biased to
invest for growth. That bias along with purposeful
changes in business mix towards less capital inten-
sive, lower margin services challenge our ability to
steadily increase consolidated margins. However,
we will manage our agenda over the medium-term

to balance the impact of growth versus efficiency
investments to capture the long term potential we
see while growing profitability within our targeted
ranges. This is the balance of judgment that we
apply as we operate in this third, or “capitalization”
phase of our strategy.

In 1996 Iron Mountain became a public company,
raising equity and debt capital to lead the consolida-
tion of the physical records management industry.
We then embarked on a long-term growth plan to
build market leadership by extending our strategic
relevance through service line and global expan-
sion. This growth plan has been carefully sequenced
into three strategic phases. The first phase involved
establishing leadership and broad market access

76 Consecutive Quarters of Storage Revenue Growth
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Document Management Solutions (DMS)

We seek to develop solutions that solve our
customers’ document management challenges
by integrating the management of physical
records, document conversion and digital
storage. DMS complements our core physical
and digital service offerings, leveraging our
global footprint and our existing customer
relationships. We differentiate our offerings by
providing solutions that integrate and extend
our existing portfolio of products and services.

in our core businesses: records management and
data protection, primarily through acquisitions. In
the second phase we invested in building a world-
class selling organization to aggressively sell new
customers, converting previously unvended demand.
Today, even though different parts of our business
are in different stages of evolution along our three-
phase strategy, as an enterprise, we have transi-
tioned to the third phase of our growth plan. We call
this the capitalization phase, a phase we expect will
run for a long time to come. In this phase, we seek
to expand our relationships with our customers to
continue solving their increasingly complex informa-
tion protection and storage problems. Doing this
well means expanding our service offerings globally
while maximizing our solid core businesses. With
disciplined execution of this strategy, we continue to
build what we believe to be a very durable business.

In the capitalization phase, our financial focus is on
driving strong revenue and CIBDA growth (primarily
from new and existing customers, rather than
through acquisitions) and increasing capital efficiency
to improve returns on invested capital. To be clear,
the capitalization phase of our long-term strategy is
about driving growth and maximizing our potential,
not about harvesting mature businesses.

To capitalize on our potential, we are focused on four
key strategies:

+ Maximize our core physical businesses
« Expand our globai services platform
+ Distribute new services, and

+ Drive leadership in our targeted digital
market segments

Our approach to maximizing our core is focused

on expanding our physical storage business, which
is the foundation of iron Mountain. We intend to
build on 76 consecutive quarters of storage revenue
growth to strengthen the trust that is at the center
of our customer relationships through continued
investments in the protection of our customers’
information and increased consistency of service.
We expect to continue to drive productivity in our
core physical service lines, to build on our strong
returns in this business and support expansion

of our business model. In response to customers’
evolving needs, we continue to fortify the security
surrounding their information assets, even though
we are the industry ieaders on this front. This is what
market leadership is all about—continually raising
the bar on yourself. In 2007, we enhanced our trans-
portation services with additional security alterna-
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Discovery Services

Our Discovery Services o = e
comprise a set of individual Bl Om. B ) T -

services and bundled (A o] B] 9] = ] el
solutions designed to i o
address the legal discovery I e ——
and corporate governance | fmes ez
needs of our customers. I
Our eDiscovery services, oo it i

principally embodied by the
Stratify® Legal Discovery
application, help our
customers identify, organize,
analyze and review relevant e Y
or responsive information b l (
from within the universe of

electronic data generated during the normal course of business.

Our consolidated suite of physical and digital discovery services

is designed to deliver a secure, end-to-end chain of custody, while
reducing costs and risks for our customers.
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Achieving our Financial Objectives

Over the next five years, we
are targeting:

* 8% to 13% compound annual
revenue growth

¢ 10% to 15% compound annual
OIBDA growth, and

* 150 basis points of improvement
in capital expenditures as a
percent of revenues

which would result in 15% to
20% returns on incrementally
invested capital.

tives, invested in chain of custody technologies and
further built out our security organization. We will
continue to invest in these and other security-related
initiatives to ensure that our customers’ information
assets have the highest level of protection available.
At Iron Mountain, security is job one,

We leverage our success in our core businesses by
establishing those same services in important inter-
national markets, benefiting our customers who
are already in these markets and setting the stage
for future long-term growth. Since 1996, we have
established a physical footprint that spans 37 coun-
tries on five continents. We believe we can build the
same high return business model in international
markets over time, as we have demonstrated in
more established markets such as the U.S., the UK.
and Latin America.

We do business with most major global corpora-
tions and have established ourselves as a trusted
service provider. This gives us an excellent platform
to introduce new services. Over the past two years,
we have introduced ten new services including
Document Management Solutions and eDiscovery,
These services, along with those under development,
share certain characteristics. They either drive more

storage or enhance value from the storage relation-
ships we currently have. We also expect new services
to leverage and extend the Iron Mountain brand,
which is built on trust. Most importantly, we expect
to infuse the expertise that we have built over a

tong history of solving our customers’ information
protection and storage problems into our digital
service offerings. We are proud that the services we
offer, and plan to offer, are of vital importance to our
customers and that we have their ongoing permis-
sion to solve their physical and digital information
management problems around the world.

These strategies will position lran Mountain to
capture the enormous growth potential that is
being driven by information growth and increasing
regulation and risk management concerns. The
need for businesses to consolidate their information
protection and storage solutions in order to drive
consistency throughout their enterprises, increase
compliance with changing regulations and ultimately
to reduce costs, is accelerating globally based upon
changes to the legal and business environments.

In the U.S., changes to the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure (specifically, Rule 26), which govern the
production of evidence in most federal court cases,
for the first time makes the efficient management
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We remain committed to two principles that bear
repeating: (1) invest our shareholders’ money as
if it were our own, and (2) do what is right for our

customers and employees.

principles

of electronic records a requirement, not an cption.
This has a significant impact on how our customers
manage their electronic records and is accelerating
the development of their eRecords retention and
archiving pragrams. This is also increasing demand
for eDiscovery services, a need we addressed with
our Stratify acquisition.

We believe our business strategies will also position
us to take advantage of the tremendous growth
opportunity associated with the explosion of infor-
mation being created. Industry analysts suggest
that the amount of information created, captured
and replicated will increase many-fold over the
next several years. This makes the job of managing
forward storage capacity nearly impossible for our
customers. It underscores the need for comprehen-
sive information protection and storage programs
that incorporate end-to-end records management
solutions as a means to control the rapidly growing
volumnes of infgrmation produced. We deliver that
capability and expertise.

We remain fortunate to operate in large, trend-
favored markets that afford us the opportunity to
reinvest our discretionary free cash flow at a fair
return on capital. We remain committed to two prin-

ciples that bear repeating: (1} invest our shareholders’
meney as if it were our own, and {2} do what is right
for our customers and employees. As always, we will
continue to invest your money with the long-term
goal of increasing OIBDA in relation to total capital
invested. Our long-term financial objectives reflect
our bias for growth and our commitment to deliver
attractive incremental returns as we grow. Over the
next five years, we are targeting compound annual
revenue growth of 8% to 13%, compound annual
OIBDA growth of 10% to 15%, and a 150 basis point
improvement in capital expenditures as a percent
of revenues. Achieving these targets would result in
15% to 20% returns on incrementally invested capital.
We continue to target OIBDA margin improvement
across our individual business segments, and that
improvement is incorporated into these objec-

tives. These objectives also reflect strong targeted
growth in attractive service offerings, which require
less capital and generate relatively lower margins
than our core physical storage business. We are
committed to balancing these factors to maximize
our business opportunity while delivering consis-
tently strong financial performance, within our
stated target ranges. This reflects our focus on oper-
ational and financial discipline.
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Revenue growth remained
strong as total revenues
increased by $380 million,
or 16%, to $2.73 billion.

2007 Operating Review

ith the strategy for long-term success

defined, we will review our results for 2007.
We performed as we expected and as we projected
in 2007. We met or exceeded all of our targets for
revenues, OIBDA and internal growth. Revenue
growth remained strong as total revenues increased
by $380 million, or 16%, supported by strong internal
growth of 10%. CIBDA increased 14% to $704 million,
and earnings per share grew 18% to $0.76 per diluted
share. Finally, capital spending as a percent of reve-
nues was 15.2%, down 60 basis points, in comparison
to the prior year.

North American Physical Business Segment

Our North American Physical Business Segment
continues to strengthen, both financially and
operationally. This segment, which represents 69%
of our ¢onsolidated revenues, is comprised of the
operating units for physical records management,
data protection, secure shredding, fulfillment and
consulting services in the U.S. and Canada, along

with all of our corporate overhead functions.

This segment produced revenue growth of 13%
supported by solid internal growth of 9% and the
impact of acquisitions completed in 2007, most
notably ArchivesOne, Inc. and RMS Services — USA,
Inc. Service revenues were a key driver of overall
revenue growth, supported by strong gains in
secure shredding services, special projects and recy-
cled paper revenues coming from both our secure
shredding and records storage operations. Segment
contribution also grew 13%, while we improved
capital efficiency. Capital spending as a percent of
segment revenues decreased to 14.5% from 15.8%
for 2006. These gains are derived, in part, from
strong growth in less capital intensive services,
such as DMS, which are becoming larger contribu-
tors to segment growth. This reftects successful
execution against our long-term strategy to capi-
talize on our custamer relationships and expand our
service offerings.




2007 Annual Report

n

Iron Mountain’s Global Footprint

O Physical Business Solutions
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Digital Solutions Deployed :

75 Countries

6 Continents

International Physical Business Segment

In line with a key element of our strategy, we
remained active in expanding our global footprint in
2007. We invested in significant opportunities we saw
to export our attractive business model to important
international markets. Our International Physical
Business Segment represents 25% of our consolidated
revenues, or $677 million. This segment contains the
operations of our core physical services businesses
outside of the U.S. and Canada. Revenue growth in
this segment was 25% in 2007, comprised of solid
internal growth, incremental revenues from acquisi-
tions and favorable foreign currency changes.

We continue to leverage acquisitions and joint venture
investments to expand our global platform. Most of
our international acquisition activity in 2007 was in
Europe as we invested in footprint expansion to fill

in national markets and in new country markets to
expand the reach and market opportunity for our core
services. We enhanced our national secure shredding
platform in the U.K. and entered new markets through

joint ventures in Turkey and Greece. Our international
expansian strategy employs joint ventures with local
partners to increase the speed and reduce the risk of
rapid international expansion. We currently own g8%
of our international revenues and have a minority
interest fiability of $g9 million on our balance sheet.
Completing our geographic expansion, including

the eventual buyout of our existing JV partners, is
expected to require significantly less capital than we
have invested to date in our international operations.

We are also investing to drive strong internat growth
as we expand our international business. Internal
growth improved to 12%, up from 8% in 2006, due
to strong revenue performance in Latin America and
Asia Pacific, and significant special project revenue
growth in Europe. As we have often said, the public
sector business in the UK. is a good business but the
revenue streams are very lumpy, a characteristic not
shared by the majority of our revenue streams. The
U.K. public sector revenue includes projects that are
usually large and difficult to forecast. For example,
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Global Expansion: Our International
Physical Business Segment represents
25% of our consolidated revenues, or
$677 million, and grew 25% in 2007.

We currently own 98% of our
international revenues and have a
minority interest liability of $9 million
on our balance sheet,

we had two such projects that generated about $25
million of revenues in 2007. Both of those projects
are ending and will only generate $10 million in 2008.

Our businesses in the UK. and Latin America are
established market leaders that have attained scale
in their local operations and thereby generate attrac-
tive returns. Our operations in continental Europe
and Asia Pacific require investment to build scale,
which, over time, will allow them to produce attrac-
tive returns. Expanding our predictable, recurring
revenue model in international markets requires
investment to build management, sales and oper-
ating infrastructure. As a result of these investments
combined with start-up losses inherent in our new
joint ventures, in promising markets such as Russia,
we expect lower profitability in our International
Physical Business Segment than in the more devel-
oped North American Physical Business Segment, as
we build our global platform.

These factors constrained segment contribution
growth to 15% and contributed to an increase in
capital spending as a percent of segment revenues
from 16.0% in 2006 to 17.7% in 2007. We continue to
target strong financial gains and improved returns

in our International segment as we build scale in
these markets.

Worldwide Digital Business Segment

Our third business segment, Worldwide Digital, deliv-
ered strong financial performance in 2007. Revenues
grew at strong rates, in line with our goals, and
segment contribution more than doubled as we saw
the benefits of scale in these high growth markets.

Iron Mountain Digital represents 6% of our revenues.
This business is organized to cperate on a global
basis and has operations and sales offices in 39
countries that have extended its technology solu-
tions deployments to 75 countries. This business

is comprised of four core service lines: digital data
protection, archiving, intellectual property manage-
ment (IPM}) and eDiscovery. Our digital data protec-
tion services provide online backup and recovery
solutions for personal computers and remote
servers using our praprietary, patented technolo-
gies. Our Digital Records Center is a service that
provides secure, legally compliant and cost-effective,
long-term archiving of electronic records, including
emails, imaged documents and other online assets.
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In our IPM business, we serve as a trusted, neutral
third party providing technology escrow services to
protect and manage source code, web domain name
intellectual property rights and other proprietary
information. eDiscovery services allow our customers
to “know what they have” and access it as needed,
generally in connection with litigation. We believe
this to be a large, expanding market segment, thus
we fortified our position in eDiscovery through the
December 2007 acquisition of Stratify, Inc., a leader in
this business. Stratify® eDiscovery services allow us to
help our customers collect, prepare, process, review
and produce data that may exist in either paper or
digital form in response to internal investigations,
litigation or regulatory requests. Managing discovery
requirements in an efficient and cost-effective way
has become an acute problem for the Global 2000
and our acquisition of Stratify will allow us to solve
this problem in a highly effective manner. Building
out Iron Mountain Digital is a natural extension of
our physical businesses. We seek to capture, protect,
store and bring usefulness to our customers’ informa-
tion on a worldwide basis, regardless of format.

Revenues in the Worldwide Digital Business Segment
grew 17% overall, and 14% internally, to $163 million
in 2007. Storage revenues, which represent more
than 75% of this segment’s revenues, had an internal
growth rate of 23% for the year. From a service
perspective, we have seen more customers favoring
the annuity-based hosted service model of online
backup, which affected growth in license sales in
2007. This is a trend that favors our business model
over the long term as it builds the recurring revenue
base. An impartant financial characteristic shared

by our physical and digital businesses is the high
percentage of their respective revenues that are
recurring. In 2007, the digital business increased its
recurring revenues to 87% of total revenues from
83% in 2006.

As we build our digital business, we are driving
strong contribution gains and improved returns. In
2007, scale was a primary driver of this segment’s
143% year-over-year growth in contribution and
improved capital efficiency, which decreased to12.9%
of segment revenues from 14.5% in 2006. Despite its
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early stage of development, the Worldwide Digital
Business Segment also contributed positively to cash
flows in 2007, as segment contribution exceeded
segment capital expenditures by $5 million. We
expect revenue and contribution growth to remain
strong over time in this segment as we continue to
expand, both internally and through acquisitions,
and realize the benefits from increasing scale in our
digital business.

Capital Investment

We are fortunate to have a range of attractive
opportunities for investment in our business. In
2007, we invested $884 million of capital in projects
to maintain current operations, support internal
growth, develop new products, improve business
operations, and acquire 20 new businesses. The mix
of capital investments is shifting. From 1996, when
we raised money through our initial public offering
of stock to roll up our industry, through 2000, 84%
of the capital we invested in the business went to
acquisitions. In the last five years, as we stressed
the internal growth phase of our strategy, that has
dropped to 49%, even after spending nearly $500
million on acquisitions in 2007. The future will likely
see a continuation of investment trending away
from acquisitions and toward internal growth,
driving productivity, bolstering infrastructure and
developing new products and services. This is all
meant to drive future profitability and build a
stronger platform for a substantially larger business.

To support value creating investments in our busi-
ness, we remain committed to a leveraged business
model. The highly predictable cash flows derived
from our recurring revenue model allow us to
comfortably support significant financial leverage.
Our business requires considerable capital invest-
ment in real estate, racking systems and IT storage
systems for increased capacity to support the
growth of both physical and digital storage revenues,
which represent 55% of our consolidated revenue
stream and are the underlying source for almost all
of our services revenues. We believe that prudent
financial leverage applied to attractive return assets
lowers our overall cost of capital and drives return on
shareholder equity. Our consolidated leverage ratio
at the end of 2007, as defined in our most restrictive
lending covenant, was approximately 4.5 times. We
remain committed to maintaining prudent ieverage
and will seek to keep our leverage ratio within a
target range of four to five times, the range within
which we have comfortably operated for many years.
The bond markets have come to appreciate the
stability of the cash flows in our business driven by

a highly predictable recurring revenue stream. As of
year-end, we had approximately $500 million of cash
and borrowing capacity available under our senior
credit facility.

We intend to strengthen our cash generation
capacity as we grow. In 2007, we generated $148
million of free cash flow before discretionary invest-
ments in acquisitions and real estate (FCF), after
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From 1996, when we raised money through
our initial public offering of stock to roll up our
industry, through 2000, 84% of the capital we
invested in the business went to acquisitions.

In the last five years, as we stressed the
internal growth phase of our strategy, that has
dropped to 49%, even after spending nearly
$500 million on acquisitions in 2007.

funding 10% internal growth and our investment
agenda. FCF' is defined as cash flows from operating
activities less net capital expenditures, excluding real
estate, and customer acquisition costs. Included in
that $148 million is $33 million of insurance proceeds
related to the 2006 fire in one of our facilities in
London, England and a $28 million cash flow benefit
related to our year end capex accrual. Compared on
the same basis, FCF for 2007 was $115 million versus
$48 million in 2006.

We took significant strides in 2007 to strengthen
our financing capacity and position us weill for our
continued global expansion, As we continue to grow
and expand geographically, financing our business
on a global basis becomes increasingly complex.
Qur treasury group spent much of 2006 and 2007
focused on financing strategies that further our
goal of ensuring liquidity over the long-term, while
mitigating the risks of foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations, all in a tax efficient manner. In the
first quarter of 2007, we successfully completed the
sale of €225 million of 6-3/4% senior subardinated
notes due 2018, priced to yield 6-7/8%, and Canadian
$175 million of 7-1/2% senior subordinated notes due
2017. These transactions provide us with natural
currency hedges against our long-term Eurcpean
and Canadian investments. They are also consistent
with our strategy to keep our debt portfolio long
and fixed, thus matching our liabilities appropriately
with our assets and the highly recurring and predict-
able returns they generate. We also refinanced our

senior credit facilities in April 2007, consolidating
our domestic and international revolving credit
facilities into a single global facility with multiple
foreign currency tranches. In Naovember, 2007, we
exercised the accordion feature under our senior
credit facility which allowed us to expand our senior
term debt and revolving credit facility on terms
generally consistent with those received in April. In
late 2006, as part of our global treasury program,
we established our international treasury center in
Switzerland to centralize our international treasury
function and to serve as our in-house bank for our
European operations and eventually our cther inter-
national subsidiaries with the exception of Canada.
These strategies have resulted in increased financing
flexibility, better alignment with our growing global
footprint and lower tax costs.

As we grow, and maintain an appropriately levered
capital structure, we expect to drive substantial cash
generation capacity. As we discussed at our Investor
Day last October, if we perform within the target
ranges we have established for revenue and OIBDA
growth while maintaining leverage, over the next
five years we believe we should generate between
%19 billion and $2.7 billion of discretionary free cash
flow for investments in real estate, acquisitions and
potentially returning cash to shareholders.

Overall, we feel we are well positioned to both deliver
against our financial goals and capture the highly
attractive growth opportunities in our business.

‘A reconciliation of FCF to the nearest GAAP measure is available at the Investor Relations page of our web site at www.ironmountain.com,
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Organizational Strength

ne of the areas that gives me confidence in
Oour ability to continue to deliver against our
strategy is the strength of our organization. We
are fortunate to have more than 20,000 dedicated
Mountaineers worldwide. The knowledge and
loyalty of our employees is core to us realizing our
potential. | appreciate their dedication to serving our
customers and we will continue to reward them for
their performance. This organization of dedicated
individuals thrives because of the leadership that
our management team provides. For several years
we have focused on identifying individuals both
internally and externally to create the right mix of
company experience and specialized knowledge
required to lead us to the next level of success
through continued growth. This approach was
integral to our succession planning and cruciat to a
company such as ours, one where a few individuals
held key roles for such a long time. Recently, we
reached another milestone in our plan.

On February 28, 2008, we announced that effec-
tive in June, | will step down as the Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ) of lron Mountain and take a new full

time role as Executive Chairman. Bob Brennan, our
current President and Chief Operating Officer {COO),
will succeed me as CEO of Iron Mountain. Bob joined
us when we acquired Connected Corporation, where
he was their CEQ. During the past three and a half
years he has held the roles of President of our North
American physical business and then President and
COO of the enterprise on a global basis. During that
time he and | formed a relationship that allowed me
to understand his abilities and motivations and for
him to understand the important characteristics of
Iran Mountain that have made it successful. He has
proven himself to be a strong leader for our company
and is committed to enhancin,, aur culture and
driving long-term success. Bob brings skills from past
roles, particularly in technology based companies,
yet he is an insider, having learned the business from
the inside, first managing our physical businesses
and then as COO. He has all the characteristics the
Board and | were locking for in Iron Mountain's

next CEC. | am confident that Bob's appointment as
CEC will enhance our ability to pursue our strategic
agenda, while delivering consistent and strong finan-
cial performance.
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The Iron Mountain Scholarship Foundation

Individual education is the long-term way

to improve our world. With that in mind, we
established a charitable foundation, the Iron
Mountain Scholarship Foundation, in 2004,
to help our employees advance their families.
The foundation provides tuition assistance for
children of our employees to attend college.
It is intended to assist those that need extra
help to push them over the line. Awarding of
the scholarships is managed by an indepen-
dent, professional organization and awardees
are limited to children of employees that earn
below $60,000 per year. The foundation was
originally funded with commitments from
several members of our board of directors and
management team. To date we have received
over $1 million in contributions from direc-
tors, employees and investoers. On behalf of
the recipients of these scholarships and all of
the members of the Iron Mountain family, we
thank you for your generosity.

Here is what your donations have provided to
the children of our employees:

2004: o first time awards of $2,000 each

2005: 10 first time awards of $2,000 each

g renewals from 2004 of $2,000 each

2006:10 first time awards of $2,000 each

g renewals from 2005 of $2,000 each

8 renewals from 2004 of $2,000 each

2007: 10 first time awards of $2,000 each

8 renewals from 2006 of $2,000 each

7 renewals from 2005 of $2,000 each

6 renewals from 2004 of $2,000 each

For those interested in contributing, please contact Richard Reese at scholarship@ironmountain.com,
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| look forward to my new role as Executive Chairman,
Besides the normal duties as Chairman of the Board,
bwill facus my time on the future: strategy develop-
ment, new business development and new service
design. For the past few years | have not made a
major decision without Bob's counsel and | expect
that for the next few years he will not make one
without mine. Bob and | have built a great working
relationship that will result in a smooth transition and
a continuing partnership for so long as | am needed.

Iron Mountain is fortunate to have a strong and
active Board. As a group they hold a significant
financial stake in our company. The majority of these
holdings were created by investing their own cash in
Iron Mountain, not by accrual of value from options
granted to them by other shareholders. We believe
those characteristics, along with experience, good
judgment, integrity and the willingness to share
their opinions are the keys to good governance. Last
summer we welcomed a new member to our Board,
Michael Lamach. Mike is a senior vice president

and president of the Security Technology Sector at
Ingersell-Rand with deep experience running mutti-
national companies. His counsel is of particular
importance to us as we continue to broaden our
global operations. We take seriously the obligation
to build and nurture an effective board and will
continue the process of recruiting exceptional talent
to bring new perspectives and help make the future
as successful as the past.

We continue to invest in initiatives aimed at devel-
oping our frontline workforce. This group comes

from a part of our society that is under significant
pressure to respond to changes in an economy that
increasingly rewards those that have attained higher
levels of education and training. We believe that
expanded investments to help this segment of our
employees learn, and in turn, create more value for
Iron Mountain is good for them, our customers and
our shareholders. This will be an ongoing focus in
the future. On a related topic, | ask that you take
time to read the section on page 17 describing the
lron Mountain Scholarship Foundation and that you
consider making a contribution along with me to
help our dedicated employees better themselves and
their families.

We have been fortunate to attract high quality
shareholders as our partners. We appreciate your
advice and input, We will continue to communicate
with you in an open and transparent manner as we
view you as our partners.

As | look forward to my new role as Executive
Chairman, | am grateful for the wonderful oppor-
tunity | have had to this point and look forward to
many more years contributing to building this
great company.

With continued pride and enthusiasm,

20 =

C. Richard Reese
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
April 4, 2008
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References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “the Company, us”’ or “our” inciude
Iron Mountain Incorporated and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain information required in Items 10, 11', 12, 13 and 14 of Part III of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on or about June 5, 2008.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that constitute “forward-looking
statemnents” as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other
federal securities laws. These forward-looking statements concern our operations, €conomic
performance, financial condition, goals, beliefs, future growth strategies, investments objectives, plans
and current expectations. The forward-looking statements are subject to various known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors. When we use words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
“estimates” or similar expressions, we are making forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that our forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, our
expected results may not be achieved, and actual results may differ materially from our expectations.
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ from expectations include, among others:

* the cost to comply with current and future legislation, regulations and customer demands
relating to privacy issues;

* the impact of litigation that may arise in connection with 1nc1dents in which we fall to protect
our customer’s information;

+ changes in the price for our services relative to the cost of providing such services;

» changes in customer preferences and demand for our services;

» in the various digital businesses in which we are engaged, the cost of capital and technlcal
requirements, demand for our services, or competition for customers;

» our ability or inability to complete acquisitions on satisfactory terms and to mtegrate acquired
companies efficiently;

* the cost or potential liabilities associated with real estate necessary for our business;

* the performance of business partners upon whom we depend for technical assistance or
management and acquisition expertise outside the U.S,;

* changes in the political and economic environments in the countries in which our international
subsidiaries operate;

+ claims that our technology violates the intellectual property rlghts of a third party; and

+ other trends in competitive or economic conditions affecting our financial condition or results of
operations not presently comemplated

Other risks may adversely impact us, as described more fully under “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements except as statements of our present
intentions and of our present expectations, which may or may not occur, You should read these
cautionary statements as being applicable to all forward-looking statements wherever they appear.
Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to release publicly the result of any revision to
these forward-looking statements that may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readers are also urged to carefully review
and consider the various disclosures we have made in this document, as well as our other periodic
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission” or “SEC”).




PART 1
Item 1. Business.
A. Development of Business. -

We believe we are the global leader in information protection and storage services. We help
organizations around the world reduce the costs and risks associated with information protection and
storage. We offer comprehensive records management and data protectlon solutions, along with the
expertise and experience to address complex information challenges such as rising storage costs,
litigation, regulatory compliance and disaster recovery. Founded in an underground facility near
Hudson, New York in 1951, Iron Mountain is a trusted partner to more than 100,000 corporate clients
throughout North America, Europe, Latin America and Asia Pacific. We have a diversified customer
base comprised of commercial, legal, ‘banking, healthcare, accounting, insurance, entertainment and
government organizations, including more than 93% of the Fortune 1000 and more than 90% of the
FTSE 100. As of December 31, 2007, we provided services in 37 countries on five continents, employed
over 20,000 people and ‘operated over 1,000 records management facilities.

Now in our 57th year, we have experienced tremendous growth, particularly since successfully
completing the initial public offering of our common stock in February 1996. We have grown from a
business with limited product offerings and annual revenues of $104 million in 1995 into a global
enterprise providing a broad range of information protection and storage services to customers in
markets around the world with total revenues of $2.7 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Our growth between 1995 and 2000 was accomplished primarily through the acquisition of U.S.
information protection and storage services companies. In 2001, internal revenue growth exceeded
growth through acquisitions for the first time since we began our acquisition program in 1996. This has
been the case in each year since 2001 with the exception of 2004, when revenue growth from
acquisitions exceeded internal revenue growth due primarily to the acquisition of the records
management operations of Hays plc (“Hays IMS”) in July 2003. In the absence of unusual acqulsmon
activity, we expect to achieve most of our revenue growth internally in 2008 and beyond.

In 2007, our U.S. physical businesses were supplemented by two significant acquisitions:
ArchivesOne, Inc. (“ArchivesOne”) in May and RMS Services—USA, Inc. (“RMS”) in September. In
December 2007 our digital business was supplemented by the acquisition of Stratify Inc. (“Stratify™).
Prior to 2007, we completed two significant digital acquisitions: Connected Corporation (“Connected”)
in November 2004 and LiveVault Corporation (“LiveVauit”) in December 2005. We expect our digital
acquisitions will be of two primary types, those that bring us new or improved technologies to enhance
our existing technology portfolio and those that increase our market position through technology and
established revenue streams.

We expect to achieve our internal revenue growth objectives primarily through a sophisticated sales
and account management coverage model designed to drive incremental revenues by acquiring new
customer relationships and increasing business with new and existing customers by selling them our
products and services in new geographies and selling additional products and services such as secure
shredding, digital data protection, document management services and eDiscovery services. These
selling efforts will be augmented and supported by an expanded marketing program, which includes
product management as a core discipline. We are also developing an extensive worldwide network of
channel partners through which we are selling a wide array of technology solutions, prlmarlly our
digital data protection and recovery products and services.




B. Description of Business.
Overview

Our information protection and storage services can be broadly divided into three major service
categories: records management, data protection and recovery, and information destruction. We offer
both physical services and technology solutions in each of these categories. Media formats can be
broadly divided into physical and electronic records. We define physical records to include paper
documents, as well as all other non-electronic media such as microfilm and microfiche, master audio
and videotapes, film, X-rays and blueprints. Electronic records include various forms of magnetic media
such as computer tapes and hard drives and optical disks. '

Our physical records management services include: records management program.development and
implementation based on best-practices to help customers comply with specific regulatory requirements,
implementation of policy-based programs that feature secure, cost-effective storage for all major media,
including paper (which is the dominant form of records storage), flexible retrieval access and retention
management. Qur technology-based records management services are comprised primarily of digital
archiving and related services for secure, legally compliant and cost-effective long-term archiving of
electronic records. Within the records management services category, we have developed specialized
services for vital records and regulated industries such as healthcare; energy and financial services.

Our physical data protection & recovery services include disaster preparedness, planning, support
and secure, off-site vaulting of data backup media for fast and efficient data recovery in the event of a
disaster, human error or virus. Qur technology-based data protection & recovery services include online
backup and recovery solutions (also known as electronic vaulting) for desktop and laptop computers
and remote servers. Additionally, we serve as a trusted, neutral third party and offer technology escrow
services to protect and manage source code and other proprietary information. '

Our information destruction services are comprised almost exclusively of secure shredding services.
Secure shredding services complete the life cycle of a record and involve the shredding of sensitive
documents in a way that ensures privacy and a secure chain of custody for the records. These services
typically include either the scheduled pick-up of loose office records which customers accumulate in
specially designed secure containers we provide or the shredding of documents stored in records
facilities upon the expiration of their scheduled retention periods. Our technology-based information
destruction services include DataDefense, which provides automatic, intelligent encryption of sensitive
PC data and, when behaviors that are inconsistent with authorized use are detected, that data is
automatically eliminated and the PC is disabled—this is designed to render the data useless to
unauthorized users. '

In addition to our core records management, data protection and recovery, and information
destruction services, we sell storage materials, including cardboard boxes and magnetic media, and
provide consulting, facilities management, fulfillment and other outsourcing services.

Physical Records

Physical records may be broadly divided into two categories: active and inactive. Active records
relate to ongoing and recently completed activities or contain information that is frequently referenced.
Active records are usually stored and managed on-site by the organization that originated them to
ensure ready availability. Inactive physical records are the principal focus of the information protection
and storage services industry. Inactive records consist of those records that are not needed for
immediate access but which must be retained for legal, regulatory and compliance reasons or for
occasional reference in support of ongoing business operations. A large and growing specialty subset of
the physical records market is medical records. These are active and semi-active records that are oiten




stored off-site with and serviced by an information protection and storage services vendor. Special
regulatory requirements often apply to medical records.

Electronic Records

Electronic records management focuses on the storage of, and related services for, computer
media that is either a backup copy of recently processed data or archival in nature. Costomer needs for
data backup and recovery and archiving are distinctively different. Backup data exists because of the
need of many businesses to maintain backup copies of their data in order to be able to recover the
data in the event of a system failure, casualty loss or other disaster. It is customary (and a best
practice) for data processing groups to rotate backup tapes to off-site locations on a regular basis and
to require multiple copies of such information at multiple sites.

In addition to the physical rotation and storage of backup data that our physical business segments
provide, our Worldwide Digital Business segment offers electronic vaulting services as an alternative
way for businesses to transfer data to us, and to access the data they have stored with us. Electronic
vaulting is a Web-based service that automatically backs up computer data from servers or directly from
desktop and laptop computers over the Internet and stores it in one of our secure data centers. In early
2003, we announced an expansion of the electronic vaulting service to include backup and recovery for
personal computer data, answering customers’ needs to protect critical business data, which is often
unprotected on employee laptop and desktop personal computers. In November 2004, we acquired
Connected, a market leader in the backup and recovery of this distributed data, and in December 2005,
we acquired LiveVault, a market leader in the backup and recovery of server data.

There is a growing need for better ways of archiving electronic records for legal, regulatory and
compliance reasons and for occasional reference in support of ongoing business operations. Historically,
businesses have relied on backup tapes for storing archived data in electronic format, but this process
can be costly and ineffective when attempting to search and retrieve the data for litigation or other
needs. In addition, many industries, such as healthcare and financial services, are facing increased
governmental regulation mandating the way in which electronic records are stored and managed. To
help customers meet these growing storage challenges, we introduced digital archiving: services. We
have experienced increasing market adoption of these services, especially for e-mail archiving, which
enables businesses to identify and retrieve electronic records quickly and cost-effectively, while
maintaining regulatory compliance,

On December 1, 2006, changes to the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (“FRCP”} were
implemented; as a result, electronically stored information was explicitly defined as a separate class of
discoverable information in litigation. There is no longer any ambiguity about whether digital data
constitutes a “document” and businesses now have the clear responsibility to produce electronic
records. In December 2007, we acquired Stratify, a leading provider of eDiscovery services to assist
customers with managing discovery of electronic records.

We believe the issues encountered by customers trying to manage their electronic records are
similar to the ones they face in their physical records management programs and consist primarily of:
(1) storage capacity and the preservation of data; (2) access to and control over the data in a secure
environment; and (3) the need to retain electronic records due to regulatory requirements or for
litigation support. Our digital services offerings are representative of our commitment to address
evolving records management needs and expand the array of services we offer.

Growth of Market

We believe that the volume of stored physical and electronic records will continue to increase for a
number of reasons, including: (1) regulatory requirements; (2) concerns over possible future litigation
and the resulting increases in volume and holding periads of records; (3) inexpensive document




producing technologies such as facsimile, desktop publishing software and desktop printing; (4) the
continued proliferation of data processing technologies such as personal computers and networks;

(5) the high cost of reviewing records and deciding whether to retain or destroy them; (6) the failure of
many entities to adopt or follow policies on records destruction; and (7) requirements to keep backup
copies of certain records in off-site locations.

We believe that paper-based information will continue to grow, not in spite of, but because of,
“paperless” technologies such as e-mail and the Internet. These technologies have prompted the
creation of hard copies of such electronic information and have also led to increased demand for
electronic records services, such as the storage and off-site rotation of backup copies of magnetic
media. In addition, we believe that the proliferation of digital information technologies and distributed
data networks has created a growing need for efficient, cost-effective, high quality technology solutions
for electronic data protection, digital archiving and the management of electronic documents.

Consolidation of a Highly Fragmented Industry

There was significant consolidation within the highly fragmented information protection and
storage services industry in North America from 1995 to 2000 and at a slower but continuing pace in
recent years. Most information protection and storage services companies serve a single local market,
and are often either owner-operated or ancillary to another business, such as a moving and storage
company. We believe that the consolidation trend, both in North America and other regions, will
continue because of the industry’s capital requirements for growth, opportunities for large information
protection and storage services providers to achieve economies of scale and customer demands for
more sophisticated technology-based solutions.

We believe that the consolidation trend in the industry is also due to, and will continue as a result
of, the preference of certain large organizations to contract with one vendor in multiple cities and
countries for multiple services. In particular, larger customers increasingly demand a single,
sophisticated company to handle all of their important physical and electronic records needs. Large
national and multinational companies are better able to satisfy these demands than smaller competitors.
We have made, and intend to continue to make from time to time, acquisitions of our competitors,
many of whom are small, single-city operators.

Description of Our Business

We generate our revenues by providing storage for both physical and electronic records in a variety
of information media formats, core records management, data protection & recovery, and information
destruction services and an expanding menu of complementary products and services to a large and
diverse customer base. Providing outsourced information protection and storage services is the mainstay
of our customer relationships and provides the foundation for our revenue growth. Core services, which
are a vital part of a comprehensive records management program, consist primarily of the handling and
transportation of stored records and information. In our secure shredding operations, core services
consist primarily of the scheduled collection and handling of records and documents generated by
business operations. As is the case with storage revenues, core service revenues are highly recurring in
nature and therefore very predictable. In 2007, our storage and core service revenues represented
approximately 85% of our total consolidated revenues. In addition to our core services, we offer a wide
array of complementary products and services such as performing special project work, selling records
management services related products, providing fulfillment services and consulting on records
management issues. These services address more specific needs and are designed to enhance our
customers’ overall records management programs. These services complement our core services;
however, they are more episodic and discretionary in nature. Revenue generated by all of our operating
segments includes both core and complementary components.




Our various operating segments offer the products and services discussed below. In general, our
North American Physical Business segment offers physical records management services, including
business records management, healthcare information services, vital records services, physical data
protection & recovery services, service and courier operations, secure shredding, fulfillment and
consulting services, in the U.S. and Canada. Our International Physical Business segment offers
elements of our physical product and services lines outside the U.S. and Canada. Our Worldwide
Digital Business segment includes our online backup and recovery solutions for server data and
personal computers, digital archiving services, eDiscovery services, intellectual property management
services and electronic information destruction services. Some of our complementary services and
products are offered within all of our segments. The amount of revenues derived from our North
American Physical Business, International Physical Business and Worldwide Digital Business operating
segments and other relevant data, including financial information about geographic areas and product
and service lines, for fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007 are set forth in Note 9 to Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Service Offerings
Business Records Management

The hard copy business records stored by our customers by their nature are not very active. These
records are typically stored in cartons packed by the customer. We use a proprietary order processing
and inventory management system known as the SafekeeperPLUS® system to efficiently store and later
retrieve a customer’s cartons. Storage charges are generally billed monthly on a per storage unit basis,
usually either per carton or per cubic foot of records, and include the provision of space, racking,
computerized inventory and activity tracking and physical security.

Healthcare information Services

Healthcare information services principally include the handling, storage, filing, processing and
retrieval of medical records used by hospitals, private practitioners and other medical institutions.
Medical records tend to be more active in nature and are typically stored on specialized open shelving
systems that provide easier access to individual files. Healthcare information services also include
recurring project work and ancillary services. Recurring project work involves the on-site removal of
aged patient files and related computerized file indexing. Ancillary healthcare information services
include release of information (medical record copying), temporary staffing, contract coding, facilities
management and imaging.

Vital Records Services

Vital records contain critical or irreplaceable data such as master audio and video recordings, film
and other highly proprietary information. Vital records may require special facilities or services, either
because of the data they contain or the media on which they are recorded. Qur charges for providing
enhanced security and special climate-controlled environments for vital records are higher than for
typical storage services. We provide the same ancillary services for vital records as we provide for our
other storage operations.

Physical Data Protection & Recovery Services

Physical data protection & recovery services consist of the storage and rotation of backup
computer media as part of corporate disaster recovery and business continuity plans. Computer tapes,
cartridges and disk packs are transported off-site by our courier operations on a scheduled basis to
secure, climate-controlled facilities, where they are available to customers 24 hours a day, 365 days a
year, to facilitate data recovery in the event of a disaster. Frequently, back-up tapes are then rotated




from our facilities back to our customers’ data centers. We use various proprietary information
technology systems such as MediaLink™, SecureSync™ and SecureBase™ software to manage this
process. We also manage tape library relocations and support disaster recovery testing and execution.

Service and Courier Operations

Service and courier operations are an integral part of our comprehensive records management
program for all physical media including paper and certain records on magnetic media. They include
adding records to storage, temporary removal of records from storage, refiling of removed records,
permanent withdrawals from storage, destruction of records and the rotation of back-up computer
media. Service charges are generally assessed for each procedure on a per unit basis. The
SafekeeperPLLUS system controls the service processes from order entry through transportation and
invoicing for business records management while the MediaLink and SecureBase systems manage the
process for the physical data protection services business.

Courier operations consist primarily of the pick-up and delivery of records upon customer request.
Charges for courier services are based on urgency of delivery, volume and location and are billed
monthly. As of December 31, 2007, we were utilizing a fleet of approximately 3,500 owned or leased
vehicles.

Secure Shredding

Secure shredding is a natural extension of our hardcopy records management services, completing
the life cycle of a record, and involves the shredding of sensitive documents for corporate customers
that, in many cases, also use our services for management of less sensitive archival records. These
services typically include the scheduled pick-up of loose office records which customers accumulate in
specially designed secure containers we provide or the shredding of documents stored in records
facilities upon the expiration of their scheduled retention periods. Complementary to our shredding
operations is the sale of the resultant waste paper to third-party recyclers. Through a combination of
plant-based shredding operations and mobile shredding units comprised of custom built trucks, we are
able to offer secure shredding services to our customers in all of our existing markets throughout the
U.S., Canada and UK.

Document Management Solutions

The focus of our Document Management Solutions (“DMS”) is to develop, implement and
support comprehensive document management solutions for the complete lifecycle of our customers’
information. We seek to develop solutions that solve our customers’ document management challenges
by integrating the management of physical records, document conversion and digital storage. DMS
complements our core physical and digital service offerings, leveraging our global footprint and our
existing customer relationships. We differentiate our offerings by providing solutions that integrate and
extend our existing portfolio of products and services.

The trend towards increased usage of Electronic Document Management (“EDM”) systems
represents a tremendous opportunity for us. In addition to our existing archival storage services, there
is increased opportunity to manage all active records. DMS services provide the bridge between
customers’ physical documents and their new EDM solutions,

Electronic Vaulting Services

Electronic vaulting is our Web-based service that automaticaltly backs up computer data from
servers or directly from desktop or laptop computers over the Internet and stores it in one of our
secure data centers. Customers use our Connected® backup for PC software product for electronic
vaulting of desktop or laptop computer data and our LiveVault® server data backup and recovery




product for electronic vaulting of server data. Customers can choose our off-site hosted Software as a
Service solution or they can license the software from uvs as part of a customer on-site solution.

Digital Archiving Services

Our digital archiving services focus on archiving digital information with long-term preservation
requirements. These services represent the digital analogy to our physical records management services.
Because of increased litigation risks and regulatory mandates, such as the changes to the FRCP that
explicitly define electronically stored information as a separate class of discoverable information,
companies are increasingly aware of the need to apply the same records management policies and
retention schedules to electronic data as they do physical records. Typical digital records include e-mail,
e-statements, images, electronic documents retained for legal or compliance purposes and other data
documenting business transactions.

The growth rate of mission-critical digital information is accelerating, driven in part by the use of
the Internet as a distribution and transaction medium. The rising cost and increasing importance of
digital information management, coupled with the increasing availability of telecommunications
bandwidth at lower costs, may create meaningful opportunities for us. We continue to cultivate
marketing and technology partnerships to support this anticipated growth.

Discovery Services

Our Discovery Services comprise a set of individual services and bundled solutions designed to
address the legal discovery and corporate governance needs of our customers. Those services and
solutions allow our customers to collect, prepare, process, review, and produce data that may exist in
either paper or digital form in response to internal investigations, litigations or regulatory requests.

Electronic discovery (“eDiscovery”) is the component of legal discovery involving information that
is converted into digital data or collected and processed in that form. Our eDiscovery services,
principally embodied by the Stratify® Legal Discovery application, help our customers identify,
organize, analyze, and review particularly relevant or responsive information from within the universe
of electronic data generated during the normal course of their business. The ability of current content
management technologies to capture and maintain several copies of documents—including different
versions of working drafts—underscores the challenges companies face in managing information for
eDiscovery.

Our consolidated suite of physical and digital discovery services has been designed to deliver a
secure, end-to-end chain-of-custody, while also reducing both risks and costs for our customers.

Intellectual Property Management Services

Our intellectual property management consist primarily of third party technology escrow services
that protect intellectual property assets such as software source code. In addition, we assist in securing
intellectual property as collateral for lending, investments and joint ventures, in managing domain name
registrations and transfers, and in providing expertise and assistance to brokers and dealers in
complying with electronic records regulations of the SEC.

Complementary Services and Products

We offer a variety of additional services which customers may request or contract for on an
individual basis. These services include conducting records inventories, packing records into cartons or
other containers, and creating computerized indices of files and individual documents. We also provide
services for the management of active records programs. We can provide these services, which generally




include document and file processing and storage, both off-site at our own facilities and by supplying
our own personnel to perform management functions on-site at the customer’s premises.

Other complementary lines of business that we operate include fulfillment services and
professional consulting services. Fulfillment services are performed by our wholly-owned subsidiary,
Iron Mountain Fulfillment Services, Inc. (“IMFES”). IMFS stores customer marketing literature and
delivers this material to sales offices, trade shows and prospective customers’ sites based on current and
prospective customer orders. In addition, IMFS assembles custom marketing packages and orders, and
manages and provides detailed reporting on customer marketing literature inventories.

We provide professional consulting services to customers, enabling them to develop and implement
comprehensive records and information management programs. Qur consulting business draws on our
experience in information protection and storage services to analyze the practices of companies and
assist them in creating more effective programs of records and information management. Our
consultants work with these customers to develop policies and schedules for document retention and
destruction.

We also sell: (1) a full line of specially designed corrugated cardboard, metal and plastic storage
containers; (2) magnetic media products including computer tapes, cartridges and drives, tape cleaners
and supplies and CDs; and (3) computer room equipment and supplies such as racking systems and
furniture.

Financial Characteristics of Qur Business

Our financial model is based on the recurring nature of our various revenue streams. The
historical predictability of our revenues and the resulting operating income before depreciation and
amortization (“OIBDA”) allow us to operate with a high degree of financial leverage. For a more
detailed definition and reconciliation of OIBDA and a discussion of why we believe this measure
provides relevant and useful information to our current and potential investors, see Item 7.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Non-GAAP Measures.” Qur primary financial goal has always been, and continues to be, to increase
consolidated OIBDA in relation to capital invested, even as our focus has shifted from growth through
acquisitions to internal revenue growth. Our business has the following financial characteristics:

* Recurring Revenues. We derive a majority of our consolidated revenues from fixed periodic,
usually monthly, fees charged to customers based on the volume of records stored. Once a
customer places physical records in storage with us and until those records are destroyed or
permanently removed, for which we typically receive a service fee, we receive recurring payments
for storage fees without incurring additional labor or marketing expenses or significant capital
costs. Similarly, contracts for the storage of electronic backup media consist primarily of fixed
monthly payments. Our quarterly revenues from these fixed periodic storage fees have grown for
76 consecutive quarters. For each of the five years 2003 through 2007, storage revenues, which
are stable and recurring, have accounted for over 54% or more of our total consolidated
revenues. This stable and growing storage revenue base also provides the foundation for
increases in service revenues and OIBDA.

* Historically Non-Cyclical Storage Business. We have not experienced any significant reductions in
our storage business as a result of past economic downturns, although we can give no assurance
that this would be the case in the future. We believe that companies that have outsourced
records management services are less likely during economic downturns to incur the move-out
costs and other expenses associated with switching vendors or moving their records management
services programs in-house. However, during a recent economic slowdown, the rate at which
some customers added new cartons to their inventory was below historical levels. The net effect
of these factors has been the continued growth of our storage revenue base, albeit at a lower



rate. For cach of the five years 2003 through 2007, total net volume growth in North America
has ranged between 6% and 8%.

* Inherent Growth from Existing Physical Records Customers. Our physical records customers have
on average generated additional cartons at a faster rate than stored cartons have been destroyed
or permanently removed. We estimate that inherent growth from existing customers represents
approximately half of our total net volume growth, excluding acquisitions, in North America. We
believe the consistent growth of our physical records storage revenues is the result of a number
of factors, including: (1) the trend toward increased records retention; (2) customer satisfaction
with our services; and (3) the costs and inconvenience of moving storage operations in-house or
to another provider of information protection and storage services.

* Diversified and Stable Customer Base. As of December 31, 2007, we had over 100,000 corporate
clients in a variety of industries. We currently provide services to commercial, legal, banking,
healthcare, accounting, insurance, entertainment and government organizations, including more
than 93% of the Fortune 1000 and 90% of the FTSE 100. No customer accounted for more than
2% of our consolidated revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007. For
each of the three years 2005 through 2007, the average volume reduction due to customers
terminating their relationship with us was less than 2%.

*» Capital Expenditures Related Primarily to Growth. Qur information protection and storage
business requires limited annual capital expenditures made in order to maintain our current
revenue stream. For the years 2005 through 2007, over 85% of our aggregate capital
expenditures were growth-related investments, primarily in storage systems, which include
racking, building and leasehold improvements, computer systems hardware and software, and
buildings. These growth-related capital expenditures are primarily discretionary and create
additional capacity for increases in revenues and OIBDA. Since shifting our focus from growth
through acquisitions to internal revenue growth, our capital expenditures, made primarily to
support our internal revenue growth, have generally exceeded the aggregate acquisition
consideration we paid. This was not the case in 2003 due to the acquisition of Hays IMS, in
2004 due to the acquisition of Connected and the 49.9% equity interest held by Mentmore plc
(“Mentmore”) in Iron Mountain Europe Limited (“IME") and 2007 due to the acquisitions of
ArchivesOne and Stratify. We expect this trend to continue in the future absent unusual
acquisition activity.

Growth Strategy

Our objective is to maintain a leadership position in the information protection and storage
services industry around the world, protecting and storing our customers’ information without regard to
media format or geographic location. In the U.S, and Canada, we seek to be one of the largest
information protection and storage services providers in each of our markets. Internationally, our
objectives are to continue to capitalize on our expertise in the information protection and storage
services industry and to make additional acquisitions and investments in selected international markets,
Our primary avenues of growth are: (1) increased business with existing customers; (2) the addition of
new customers; (3) the introduction of new products and services such as secure shredding, electronic
vaulting, eDiscovery and DMS; and (4) selective acquisitions in new and existing markets.

Growth from Existing Customers

Our existing customers storing physical records contribute to storage and storage-related service
revenues growth because on average they generate additional cartons at a faster rate than old cartons
are destroyed or permanently removed. In order to maximize growth opportunities from existing




customers, we seek to maintain high levels of customer retention by providing premium customer
service through our local account management staff.

Our sales coverage model is designed to identify and capitalize on incremental revenue
opportunities by allocating our sales resources based on a sophisticated segmentation of our customer
base and selling additional records management, data protection & recovery and information
destruction services, in new and existing markets, within our existing customer relationships, We also
seek to leverage existing business relationships with our customers by selling complementary services
and products. Services include records tracking, indexing, customized reporting, vital records
management and consulting services.

Addition of New Customers

Our sales forces are dedicated to three primary objectives: (1) establishing new customer account
relationships; (2) generating additional revenue from existing customers; and (3) expanding new and
existing customer relationships by effectively selling a wide array of complementary services and
products. In order to accomplish these objectives, our sales forces draw on our U.S. and international
marketing organizations and senior management.

Introduction of New Products and Services

We continue to expand our portfolio of products and services. We have established a national
presence in the secure shredding industry in the U.S., Canada and the U.K. and offer our electronic
vaulting management services worldwide. These new products and services allow us to further penetrate
our existing customer accounts and attract new customers in previously untapped markets.

Growth through Acquisitions

The goals of our current acquisition program are: to supplement internal growth in our physical
businesses by continuing to establish a footprint in targeted international markets and adding fold-in
acquisitions both in the U.S, and internationally; and to accelerate our leadership and time to market
in our digital businesses. We have a successful record of acquiring and integrating information
protection and storage services companies. Since January 1, 1996, when we began our acquisition
program, we have completed more than 200 acquisitions in North America, Europe, Latin America and
Asia Pacific for total consideration of over $3.6 billion, including approximately $1 billion associated
with our merger with Pierce Leahy Corp. (“Pierce Leahy”) in February 2000. We substantially
completed our geographic expansion in North America, Europe and Latin America by 2003 and began
our expansion into Asia Pacific in 2005.

Acquisitions in the U.S. and Canada

We intend to continue our acquisition program in the U.S. and Canada focusing primarily on
expanding geographically as necessary and building scale in some of our smaller markets through
“fold-in” acquisitions. However, given the small number of large acquisition prospects and our
increased revenue base, future acquisitions are expected to be less significant to overall U.S. and
Canadian revenue growth.

International Acquisition Strategy

We also intend to continue to make acquisitions and investments in information protection and
storage services businesses outside the U.S. and Canada. We have acquired and invested in, and seek to
acquire and invest in, information protection and storage services companies in countries, and, more
specifically, markets within such countries, where we believe there is sufficient demand from existing
multinational customers or the potential for significant growth. Since beginning our international
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expansion program in January 1999, we have directly and through joint ventures, expanded our
operations into 36 countries in Europe, Latin America and Asia Pacific. These transactions have taken,
and may continue to take, the form of acquisitions of the entire business or controlling or minority
investments, with a long-term goal of full ownership. In addition to the criteria we use to evaluate U.S.
and Canadian acquisition candidates, we also evaluate the presence in the potential market of our
existing customers as well as the risks uniquely associated with an international investment, including
those risks described below.

The experience, depth and strength of local management are particularly important in our
international acquisition strategy. As a result, we have formed joint ventures with, or acquired
significant interests in, target businesses throughout Europe, Latin America and Asia Pacific. We began
our international expansion by acquiring a 50.1% controlling interest in each of our IME, Iron
Mountain South America, Ltd. (“IMSA”) and Sistemas de Archivo Corporativo (a Mexican limited
liability company) subsidiaries.

In 2006, we established a majority-owned joint venture serving four major markets in India,
completed minority investments in information protection and storage businesses with operations in
Poland and Russia, and in 2007, we established a majority-owned joint venture in Asia Pacific for
consideration of approximately $2 million giving us an initial presence in Singapore, Hong Kong-SAR,
China, Indonesia, Sri Lanka, Taiwan and Malaysia.

We believe this strategy, rather than an outright acquisition, may, in certain markets, better
position us to expand the existing business. The local partner benefits from our expertise in the
information protection and storage services industry, our multinational customer relationships, our
access to capital and our technology, and we benefit from our local partner’s knowledge of the market,
relationships with local customers and their presence in the community.

QOur long-term goal is to acquire full ownership of each such business. To that end, in February
2004, we acquired the remaining 49.9% minority equity interest in IME, in January 2005, we acquired
the remaining 49.9% minority equity interest in IMSA and in April 2006, we acquired the remaining
minority equity ownership in our Mexican operations. In addition, we have bought out partnership
interests, in whole or in part, in Chile, Eastern Europe and the Netherlands. As a result of these
transactions we own more than 98% of our international operations, measured as a percentage of
consolidated revenues.

Our international investments are subject to risks and uncertainties relating to the indigenous
political, social, regulatory, tax and economic structures of other countries, as well as fluctuations in
currency valuation, exchange controls, expropriation and governmental policies limiting returns to
foreign investors.

The amount of our revenues derived from international operations and other relevant financial
data for fiscal years 2005, 2006 and 2007 are set forth in Note 9 to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, we derived approximately 28%,
30% and 32%, respectively, of our total revenues from outside of the U.S. As of December 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007, we have long-lived assets of approximately 31%, 33% and 34%, respectively, from
outside of the U.S.

Digital Growth and Technology Innovation Strategy

Similar to our physical businesses, we seek to grow revenues in our Worldwide Digital Segment by
selling our products and services to existing and new customers, Our focus on technology innovation
allows us to bring leading products and services to market designed to solve customer problems in the
areas of data protection and e-records management. Qur approach to innovation has three major
components: build, buy and partner. We will build or develop our own technology in areas core to our
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strategy in order to protect and extend our lead in the market. Examples include, back up and
archiving Software as a Service and data reduction technologies. Our technology acquisition strategy is
designed to accelerate our product strategy, leadership and time to market and past examples include
the Connected, LiveVault and Stratify acquisitions. Finally, we are developing global technology
partnerships that complement our product and service offerings, allow us to offer a complete solution
to the marketplace and keep us in contact with emerging technology companies.

Customers

QOur customer base is diversified in terms of revenues and industry concentration. As of
December 31, 2007, we had over 100,000 corporate clients in a variety of industries. We currently
provide services to commercial, legal, banking, healthcare, accounting, insurance, entertainment and
government organizations, including more than 93% of the Fortune 1000 and more than 90% of the
FTSE 100. No customer accounted for more than 2% of our consolidated revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

Competition

We compete with our current and potential customers’ internal information protection and storage
services capabilities. We can provide no assurance that these organizations will begin or continue to use
an outside company such as Iron Mountain for their future information protection and storage services.

We compete with multiple information protection and storage services providers in all geographic
areas where we operate. We believe that competition for customers is based on price, reputation for
reliability, quality of service and scope and scale of technology and that we generally compete
effectively based on these factors.

We also compete with other information protection and storage services providers for companies
to acquire. Some of our competitors may possess substantial financial and other resources. If any such
competitor were to devote additional resources to the information protection and storage services
business and such acquisition candidates or focus their strategy on our markets, our results of
operations could be adversely affected.

Alternative Technologies

We derive most of our revenues from the storage of paper documents and storage-related services.
This storage requires significant physical space. Alternative storage technologies exist, many of which
require significantly less space than paper documents. These technologies include computer media,
microform, CD-ROM and optical disk. To date, none of these technologies has replaced paper
documents as the principal means for storing information. However, we can provide no assurance that
our customers will continue to store most of their records in paper documents format. We continue to
invest in additional services such as electronic vaulting and e-records management, designed to address
our customers’ need for efficient, cost-effective, high quality solutions for electronic records and
information management. '

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we employed over 11,600 employees in the U.S. and over 8,500
employees outside of the U.S. At December 31, 2007, an aggregate of 583 employees were represented
by unions in California, Georgia, New York and three cities in Canada.

All non-union employees are generally eligible to participate in our benefit programs, which
include medical, dental, life, short and long-term disability, retirement/401(k) and accidental death and
dismemberment plans. Unionized employees receive these types of benefits through their unions. In
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addition to base compensation and other usual benefits, all full-time employees participate in some
form of incentive-based compensation program that provides payments based on revenues, profits,
collections or attainment of specified objectives for the unit in which they work. Management believes
that we have good relationships with our employees and unions. However, as of December 31 2007,
certain of our labor contracts had expired, and we were operating under the expired contracts while
attempting to negotiate replacement agreements.

Insurance

For strategic risk transfer purposes, we maintain a comprehensive insurance program with insurers
that we believe to be reputable and that have adequate capitalization in amounts that we believe to be
appropriate. -Property insurance is purchased on a comprehensive basis, including flood and earthquake,
subject to certain policy conditions, sublimits and deductibles. Property is insured based upon the
replacement cost of real and personal property, including leasehold improvements, business income loss
and extra expense. Separate excess policies for insurer defined Critical Earthquake Zone exposures are
maintained at what we believe to be appropriate limits and deductibles for that exposure. Included
among other types of insurance that we carry, subject to certain policy conditions, sublimits and
deductibles are: medical, workers compensation, general liability, umbrella, automobile, professional,
warehouse legal and directors and officers liability policies. In 2002, we established a wholly-owned
Vermont domiciled captive insurance company as a subsidiary; through the subsidiary we retain and
reinsure a portion of our property loss exposure.

Our customer contracts usually contain provisions limiting our liability with respect to loss or
destruction of, or damage to, records stored with us. Our liability under these contracts is often limited
to a nominal fixed amount per item or unit of storage, such as per cubic foot. We cannot assure you
that where we have limitation of liability provisions that they will be enforceable in all instances or
would otherwise protect us from liability. Also, some of our contracts with large volume accounts and
some of the contracts assumed in our acquisitions contain no such limits or contain higher limits or
supplemental insurance arrangements. In addition to provisions limiting our liability, our standard
storage and service contracts include a schedule setting forth the majority of the customer-specific
terms, including storage and service pricing and service delivery terms, Qur customers may dispute the
interpretation of various provisions in their contracts. While we have had relatively few disputes with
our customers with regard to the terms of their customer contracts, and any disputes to date have not
been material, we can give you no assurance that we will not have material disputes in the future.

Environmental Matters

Some of our current and formerly owned or leased properties were previously used by entities
other than us for industrial or other purposes that involved the use, storage, generation and/or disposal
of hazardous substances and wastes, including petroleum products. In some instances these properties
included the operation of underground storage tanks or the presence of asbestos-containing materials.
Although we have from time to time conducted limited environmental investigations and remedial
activities at some of our former and current facilities, we have not undertaken an in-depth
environmental review of all of our properties. We therefore may be potentially liable for environmental
costs and may be unable to sell, rent, mortgage or use contaminated real estate owned or leased by us.
Under various federal, state and local environmental laws, we may be potentially liable for
environmental compliance and remediation costs to address contamination, if any, located at owned
and leased properties as well as damages arising from such contamination, whether or not we know of,
or were responsible for, the contamination, or the contamination occurred while we owned or leased
the property. Environmental conditions for which we might be liable may also exist at properties that
we may acquire in the future. In addition, future regulatory action and environmental laws may impose
costs for environmental compliance that do not exist today.
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We transfer a portion of our risk of financial loss due to currently undetected environmental
matters by purchasing an environmental impairment liability insurance policy, which covers all owned
and leased locations. Coverage is provided for both liability and remediation costs.

Reincorporation

On May 27, 2005, Iron Mountain Incorporated, a Pennsylvania corporation (“Iron Mountain PA”),
reincorporated as a Delaware corporation. The reincorporation was effected by means of a statutory
merger (the “Merger”) of Iron Mountain PA with and into Iron Mountain Incorporated, a Delaware
corporation (“Iron Mountain DE”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Iron Mountain PA. In connection
with the Merger, Iron Mountain DE succeeded to and assumed all of the assets and liabilities of Iron
Mountain PA. Apart from the change in its state of incorporation, the Merger had no effect on Iron
Mountain PA’s business, board composition, management, employees, fiscal year, assets or liabilities, or
location of its facilities, and. did not result in any relocation of management or other employees. The
Merger was approved at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 26, 2005. Upon
consummation of the Merger, Iron Mountain DE succeeded to Iron Mountain PA’s reporting
obligations and continued to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “IRM.”

Internet Website

Our Internet address is www.ironmountain.com. Under the “Investor Relations” section on our
Internet website, we make available through a hyperlink to a third party website, free of charge, our
Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, our Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d} of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act™) as soon as reasonably practicable after such
forms are filed with or furnished to the SEC. We are not including the information contained on or
available through our website as a part of, or incorporating such information by reference into, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Copies of our corporate governance guidelines, code of ethics and the
charters of our audit, compensation, and nominating and governance committees dre also available
under the Investor Relations section of our Internet website and also may be obtained free of
charge by writing to our Secretary, Iron Mountain Incorporated, 745 Atlantic Avenue, Boston,
Massachusetts, 02111 and are available on our website www.ironmountein.com under the heading
“Corporate Governance.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our businesses face many risks. If any of the events or circumstances described in the following
risks actually occur, our businesses, financial condition or results of operations could suffer and the
trading price of our debt or equity securities could decline. Our investors and prospective investors
should consider the following risks and the information contained under the heading “Cautionary Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” before deciding to invest in our securities.

Operational Risks

Governmental and customer focus on data security could increase our costs of operations. We may not be
able to fully offset these costs through increases in our rates. In addition, incidents in which we fail to
protect our customers’ information against security breaches could result in monetary damages against us
and could otherwise damage our reputation, harm our businesses and adversely impact our results of
operations. .

In reaction to publicized incidents in which electronically stored information has been lost, illegally
accessed or stolen, most states have adopted breach of data security statutes and regulations that
require notification to consumers if the security of their personal information, such as social security

14




numbers, is breached; other states are currently considering such legislation. In addition, the United
States Congress is considering several bills that are intended to address data security through various
methods that include requiring notification to affected persons of breaches of data security. Our
information security practices have been the subject of review or inquiry by governmental agencies, and
we may be subject to additional reviews or inquiries of governmental agencies in the future.

Continued governmental focus on data security may lead to additional legislative action. In
addition, the increased emphasis on information security is leading customers to request that we take
additional measures to enhance security and assume higher liability under our contracts. We have
experienced incidents in which customers’ backup tapes or other records have been lost, and we have
been informed by customers in some incidents that the lost media or records contained personal
information. As a result of these legislative initiatives and client demands, we may have to modify our
operations with the goal of further improving data security. Any such modifications may result in
increased expenses and we may be unable to increase the rates we charge for our services sufficiently
to offset any increased expenses.

In addition to increases in the costs of operations or potential lability that may result from a
heightened focus on data security, our reputation may be damaged by any compromise of .security,
accidental loss or theft of customer data in our possession. We believe that establishing and maintaining
a good reputation is critical to attracting and retaining customers. If our reputation is damaged, we
may become less competitive which could negatively impact our businesses, financial condition or
resuits of operations.

Our customer contracts may not always limit our liability and may sometimes contain terms that could lead
to disputes in interpretation.

Our customer contracts usually contain provisions limiting our liability with respect to loss or
destruction of, or damage to, records stored with us. Our liability under these contracts is often limited
to a nominal fixed amount per item or umnit of storage, such as per cubic foot, We cannot assure you
that where we have limitation of liability provisions that they will be enforceable in all instances or
would otherwise protect us from liability. In addition to provisions limiting our liability, our standard
storage and service contracts include a schedule setting forth the majority of the customer-specific
terms, including storage and service pricing and service delivery terms. Our customers may dispute the
interpretation of various provisions in their contracts. While we have had relatively few disputes with
our customers with regard to the terms of their customer contracts, and any disputes to date have not
been material, we can give you no assurance that we wilt not have material disputes in the future.

We face competition for customers.

We compete, in some of our business lines, with our current and potential customers’ internal
information protection and storage services capabilities. These organizations may not begin or continue
to use an outside company, such as our company, for their future information protection and storage
services needs. We also compete, in both our physical and digital businesses, with multiple information
protection and storage services providers in all geographic areas where we operate; our current or
potential customers may choose to use those competitors instead of us.

We may not be able to effectively operate and expand our digital businesses.

We operate certain digital information storage and protection businesses and are implementing a
planned expansion into other digital businesses. OQur participation in these markets poses certain unique
risks. For example, we may be unable to:

* raise the amount of capital necessary to effectively participate in these markets;
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* successfully acquire and integrate businesses or technologies to complement our current service
offerings; :

* keep up with rapid technological changes, evolving industry expectations and changing customer
requirements;

» develop, hire or otherwise obtain the necessary technical expertise;
* accurately predict the size of the markets for any of these services; or

* compete effectively against other companies that possess greater technical expertise, capital or
other necessary resources.

In addition, the digital solutions we offer may not gain or retain market acceptance, or business
partners upon whom we depend for technical and management expertise, as well as the hardware and
software products we need to complement our services, may not perform as expected.

Cur customers may shift from paper storage to alternative technologies that require less physical space.

We derive most of our revenues from the storage of paper documents and storage related services.
This storage requires significant physical space, which we provide through our owned and leased
facilities. Alternative storage technologies exist, many of which require significantly less space than
paper documents. These technologies include computer media, microform, CD-ROM and optical disk.
We can provide no assurance that our customers will continue to store most of their records in paper
documents format. A significant shift by our customers to storage of data through non-paper based
technologies, whether now existing or developed in the future, could adversely affect our businesses.

We may be subject to certain costs and potential liabilities associated with the real estate required for our
businesses. '

Because our physical businesses are heavily dependent on real estate, we face special risks
attributable to the real estate we own or lease. Such risks include:

* variable occupancy costs and difficulty locating suitable sites due to fluctuations in real estate
markets;

+ uninsured losses or damage to our storage facilities due to an inability to obtain full coverage on
a cost-effective basis for some casualties, such as earthquakes, or any coverage for certain losses,
such as losses from riots or terrorist activities;

* inability to use our real estate holdings effectively if the demand for physical storage were to
diminish because of customers’ acceptance of other storage technologies; and

» liability under environmentat laws for the costs of investigation and cleanup of contaminated real '
estate owned or leased by us, whether or not we know of, or were responsible for, the
contamination, or the contamination occurred while we owned or leased the property.
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Some of our current and formerly owned or leased properties were previously used by entities -
other than us for industrial or other purposes that involved the use, storage, generation and/or disposal
of hazardous substances and wastes, including petroleum products. In some instances these properties
included the operation of underground storage tanks or the presence of asbestos-containing materials.
Although we have from time to time conducted limited environmental investigations and remedial
activities at some of our former and current facilities, we have not undertaken an in-depth
environmental review of all of our properties. We therefore may be potentially liable for environmental
costs like those discussed above and may be unable to sell, rent, mortgage or use contaminated real
estate owned or leased by us. Environmental conditions for which we might be liable may also exist at
properties that we may acquire in the future. In addition, future regulatory action and environmental
laws may impose costs for environmental compliance that do not exist today.

International operations may pose unique risks.

As of December 31, 2007, we provided services in 36 countries outside the U.S. As part of our.
growth strategy, we expect to continue to acquire or invest in information protection and storage
services businesses in foreign markets. International operations are subject to numerous risks, including:

* the impact of foreign government regulations;
* the volatility of certain foreign economies in which we operate;
+ political uncertainties; '

* the risk that the business partners upon whom we depend for technical assistance or
management and acquisition expertise outside of the U.S. will not perform as expected;

+ differences in business practices; and
» foreign currency fluctuations.

[n particular, our net income can be significantly affected by fluctuations in currencies associated
with certain intercompany balances of our foreign subsidiaries to us and between our foreign
subsidiaries. ‘

We may be subject to claims that our technology, particularly with respect to digital ser.vices,. violates the
intellectual property rights of a third party.

Third parties may have legal rights, including ownership of patents, trade secrets, trademarks and
copyrights, to ideas, materials, processes names or original works that are the same or similar to those
we use, especially in our digital business, Third parties may bring claims, or threaten to bring claims,
against us that these intellectual property rights are being infringed or violated by our use of
intetlectual property. Litigation or threatened litigation could be costly and distract our senior
management from operating our business. Further, if we cannot establish our right or obtain the right
to use the intellectual property on reasonable terms, we may be required to develop alternative
intellectual property at our expense to mitigate potential harm.

Risks Relating to Qur Common Stock

No History of Dividend Payments

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We may retain future
earnings, if any, for the development of our business and we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on
or repurchasing our common stock in the foreseeable future. Any determinations by us to pay cash
dividends on our common stock in the future or repurchase our common stock will be based primarily
upon our financial condition, results of operations and business requirements. The terms of our credit
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agreement and our indentures contain provisions permitting the payment of cash dividends and stock
repurchases subject to certain limitations.
Risks Relating to Our Indebtedness

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial heaith and prevent us from fulfilling our
obligations under our various debt instruments.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. The following table shows important credit statistics
as of December 31, 2007:

At December 31, 2007
(Dollars in millions)

Total long-term debt . . . ... .. . . $3,266.3
Stockholders’ equity . ... .. ... .. . e $1,795.5
Debttoequityratio .. ...... ... ..ottt i 1.82x

Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences to you. Our indebtedness may i
increase as we continue to borrow under existing and future credit arrangements in order to finance !
future acquisitions and for general corporate purposes, which would increase the associated risks. These
risks include:

* inability to satisfy our obligations with respect to our various debt instruments;
* inability to adjust to adverse economic conditions;

| * inability to fund future working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general
corporate requirements, including possible required repurchases of our various indebtedness;

+ limits on our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the
information protection and storage services industry;

* limits on future borrowings under our existing or future credit arrangements, which could affect
our ability to pay our indebtedness or to fund our other liquidity needs;

* inability to generate sufficient funds to cover required interest payments; and

* restrictions on our ability to refinance our indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms.

Restrictive loan covenants may limit our ability to pursue our growth strategy.

Our credit facility and our indentures contain covenants restricting or limiting our ability to, among .
other things:

* incur additional indebtedness; :
* pay dividends or make other restricted payments;
* make asset dispositions;

* create or permit liens; and

* make capital expenditures and other investments.

These restrictions may adversely affect our ability to pursue our acquisition and other growth
strategies.

|
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We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to finance the repurchase of outstanding senior
subordinated indebtedness upon a change of control event as required by our indentures.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control, we will be required to offer to repurchase all
outstanding senior subordinated indebtedness. However, it is possible that we will not have sufficient
funds at the time of the change of control to make the required repurchase of the notes or that
restrictions in our revolving credit facility will not allow such repurchases. In addition, certain important
corporate events, such as leveraged recapitalizations that would increase the level of our indebtedness,
would not constitute a “change of control” under our indentures.

Since Iron Mountain is a holding company, our ability to make payments on our various debt obligations
depends in part on the operations of our subsidiaries.

Iron Mountain is a holding company, and substantially all of our assets consist of the stock of our
subsidiaries and substantially all of our operations are conducted by our direct and indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries. As a result, our ability to make payments on our various debt obligations will be
dependent upon the receipt of sufficient funds from our subsidiaries. However, our various debt -
obligations are guaranteed, on a joint and several and full and unconditional basis, by most, but not all,
of our direct and indirect wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries.

Acquisition and International Expansion Risks
Failure 10 manage our growth may impact operating results.

If we succeed in expanding our businesses, that expansion may place increased demands on our
management, operating systems, internal controls and financial and physical resources. If not managed
effectively, these increased demands may adversely affect the services we provide to- existing customers.
In addition, our personnel, systems, procedures and controls may be inadequate to support future
operations. Consequently, in order to manage growth effectively, we may be required to increase
expenditures to increase our physical resources, expand, train and manage our employee base, improve
management, financial and information systems and controls, or make other capital expenditures. Our
results of operations and financial condition could be harmed if we encounter difficulties in effectively
managing the budgeting, forecasting and other process control issues presented by future growth.

Failure to successfully integrate acquired operations could negatively impact our future results of operations.

The success of any acquisition depends in part on our ability to integrate the acquired company.
The process of integrating acquired businesses may involve unforeseen difficulties and may require a
disproportionate amount of our management’s attention and our financial and other resources. We can
give no assurance that we will ultimately be able to effectively integrate and manage the operations of
any acquired business. Nor can we assure you that we will be able to maintain or improve the historical
financial performance of Iron Mountain or our acquisitions. The failure to successfully integrate these
cultures, operating systems, procedures and information technologies could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations.

We may be unable to continue our international expansion.

Our growth strategy involves expanding operations into international markets, and we expect to
continue this expansion. Europe and Latin America have been our primary areas of focus for
international expansion and we have begun our expansion into the Asia Pacific region. We have entered
into joint ventures and have acquired all or a majority of the equity in information protection and
storage services businesses operating in these areas and are actively pursuing additional opportunities.
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This growth strategy involves risks. We may be unable to pursue this strategy in the future. For
example, we may be unable to:

* identify suitable companies to acquire;
+ complete acquisitions on satisfactory terms;

* incur additional debt necessary to acquire suitable companies if we are unable to pay the
purchase price out of working capital, common stock or other equity securities; or

* enter into successful business arrangements for technical assistance or management and
acquisition expertise outside of the U.S.

We also compete with other information protection and storage services providers for companies
to acquire. Some of our competitors may possess substantial financial and other resources. If any such
competitor were to devote additional resources to pursue such acquisition candidates or focus its
strategy on our international markets, the purchase price for potential acquisitions, or investments
could rise, competition in international markets could increase and our results of operations could be
adversely affected.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None,

Item 2. Properties.

As of December 31, 2007, we conducted operations through 814 leased facilities and 220 facilities
that we own. Our facilities are divided among our reportable segments as follows: North American
Physical Business (702), International Physical Business (318) and Worldwide Digital Business (14).
These facilities contain a total of 64.7 million square feet of space. Facility rent expense was
$169.9 million and $197.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The
leased facilities typically have initial lease terms of ten to fifteen years with one or more five year
options to extend. In addition, some of the leases contain either a purchase option or a right of first
refusal upon the sale of the property. Our facilities are located throughout North America, Europe,
Latin America and Asia Pacific, with the largest number of facilities in California, Florida, Illinois, New
Jersey, Texas, Canada and the U.K. We believe that the space available in our facilities is adequate to
meet our current needs, although future growth may require that we acquire additional real property
either by leasing or purchasing. See Note 10 1o Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
information regarding our minimum annual rental commitments.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Louisiana Office of Student Financial Assistance Proceedings

On September 19, 2007, back-up media belonging to one of our customers, the Louisiana Office of
Student Financial Assistance (“LOSFA”), was lost while being transported to the customer’s office, We
immediately undertook and continue to engage in efforts to locate the media and we promptly notified
LOSFA and appropriate law enforcement anthorities; however, to date, the media has not been found.
Beginning on October 15, 2007, LOSFA issued one or more press releases and other public
communications advising of the loss, indicating that personally identifiable information was on the
media and advising persons who might be affected as to how to protect themselves against possible
identity theft and fraund. LOSFA has demanded that we indemnify it in connection with any losses
arising from the lost media. In late October 2007 and early November 2007, actions seeking to
represent a purported class of allegedly affected individuals were filed in state courts in West Baton
Rouge, Louisiana, in the 18th Judicial District for the Parish of West Baton Rouge (West Baton
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Rouge), in New Orleans, Louisiana, in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans (New
Orleans), and in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana (Eastern District
of Louisiana). These actions seek monetary damages under various theories of liability as a result of
the lost media. We removed the first of those actions (West Baton Rouge) to the United States District
Court for the Middle District of Louisiana where, subsequently, it was voluntarily dismissed. We
removed the second action {(New Orleans) to the United States District Court for the Eastern District
of Louisiana, where it was consolidated with the third such action, Melancon, et al. v. Louisiana Office
of Student Financial Assistance, et al. (Eastern District of Louisiana). We have formally answered the
complaints in these two remaining actions, denying liability and asserting various affirmative defenses.
We have also notified our insurers and intend to continue to defend these cases vigorously.

London Fire

In July 2006, we experienced a significant fire in a leased records and information management
facility in London, England that resulted in the complete destruction of the facility and its contents.
The London Fire Brigade issued a report in which it was concluded that the fire resulted from human
agency, i.e., arson, and its report to the Home Office concluded that the fire resulted from a deliberate
act. The London Fire Brigade also concluded that the installed sprinkler system failed to controi the
fire due to the primary fire pump being disabled prior to the fire and the standby fire pump being
disabled in the early stages of the fire by third-party contractors. We have received notices of claims
from customers or their subrogated insurance carriers under various theories of liabilities arising out of
lost data and/or records as a result of the fire. We deny any liability in respect of the London fire and
we have referred these claims to our primary warchouse legal liability insurer for an appropriate
response. Certain of the claims have also been settled for nominal amounts, typically one to two British
pounds sterling per carton, as specified in the contracts, which amounts have been or will be
reimbursed to us from our primary property insurer. On or about April 12, 2007, a firm of British
solicitors representing 31 customers and/or their subrogated insurers has filed a Claim Form in the
(U.K.) High Court of Justice, Queen’s Bench Division, seeking unspecified damages in excess of
15 thousand British pounds sterling on account of the records belonging to those customers that were
destroyed in the fire. We have also been informed that, on or about April 20, 2007, another firm of
British solicitors representing 21 customers and/or their subrogated insurer also filed a Claim Form in
the same court seeking provisional damages of approximately 15 million British pounds sterling on
account of the records belonging to those customers that were destroyed in the fire. Both of those
matters are being held in abeyance by agreement between the claimants and the solicitors appointed by
our primary warehouse legal liability carrier and some of them have been settled for nominal amounts.
However, many of these claims, including larger ones, remain outstanding. On or about October 17,
2007, our primary warehouse legal liability carrier, in the name of our subsidiary Iron Mountain (U.K.)
Limited, filed a Claim Form with the (U.K.) High Court of Justice, Queen’s Bench Division,
Commercial Court, against The Virgin Drinks Group Limited, a customer who had records destroyed
in the fire, seeking a declaration to the effect that our liability to that customer is limited to a
maximum of one British pound sterling per carton of lost records and, in any event, to a maximum of
0.5 million British pound sterling in the aggregate, in accordance with the parties’ contract. Detailed
Particulars of Claim in respect of that matter were filed and served on January 18, 2008. Finally, we
have recently been served with a counterclaim for 5 thousand British pounds sterling by Sucre Export
London Ltd., a customer which lost records in the fire, in connection with a UK. Small Claims Court
action in which we are seeking approximately 3.5 thousand British pounds sterling in unpaid charges
that are not disputed by the customer. We have referred that matter as well to our primary warehouse
legal liability insurer for a formal response. We deny any liability to Sucre Export London Ltd. in
respect of its Small Claims Court counterclaim.

We believe we carry adequate property and liability insurance. We do not expect that this event
will have a material impact to our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.
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General

In addition to the matters discussed above, we are involved in litigation from time to time in the
ordinary course of business with a portion of the defense and/or settlement costs being covered by
various commercial liability insurance policies purchased by us. In the opinion of management, no
material legal proceedings are pending to which we, or any of our properties, are subject.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Helders.

There were no matters submitted 10 a vote of security holders of Iron Mountain during the fourth
quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol
“IRM.” On December 7, 2006, our board authorized and approved a three-for-two stock split effected
in the form of a dividend on our common stock. We issued the additional shares of common stock
resulting from this stock dividend on December 29, 2006 to all stockholders of record as of the close of
business on December 18, 2006.

The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices on the NYSE, for the years 2006 and
2007, giving effect to such stock split:

Sale Prices
High Low

2006

First QUATLET - o - oottt e e i et et et et e ettt aa e i $29.91 $26.29

SeCONd OUATEET .« o o o et s e et st et e e et 2724 2291

ThITA OUAIIET « o o st e et e et e e e e e e bt et e e e 2948  22.64

Fourth QUarter . . oo ot e it et e e et et e e e e e e e e 2972 27.03
2007

FIESt QUAITET . o o o vttt it et e e e e e e e e e $29.23  $25.80

Second UATEET . . . vttt e ettt e e e e e 2900 25.05

ThiTd UA e . . . . it et et et e e e e 30.90  25.75

Fourth Quarter . . . . ot e e e e e e e 3885 3048

The closing price of our common stock on the NYSE on February 15, 2008 was $33.84. As of
February 15, 2008, there were 546 holders of record of our common stock. We believe that there are
more than 79,000 beneficial owners of our common stock.

The only dividends we have paid on our common stock during the last two years was the stock
dividend paid in connection with the stock split referenced above. Our Board may retain future
earnings, if any, for the development of our business and does not anticipate paying cash dividends on
or repurchasing our commeon stock in the foreseeable future. Any determinations by our Board to pay
cash dividends on our common stock in the future or repurchase our common stock will be based
primarily upon our financial condition, results of operations and business requirements. The terms of
our credit agreement and our indentures contain provisions permitting the payment of cash dividends
and stock repurchases subject to certain limitations.

There was no common stock repurchased or sales of unregistered securities for the fourth quarter
ended December 31, 2007.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected consolidated statements of operations, balance sheet and other data have
been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The selected consolidated financial
and operating information set forth below, giving effect to stock splits, should be read in conjunction
with Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
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Operations” and our Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto included elsewhere in

this filing.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Data:
Revenues:
Storage
Service and Storage Material Sales .. ..

Total Revenues . .. ..............
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation
and amortization) .. .............
Selling, General and Administrative . . . .
Depreciation and Amortization . . .. ..,
Loss (Gain) on Disposal/Writedown of
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net. .

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income .. ................
Interest Expense, Net
Other (Income) Expense, Net. ... ... ...

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes
and Minority Interest .. ............

Provision for Income Taxes. . ... .......

Minority Interests in Earnings of
Subsidiaries, Net

Income before Cumulative Effect of
Change in Accounting Principle. . ... ..

Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle (net of tax benefit)

NetIncome ................ ... ....

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
{In thousands_, except per share data)
$ 875,035 $1,043,366 $1,181,551 $1,327,169 $1,499,074
626,294 774,223 896,604 1,023,173 1,230,961
1,501,329 1,817,589 2,078,155 2,350,342 2,730,035
680,747 823,809 938,239 1,074,268 1,260,120
383,641 486,246 569,695 670,074 771,375
130,918 163,629 186,922 208,373 249,294
1,130 (681)  (3,485) (9,560)  (5,472)
1,196,436 1,473,093 1;691,371 1,943,155 2,275,317
304,893 344496 386,784 407,187 454,718
150,468 185,749 183,584 194,958 228,593
(2,564)  (7,988) 6,182 (11,989) . 3,101
156,989 166,735 197,018 224,218 223,024
66,730 69,574 81,484 93,795 69,010
5,622 2,970 1,684 1,560 920
84,637 94,191 113,850 128,863 153,094
— — @5 — —

$ 84637 % 94,191 § 111,099

$ 128,863 § 153,094
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net Income per Common Share—Basic:
Income before Cumulative Effect of Change in

Accounting Principle . . .. ............. . § 04 $ 049 $ 058 §& 065 $ 077
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle (net of tax benefit) ............ — — (0.01) — —
Net Income—Basic .................... $ 044 $ 049 $ 057 § 065 $ 0.77

Net Income. per Common Share—Diluted:
Income before Cumulative Effect of Change in

Accounting Principle . . ................ $ 043 § 048 $ 057 $§ 064 § 076
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle (net of tax benefit) ............ - —_ (0.01) - —
Net Income—Diluted . . ................. $ 043 $ 048 8§ 056 $ 064 $ 0.76
Weighted Average Common Shares ‘

Qutstanding—Basic. . ................. 191,851 193,625 195988 198,116 199,938
Weighted Average Common Shares

Qutstanding— Diluted ................ 195,116 196,764 198,104 200,463 202,062
(footnotes follow)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(In thousands)

Other Data:

OIBDA(1) . ...t $435,811 $508,125 $573,706 $615,560 $704,012
OIBDA Margin(1) ... ... e 29.0% 28.0% 27.6% 26.2% 25.8%
Ratio of Eamnings to Fixed Charges. .. ...... 18x 1.7 x 1.8 x 1.8 x 1.7 x

As of December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 . 2007
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: .
Cash and Cash Equivalents ........ $ 74683 $ 31942 § 53,413 $§ 45369 § 125,607
Total Assets. . .................. 3,892,099 4,442,387 4,766,140 5,209,521 6,307,921
Total Long-Term Debt (including

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt) 2,089,928 2,478,022 2,529,431 2,668,816 3,266,288
Stockholders’ Equity ....... e 1,066,114 1,218,568 1,370,129 1,553,273 1,795,455
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Reconciliation of OIBDA to Operating Income and Net Income:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004 2008 2006 2007
(In thousands)
OIBDA(1) . .......... .. . 3435811 $508,125 $573,706 $615,560 $704,012
Less: Depreciation and Amortization. . ... ... 130,918 163,629 186,922 208,373 249,294
Operating Income . .................... 304,893 344496 386,784 407,187 454,718
Less: Interest Expense, Net. .. .... e 150,468 185,749 183,584 194,958 228,593
Other (Income) Expense, Net .. ......... (2,564) (7,988) 6,182  (11,989) 3,101
Provision for Income Taxes . ............ 66,730 69,574 81,484 93,795 69,010
Minority Interests in Earnings of Subsidiaries 5,622 2,970 1,684 1,560 920
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle (net of tax benefit) .......... — — 2,751(2) — —
Netlncome .................cov... $ 84,637 $ 94,191 $111,099 $128,863 $153,094
(footnotes follow)

(1) OIBDA is defined as operating income before depreciation and amortization expenses. OIBDA
Margin is calculated by dividing OIBDA by total revenues. For a more detailed definition and
reconciliation of OIBDA and a discussion of why we believe these measures provide relevant and
useful information to our current and potential investors, see Item 7. “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Measures.”

(2) Effective December 31, 2005, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.” As a result, a non-cash charge of $2,751 net of tax
benefit was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2005 as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. See Note 2(f) to Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with “ltem 6. Selected Financial Data” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and the other financial and operating information
included elsewhere in this filing.

This discussion contains “forward-looking statements,” as that term is defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and in other federal securities laws. See “Cautionary Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” on page ii of this filing and “Item 1A. Risk Factors”
beginning on page 14 of this filing.

Overview

Our revenues consist of storage revenues as well as service and storage material sales revenues.
Storage revenues, both physical and digital, which are considered a key performance indicator for the
information protection and storage services industry, consist of largely recurring periodic charges
related to the storage of materials or data (generally on a per unit basis), which are typically retained
by customers for many years, and have accounted for over 54% of total consolidated revenues in each
of the last five years. Our quarterly revenues from these fixed periodic storage fees have grown for 76
consecutive quarters. Service and storage material sales revenues are comprised of charges for related
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service activities and courier operations and the sale of software licenses and storage materials.
Included in service and storage materials sales are related core service revenues arising from: (1) the
handling of records including the addition of new records, temporary removal of records from storage,
refiling of removed records, destruction of records, and permanent withdrawals from storage;

(2) courier operations, consisting primarily of the pickup and delivery of records upon customer
request; (3) secure shredding of sensitive documents; and (4) other recurring services including
maintenance and support contracts. Our complementary services revenues, included in service and
storage material sales, arise from special project work, including data restoration, providing fulfiltment
services, consulting services and product sales, including software licenses, specially designed storage
containers, magnetic media {including computer tapes) and related supplies. Our secure shredding
revenues include the sale of recycled paper, the price of which can fluctuate from period to period,
adding to the volatility and reducing the predictability of that revenue stream. As service and storage
material sales and complementary services have grown at a faster pace then our storage revenues, '
storage revenues as a percent of consolidated revenues has declined. Our consolidated revenues are
also subject to variations caused by the net effect of foreign currency translation on revenue derived
from outside the U.S. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, we derived
approximately 28%, 30% and 32%, respectively, of our total revenues from outside the U.S.

We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectability of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Storage and service revenues are recognized in the month
the respective storage or service is provided and customers are generally billed on a monthly basis on
contractually agreed-upon terms. Amounts related to future storage or prepaid service contracts,
including maintenance and support contracts, for customers where storage fees or services are billed in
advance, are accounted for as deferred revenue and recognized ratably over the applicable storage or
service period or when the service is performed. Storage material sales are recognized when shipped to
the customer and title has passed to the customer and include software license sales. Sales of software
licenses to distributors are recognized at the time a distributor reports that the software has been
licensed to an end-user and all revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Cost of sales (excluding depreciation) consists primarily of wages and benefits for field personnel,
facility occupancy costs {including rent and utilities), transportation expenses (including vehicle leases
and fuel), other product cost of sales and other equipment costs and supplies. Of these, wages and
benefits and facility occupancy costs are the most significant, Trends in total wages and benefits dollars
and as a percentage of total consolidated revenue are influenced by changes in headcount and
compensation levels, achievement of incentive compensation targets, workforce productivity and
variability in costs associated with medical insurance and workers compensation. Trends in facility
occupancy costs are similarly impacted by the total number of facilities we occupy, the mix of
properties we own versus properties we occupy under operating leases, fluctuations in per square foot
occupancy costs, and the levels of utilization of these properties.

The expansion of our European, secure shredding and digital services businesses has impacted the
major cost of sales components. Our European and secure shredding operations are more labor
intensive than our core U.S. physical businesses and therefore increase our labor costs as a percent of
consolidated revenues. This trend is partially offset by our digital services businesses, which require
significantly less direct labor. Our secure shredding operations incur less facility costs and higher -
transportation costs as a percent of revenues compared to our core physical businesses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of wages and benefits for
management, administrative, information technology, sales, account management and marketing
personnel, as well as expenses related to communications and data processing, travel, professional fees,
bad debts, training, office equipment and supplies. Trends in total wages and benefits dollars and as a
percentage of total consolidated revenue are influenced by changes in headcount and compensation

27




levels, achievement of incentive compensation targets, workforce productivity and variability in costs
associated with medical insurance. The overhead structure of our expanding European and Asian
operations, as compared to our North American operations, is more labor intensive and has not
achieved the same level of overhead leverage, which may result in an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses, as a percentage of consolidated revenue, as our European and Asian
operations become a more meaningful percentage of our consolidated results. Similarly, our digital
services business requires a higher level of overhead, partigularly in the area of information technology,
than our core physical businesses.

Our adoption of the measurement provisions of SFAS No. 123 as amended by SFAS No. 148 has
resulted in increasing amounts of selling, general and administrative expenses. We began using the fair
value method of accounting for stock-based compensation in our financial statements beginning
January 1, 2003 using the prospective method. The prospective method involves recognizing expense for
the fair value for all awards granted or modified in the year of adoption and thereafter with no expense
recognition for previous awards. We adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” effective
January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method, as permitted under SFAS No. 123R. We record
stock-based compensation expense for the cost of stock options, restricted stock and shares issued
under the employee stock purchase plan based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R beginning
January 1, 2006.

Our depreciation and amortization charges result primarily from the capital-intensive nature of our
business. The principal components of depreciation relate to storage systems, which inciude racking,
building and leasehold improvements, computer systems hardware and software, and buildings.
Amortization relates primarily to customer relationships and acquisition costs and core technology and
is impacted by the nature and timing of acquisitions.

Our consolidated revenues and expenses are subject to variations caused by the net effect of
foreign currency translation on revenues and expenses incurred by our entities outside the U.S. In 2006,
we saw increases in both revenues and expenses as a result of the strengthening of the Canadian dollar
against the U.S. dollar, and decreases in both revenues and expenses as a result of the weakening of
the British pound sterling and the Euro, based on an analysis of weighted average rates for the
comparable periods. During 2007, we have seen increases in both revenues and expenses as a result of
the strengthening of the Canadian dollar, Euro and British pound sterling against the U.S. dollar, based
on an analysis of weighted average rates for the comparable periods. It is difficult to predict how much
foreign currency exchange rates will fluctuate in the future and how those fluctuations will impact
individual balances reported in our consolidated statement of operations. Given the relative increase in
our international operations, these fluctuations may become material on individual balances. However,
because both the revenues and expenses are denominated in the local currency of the country in which
they are derived or incurred, the impact of currency fluctuations on our operating income, operating
margin and net income is mitigated.

a

Non-GAAP Measures
Operating Income Before Depreciation and Amortization, or OIBDA

OIBDA is defined as operating income before depreciation and amortization expenses. OIBDA
Margin is calculated by-dividing OIBDA by total revenues. We use these measures to evaluate the
operating performance of our consolidated business. As such, we believe these measures provide
relevant and useful information to our current and potential investors. We use OIBDA for planning
purposes and muitiples of current or projected OIBDA-based calculations in conjunction with our
discounted cash flow models to determine our overall enterprise valuation and to evaluate acquisition
targets. We believe OIBDA and OIBDA Margin are useful measures to evaluate our ability to grow
our revenues faster than our operating expenses and they are an integral part of the internal reporting
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system we use to assess and evaluate the operating performance of our business. OIBDA does not
include certain items that we believe are not indicative of our core operating results, specifically:

(1) minority interest in earnings (losses) of subsidiaries, net (2) other (income) expense, net (3) income
from discontinued operations and loss on sale of discontinued operations and (4) cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle. OIBDA also does not include interest expense, net and the provision
for income taxes. These expenses are associated with our capitalization and tax structures, which we do
not consider when evaluating the operating profitability of our core operations. Finally, OIBDA does
not include depreciation and amortization expenses, in order to eliminate the impact of capital
investments, which we evaluate by comparing capital expenditures to incremental revenue generated
and as a percentage of total revenues. OIBDA and OIBDA Margin should be considered in addition
to, but not as a substitute for, other measures of financial performance reported in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America, or GAAP, such as operating
or net income or cash flows from operating activities (as determined in accordance with GAAP).

Reconciliation of OIBDA to Operating Income and Net Income (In Thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

OIBD A . e e e $573,706  $615,560 $704,012

Less: Depreciation and Amortization ........................ 186,922 208,373 249,294

Operating Income .. ... i i 386,784 407,187 454,718

Less: Interest Expense, Net .. ........ ... . i 183,584 194,958 228,593

Other (Income) Expense, Net .. ........................ 6,182 (11,989) 3,101

*Provision for InCome TAXES . . v v v v v vt v v me e ae e e 81,484 93,795 69,010

Minority Interests in Earnings of Subsidiaries. .. ... ......... 1,684 1,560 920
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

(netoftaxbenefit) . ...... ... ... ... ... ... .. il 2,751 — —

Net INCOme ..ottt e it et et e $111,099 3128863 $153,094

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are'based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The
preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and for the period then ended.
On an on-going basis, we evaluate the estimates used, including those related to accounting for
acquisitions, allowance for doubtful accounts and credit memos, impairment of tangible and intangible
assets, income taxes, stock-based compensation and self-insured liabilities. We base our estimates on
historical experience, actuarial estimates, current conditions and various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Our critical accounting policies include the following,
which are listed in no particular order:

Accounting for Acquisitions

Part of our growth strategy has included the acquisition of numerous businessés. The purchase
price of these acquisitions has been determined after due diligence of the acquired business, market
research, strategic planning, and the forecasting of expected future results and synergies. Estimated
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future results and expected synergies are subject to revisions as we integrate each acquisition and
attempt to leverage resources.

Each acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting as defined
under the applicable accounting standards at the date of each acquisition, including, Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 16, “Accounting for Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations.” Accounting for these acquisitions has resulted in the capitalization of the
cost in excess of fair value of the net assets acquired in each of these acquisitions as goodwill. We
estimated the fair values of the assets acquired in each acquisition as of the date of acquisition and
these estimates are subject to adjustment. These estimates are subject to final assessments of the fair
value of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, operating leases and deferred income taxes.
We complete these assessments within one year of the date of acquisition. We are not aware of any
information that would indicate that the final purchase price allocations for acquisitions completed in
2007 would differ meaningfully from preliminary estimates. See Note 6 to Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In connection with each of our acquisitions, we have undertaken certain restructurings of the
acquired businesses to realize efficiencies and potential cost savings. Qur restructuring activities include
the elimination of duplicate facilities, reductions in staffing levels, and other costs associated with
exiting certain activities of the businesses we acquire. The estimated cost of these restructuring
activities are included as costs of the acquisition and are recorded as goodwill consistent with the
guidance of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilities in
Connection with a Purchase Business Combination.” While we finalize our plans to restructure the
businesses we acquire within one year of the date of acquisition, it may take more than one year to
complete all activities related to the restructuring of an acquired business.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Credit Memos

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts and credit memos for estimated losses resulting
from the potential inability of our customers to make required payments and disputes regarding billing
and service issues. When calculating the allowance, we consider our past loss experience, current and
prior trends in our aged receivables and credit memo activity, current economic conditions, and specific
circumstances of individual receivable balances. If the financial condition of our customers were to
significantly change, resulting in a significant improvement or impairment of their ability to make
payments, an adjustment of the allowance may be required. We consider accounts receivable to be
delinquent after such time as reasonable means of collection have been exhausted. We charge off
uncoilectible balances as circumstances warrant, generally, no later than one year past due. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, our allowance for doubtful accounts and credit memos balance totaled
$15.2 million and $19.2 million, respectively.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Assets subject to amortization: In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we review long-lived assets and all amortizable intangible assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of such assets
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted
undiscounted net cash flows of the operation to which the assets relate to their carrying amount. The
operations are generally distinguished by the business segment and geographic region in which they
operate. If the operation is determined to be unable to recover the carrying amount of its assets, then
intangible assets are written down first, followed by the other long-lived assets of the operation, to fair
value. Fair value is based on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending upon the nature of
the assets.
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Goodwill—Assets not subject to amortization: 'We apply the provisions of SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets” to goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives which are not
amortized but are reviewed annually for impairment or more frequently if impairment indicators arise.
We have selected October 1 as our annual goodwill impairment review date. We performed our annual
goodwill impairment review as of October 1, 2005, 2006 and 2007 and noted no impairment of
goodwill. In making this assessment, we rely on a number of factors including operating results,
business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, and transactions and market place
data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and our judgment in applying them to
the analysis of goodwill impairment. As of December 31, 2007, no factors were identified that would
alter this assessment. When changes occur in the composition of one or more reporting units, the
goodwill is reassigned to the reporting units affected based on their relative fair values. Goodwill
valuations have been calculated using an income approach based on the present value of future cash
flows of each reporting unit. This approach incorporates many assumptions including future growth
rates, discount factors, expected capital expenditures and income tax cash flows. Changes in economic
and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in a goodwill impairment in future
periods. Qur reporting units at which level we performed our goodwill impairment analysis as of
October 31, 2007 were as follows: North America excluding Fulfilment; Fulfillment; U.K.; Continental
Europe; Worldwide Digital Business excluding Iron Mountain Intellectual Property Management, Inc.
(“IPM™); IPM; South America; Mexico and Asia Pacific. Asia Pacific is primarily composed of recent
acquisitions. It is still in the development stage and accordingly its fair value does not exceed its
carrying value by a significant margin at this point in time.

Accounting for Internal Use Software

We develop various software applications for internal use. We account for those costs in
accordance with the provisions of Statement of Position (“SOP”’) 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” SOP 98-1 requires computer software
costs associated with internal use software to be expensed as incurred until certain capitalization
criteria are met. SOP 98-1 also defines which types of costs should be capitalized and which should be
expensed. Payroll and related costs for employees who are directly associated with, and who devote
time to, the development of internal use computer software projects, to the extent time is spent directly
on the project, are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the software.
Capitalization begins when the design stage of the project has been completed and it is probable that
the application will be completed and used to perform the function intended. Depreciation begins when
the software is placed in service. Computer software costs that are capitalized are evalvated for
impairment in accordance with SFAS No.144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.”

It may be necessary for us to write-off amounts associated with the development of internal use
software if the project cannot be completed as intended. Our expansion into new technology-based
service offerings requires the development of internal use software that will be susceptible to rapid and
significant changes in technology. We may be required to write-off unamortized costs or shorten the
estimated useful life if an internal use software program is replaced with an alternative tool prior to the
end of the software’s estimated useful life. General uncertainties related to expansion into digital
businesses, including the timing of introduction and market acceptance of our services, may adversely
impact the recoverability of these assets. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, capitalized labor net of
accumulated depreciation was $38.4 million and $47.5 million, respectively. See Note 2(f) to Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we discontinued after implementation a product and
wrote-off $1.3 million of previously deferred software costs to loss on disposal/writedown of property,
plant and equipment, net. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we wrote-off $6.3 million of
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previously deferred costs, primarily internal labor costs, associated with internal use software
development projects that were discontinued prior to being implemented, and such costs are included
as a component of selling, general and administrative expenses. During the year ended December 31,
2005, we replaced internal use software programs, which resulted in the write-off to loss on disposal/
writedown of property, plant and equipment, net of the remaining net book value of $1.1 million.

Income Taxes

We have recorded a valuation allowance, amounting to $43.4 million as of December 31, 2007, to
reduce our deferred tax assets, primarily associated with certain state and foreign net operating loss
carryforwards, to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized. Additionally, we have federal
alternative minimurn tax credit carryforwards of $11.8 million, which have no expiration date and are
available to reduce future income taxes, if any, and foreign tax credits of $56.1 million, which begin to
expire in 2016. Based on current expectations and plans, we expect to fully utilize our foreign tax credit
carryforwards prior to their expiration. If actual results differ unfavorably from certain of our estimates
used, we may not be able to realize all or part of our net deferred income tax assets and foreign tax
credit carryforwards and additional valuation allowances may be required. Although we believe our
estimates are reasonable, no assurance can be given that our estimates reflected in the tax provisions
and accruals will equal our actual results. These differences could have a material impact on our
income tax provision and operating results in the period in which such determination is made.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), an interpretation of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(“SFAS No. 109”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a
company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN 48 is a two-step process. The first step is a
recognition process whereby the company determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax
position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is a measurement process
whereby a tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is calculated to
determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured
at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement.

The provisions of FIN 48 are to be applied to all tax positions upon initial adoption of this
standard. Only tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold at the effective
date may be recognized or continue to be recognized upon adoption of FIN 48, The cumulative effect
of applying the provisions of FIN 48 should be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings for that fiscal year.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 and, as a result, we recognized a
$16.6 million increase in the reserve related to uncertain tax positions, which was accounted for as a
reduction to the January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. Additionally, we grossed-up deferred tax
assets and the reserve related to uncertain tax positions in the amount of $7.9 million related to the
federal tax benefit associated with certain state reserves. As of January 1, 2007, our reserve related to
uncertain tax positions, which is included in other long-term liabilities, amounted to $84.0 million. Of
this amount, approximately $35.4 million, if settled favorably, would reduce our recorded goodwill
balance, with the remainder being recognized as a reduction of income tax expense.

We are subject to examination by various tax authorities in jurisdictions in which we have
significant business operations. We regularly assess the likelihood of additional assessments by tax

32




authorities and provide for these matters as appropriate. As of December 31, 2007, we had
approximately $72.9 million of reserves related to uncertain tax positions. Of this amount,
approximately $27.0 million, if settled favorably, would reduce our recorded goodwill balance, with the
remainder being recognized as a reduction of income tax expense. Although we believe our tax
estimates are appropriate, the final determination of tax audits and any related litigation could result in
favorable or unfavorable changes in our estimates.

We have elected to recognize interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as a
component of the provision for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. We recorded $0.2 million, $0.9 million and $1.2 million for interest and penalties for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

We have $4.3 million and $3.6 million accrued for the payment of interest and penalties as of
January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

We have not provided deferred taxes on book basis differences related to certain foreign
subsidiaries because such basis differences are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future and we
intend to reinvest indefinitely outside the U.S. These basis differences arose primarily through the
undistributed book earnings of our foreign subsidiaries. The basis differences could be reversed through
a sale of the subsidiaries, the receipt of dividends from subsidiaries as well as certain other events or
actions on our part, which would result in an increase in our provision for income taxes.

Stock-Based Compensation

As of January 1, 2003, we adopted the measurement provisions of SFAS No. 123, as amended by
SFAS No. 148. As a result we began using the fair value method of accounting for stock-based
compensation in our financial statements beginning January 1, 2003 using the prospective method. We
adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method. We record
stock-based compensation expense for the cost of stock options, restricted stock and shares issued
under the employee stock purchase plan based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R. Stock-based
compensation expense, included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $6.2 million ($4.8 million after tax or $0.02 per
basic and diluted share), $12.4 million ($9.2 million after tax or $0.05 per basic and diluted share) and
$13.9 million ($10.2 miilion after tax or $0.05 per basic and diluted shares), respectively.

SFAS No. 123R also requires that the benefits associated with the tax deductions in excess of
recognized compensation cost be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash
flow, reducing net operating cash flows and increasing net financing cash flows in future periods.

The fair values of option, employee stock purchase and restricted stock grants are estimated on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility and the expected term
are the input factors to that model which require the most significant management judgment. Expected
volatility is calculated utilizing daily historical volatility over a period that equates to the expected life
of the option..The expected life (estimated period of time outstanding) is estimated using the historical
exercise behavior of employees.

Self-Insured Liabilities

We are self-insured up to certain limits for costs associated with workers’ compensation claims,
vehicle accidents, property and general business liabilities, and benefits paid under employee healthcare
and short-term disability programs. At December 31, 2006 and 2007 there were approximately
$28.2 million and $33.5 million, respectively, of self-insurance accruals reflected in our consolidated
balance sheets. The measurement of these costs requires the consideration of historical cost experience
and judgments about the present and expected levels of cost per claim. We account for these costs
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primarily through actuarial methods, which develop estimates of the undiscounted liability for claims
incurred, including those claims incurred but not reported. These methods provide estimates of future
ultimate claim costs based on claims incurred as of the balance sheet date.

We believe the use of actuarial methods to account for these liabilities provides a consistent and
effective way to measure these highly judgmental accruals. However, the use of any estimation
technique in this area is inherently sensitive given the magnitude of claims involved and the length of
time until the ultimate cost is known. We believe our recorded obligations for these expenses are
appropriate. Nevertheless, changes in healthcare costs, accident frequency and severity, and other
factors can materially affect the estimates for these liabilities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”
(““SFAS No. 157"). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements, and is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. We do not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations. In February 2008, the FASB delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonrecurring
fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities until fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2008.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 1157 (“SFAS No. 159”).
SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items
at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 159 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS No. 141R”), and SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statement—an amendment to ARB No. 517 (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 141R and No. 160 will
require (a) more of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed to be measured at fair value as of the
acquisition date, (b) liabilities related to contingent consideration to be remeasured at fair value in
each subsequent period, (c) an acquirer to expense as incurred acquisition-related costs, such as
transaction fees for attorneys, accountants and investment bankers, as well as, costs associated with
restructuring the activities of the acquired company, and (d} noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
initially to be measured at fair value and classified as a separate component of equity. SFAS No. 141R
is effective and provided for prospective application for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008.
SFAS No. 160 is required to apply retrospectively in comparative financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. The impact of SFAS No. 141R and SFAS No. 160 is dependent
upon the level of future acquisitions; however, they will generally result in (1) increased operating costs
associated with the expensing of transaction and restructuring costs, as incurred, (2) increased volatility
in earnings related to the fair valuing of contingent consideration through earnings in subsequent
periods, and (3) increased depreciation, amortization and equity balances associated with the fair
valuing of noncontrolling interests and their classification as a separate component of consolidated
stockholders’ equity.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2007 to Year Ended December 31, 2006 and Comparison of
Year Ended December 31, 2006 to Year Ended December 31, 2005:

Year Ended December 31, Dollar

Percent

2006 2007 Change Change

REVENMUES . ..ottt i i e et $2,350,342  $2,730,035 $379,693 16.2%

Operating Expenses .. ...........c.o0viinai... 1,943,155 2,275,317 332,162 17.1%

Operating Income . .. ...t inn. 407,187 454,718 47,531 11.7%

Other Expenses, Net . . ........... ..o inon.. 278,324 301,624 23,300 84%

NetINCOmMe . ..o vttt e e et e et e $ 128863 § 153,094 § 24231 18.8%

OIBDA(L) ..t i e e $ 615560 §$§ 704,012 §$ 88,452 144%
OIBDA Margin(1) .......... ... ... 26.2% 25.8%

Year Ended December 31, Dollar Percent

2005 2006 Change Change

Revenues . ... .ot i i e $2,078,155 $2,350342 $272,187 131%

Operating Expenses . ........ ... ... ... ooy 1,661,371 1,943,155 251,784 14.9%

OperatingIncome . .. ... i, 386,784 407,187 20,403 5.3%

Other Expenses, Net .. .............. ... 275,685 278,324 2,639 1.0%

NetIncome . .......... e $ 111,099 $ 128863 § 17,764 16.0%

OIBDA(1) . ..ot e i e $ 573,706 §$ 615560 $ 41,854 1.3%
OIBDA Margin(l) .......... . .. 27.6% 262%

(1) See “Non-GAAP Measures—QOperating Income Before Depreciation and Amortization, or
OIBDA” for definition, reconciliation and a discussion of why we believe these measures provide
relevant and useful information to our current and potential investors.

REVENUE

Our consolidated storage revenues increased $171.9 million, or 13.0%, to $1.5 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and $145.6 million, or 12.3%, to $1.3 biilion for the year ended
December 31, 2006, in comparison to the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
increase is attributable to internal revenue growth (8% during 2007 and 10% during 2006) resulting
from solid net carton volume growth and the net result of pricing actions, acquisitions (2% during both
2007 and 2006), and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations (2% during 2007 and 0% during 2006).

Consolidated service and storage material sales revenues increased $207.8 million, or 20.3%, to
$1.2 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007 and $126.6 million, or 14.1%, to $1.0 billion for the
year ended December 31, 2006, in comparison to the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The increase is attributable to internal revenue growth (12% during 2007 and 7% during
2006), which was driven primarily by strong project revenue growth in North America and Europe,
strong growth of recycled paper revenues, and solid storage-related services revenue growth,
acquisitions (5% during 2007 and 7% during 2006), and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations
(3% during 2007 and 0% during 2006).
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For the reasons stated above, our consolidated revenues increased $379.7 million, or 16.2%, to
$2.7 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007 and $272.2 million, or 13.1%, to $2.4 billion for the
year ended December 31, 2006, in comparison to the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Internal revenue growth was 8%, 9% and 10% for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. We calculate internal revenue growth in local currency for our
international operations. Acquisitions contributed 5%, 4% and 3% for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2005, foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations that impacted our revenues were 1% and were primarily due to the strengthening of
the British pound sterling, Canadian dollar and Euro against the U.S. dollar, based on an analysis of
weighted average rates for the comparable periods. For the year ended December 31, 2006, foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations that impacted our revenues were less than 1% and were primarily
due to the weakening of the British pound sterling and Euro, net of the strengthening of the Canadian
dollar, against the U.S. dollar, based on an analysis of weighted average rates for the comparable
periods. For the year ended December 31, 2007, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations that
impacted our revenues were 3% and were primarily due to the strengthening of the British pound
sterling, Canadian dollar and Euro against the U.S. dollar, based on an analysis of weighted average
rates for the comparable periods.

Internal Growth—Eight-Quarter Trend

2006 2007

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Storage Revenue .......... 10% 11% 11% 10% 9% 9% 8% 8%
Service and Storage Material

Sales Revenue .......... 8% 8% 3% 10% 10% 11% 16% 12%
Total Revenue . ........... 10% 9% 7% 10% 9% 10% 12% 10%

Our internal revenue growth rate represents the weighted average year-over-year growth rate of
our revenues afier removing the effects of acquisitions, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations and
the impact of the fire in one of our London, England facilities. Over the past eight quarters, the
internal growth rate of our storage revenues has'decreased from the high end of our targeted range of
10% to 11% to the low end of our targeted range of 8% to 9%. Storage growth in our North American
Physical Business remained within our targeted range and we continued to benefit from a positive
pricing environment. Storage growth in our U.K. business was slightly below our targeted range due
primarily to increased levels of destructions and permanent withdrawals. Strong growth rates in Latin
America, Asia Pacific and in our digital services business further supported consolidated internal
growth. Net carton volume growth is a function of the rate at which new cartons are added by existing
and new customers, offset by the rate of carton destructions and other permanent removals.

The internal growth rate for service and storage material sales revenue is inherently more volatile
than the storage revenue internal growth rate due to the more discretionary nature of the services we
offer, such as large special projects, data products and carton sales, and the price of recycled paper.
These revenues are often event driven and impacted to a greater extent by economic downturns as
customers defer or cancel the purchase of these services as a way to reduce their short-term costs, and
may often be difficult to replicate in future periods. As a commodity, recycled paper prices are subject
to the volatility of that market.

The internal growth rate for service and storage material sales revenues reflects the following:
(1) growth in North American storage-related service revenues, increased special project revenues and
higher recycled paper revenues; (2) two large public sector contracts in Europe, one that was
completed in the third quarter of 2007 and one that will be completed in 2008; (3) continued growth in
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our secure shredding operations; and (4) a large data restoration project completed by our digital
services business in the third quarter of 2005, which created a difficult comparable for the third quarter

of 2006 growth rate.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Cost of Sales

Consolidated cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization) is comprised of the following
expenses (in thousands):

: Percent

Dﬁi;ﬂgeadl’ Dollar Percent __.—% °flfe“‘,2;‘l’l';ga‘°d (Ffvt::‘:!g)fe)/

2006 2007 Change Change 2006 2007 Unfavorable
Labor................ $ 523,401 § 615,059 § 91,658 17.5% 223% 225% 0.2%
Facilities . , ... ......... 321,268 374,529 53,261 16.6% 13.7% 13.7% 0.0%
Transportation ......... 111,086 134,882 23,796 214% 47% 49% 0.2%
Product Cost of Sales . ... 49,853 54,483 4630 93% 21% 20% (0.1)%
Other................ 68,660 81,167 12507 182% 29% 3.0% 0.1%

$1,074,268 $1,260,120 $185852 17.3% 457% 46.1% 0.4%

. Percent
“‘;e;:“?’:g%d" Dollar  Percent _% "Revenues (Fag!;?'gﬁfe)l
2005 2006 Change Change 2005 2006 Unfavorable
Labor ................ $447,600 $ 523,401 § 75801 16.9% 215% 223% 0.8%
Facilities .............. 275,987 321,268 45281 164% 13.3% 13.7% 0.4%
Transportation .......... 97,597 111,086 13,089 13.4% 47% 4.7% 0.0%
Product Cost of Sales . . . .. 51,254 49,853 (1,401) 2N% 25% 21% (04)%
Other ............. . 65,401 68,660 3,259 5.0% 31%  29% (0.2)%

$938,239  $1,074,268 $136,029 145% 451% 45.7% 0.6%

Labor

For the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, labor
expense as a percentage of consolidated revenues increased. This is mainly a result of our recent
shredding and DMS acquisitions in Europe and Latin America, which have a higher service revenue
component and are therefore more labor intensive, offset by Asia Pacific labor decreasing as a
percentage of revenue, as that business begins to scale, as well as the impact of an increasing
percentage of revenue from our digital business which requires significantly less direct labor as a
percentage of revenue compared to our larger physical businesses.

For the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, labor
expense as a percentage of consolidated revenue increased as a result of higher labor costs resulting
from our Australia/New Zealand acquisition and our shredding acquisitions in Europe, which have a
higher service revenue component and are therefore more labor intensive. Our digital business had
higher costs of labor associated with internal information technology personnel and consultants
dedicated to revenue producing projects.
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Facilities

Facilities costs as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, remained unchanged at 13.7%. The largest
component of our facilities cost is rent expense, which increased in dollar terms by $26.2 million while
staying unchanged as a percentage of consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in rent is mainly driven by the timing of
new real estate, which may include duplicative rent and the use of temporary space related to moving
out of substandard facilities obtained through acquisitions. Facilities costs as a percentage of
consolidated revenues was also affected by increases in maintenance, property taxes and insurance,
offset by decreases in utilities and security costs. The expansion of our secure shredding operations,
which incurs lower facilities costs than our core physical business, helps to lower our facilities costs as a
percentage of consolidated revenues.

Facilities costs as a percentage of consolidated revenues increased to 13.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from 13.3% for the vear ended December 31, 2005. The increase in facilities costs
as a percentage of consolidated revenues was primarily a result of increases in utilities and maintenance
costs, as well as, increased insurance deductibles and security costs associated with protecting our
assets, as a response to the fires in Ottawa, Canada and London, England. Rent expense decreased
slightly as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2005 as a result of a decrease in overall base rent per square foot in our
North American operations when comparing 2005 to 2006. Rent expense increased in dollar terms by
$17.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005.

Transportation

Our transportation expenses, which are influenced by several variables including total number of*
vehicles, owned versus leased vehicles, use of subcontracted couriers, fuel expenses, maintenance and
insurance, increased as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. The use of couriers and leased vehicles, rising gas
prices, as well as shredding revenue growing at a faster rate than storage revenue, contributed to this
increase.

Our transportation expenses remained consistent as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005. Higher fuel costs,
increased maintenance expenses resulting from the accelerated implementation of a fleet-wide
maintenance program in North America and vehicle leasing expenses were primarily responsible for the
dollar increase in transportation expenses. '

Product Cost of Sales and Other

Product and other cost of sales, which includes cartons, media and other service and storage costs,
are highly correlated to complementary revenue streams, and as a result remained largely unchanged as
a percentage of consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2006. Product cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2007 were slightly
higher in dollar terms compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 due to a corresponding increase
in related carton, media and services revenues. Product cost of sales for the year ended December 31,
2006 decreased compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 due to a corresponding reduction in
revenues.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses are comprised of the following expenses
(in thousands):

Year Ended % of Consolidated  {rrecnt
December 31, Dollar Percent __ REVEMNSS (pavorable)/
2006 2007 Change Change 2006 2007 Unfavorable

Sales, Marketing & Account

Management ... ... .... 214,007 249,966 35959 168% 91% 92% 0.1%
Information Technology. ... 122,211 135,788 13577 111% 52% 50% (0%
Bad Debt Expense ....... 2,835 . 2,894 59 21% 01% 0.1% 0.0%

$670,074  $771,375  $101,301 15.1% 285% 283% (0.2)%

|
General and Administrative .  $331,021  $382,727 $ 51,706 15.6% 14.1% 140% (0.1)%

Year Ended % of Consolidated gflr::;:
December 31, Dollar Percent ~ __ REYEMUES (pyiorable)/
2005 - 2006 Change Change 2005 2006 -Unfavorable
| General and -
Administrative ....... $285,558  $331,021 $ 45463 159% 13.7% 141% 0.4%
Sales, Marketing &
Account Management ., 180,558 . 214,007 33,449 18.5% 87% 9.1% 0.4%
Information Téchnology . . 99,177 122,211 23,034 23.2% 48% 52% 0.4%
Bad Debt Expense ... ... 4,402 2,835 (1,567) (35.6)% 02% 0.1% (0.1)%

$569,695  $670,074  $100,379 17.6% 274% 28.5% 1.1%

General and Administrative

The slight decrease in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of consolidated
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 is
mainly attributable to overhead leverage, which offset increased incentive compensation expense and
start-up costs related to certain international joint ventures. ‘

The increase in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of consolidated revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 is mainly '
attributable to (a) increased compensation expense due to expansion through acquisitions, (b) costs
associated with our North American reorganization which added a new level of field management, and
(c) costs associated with 'a_ North American field operations meeting held in 2006 that was not held in
2005. ' '

Sales, Marketing & Account Management

The majority of our sales, marketing and account management costs are labor related and are
primarily driven by the headcount in each of these departments. Compensation and commissions are
the most significant components of sales, marketing and account management expenses. Our average
sales force headcount increased during 2007 as compared to 2006. In addition, we increased
discretionary training and marketing during that period. Offsetting those increases in expenditures were
changes to commission-based compensation plans, which resulted in lower costs for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006.

Increased headcount and related compensation and commissions are the most significant
contributors to the increase in sales, marketing expenses and account management for the years ended
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December 31, 2006 and 2005. Throughout the years ended December 31, 2005 and into 2006, we
invested in the expansion and improvement of our sales, marketing and account management functions.
During 2006 in North America, while our sales force headcount increased at a slower rate than revenue
growth, the shift to higher end resources drove an increase in the level of spending due to higher costs
per sales person and the additional support required. We have significantly increased the size of our
digital sales force through our acquisition of LiveVault and the hiring of new sales employees,
particularly in Europe. Additionally, costs associated with an enterprise-wide sales meeting held in 2006
and not held in 2005 also contributed to this increase. Our larger North American sales force
generated a $6.3 million increase in sales commissions and an increase of $13.6 million of
compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended

December 31, 2005.

Information Technology

Information technology expenses decreased as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily due to a write-off
of $5.9 million of previously deferred costs, primarily internal labor costs, associated with internal use
software development projects that were discontinued prior to being implemented in 2006 and did not
repeat in 2007. The dollar increase in information technology expenses is due to compensation expense,
consulting fees and communication costs which are correlated to our increase in revenues.

Information technology expenses increased as a percentage of consolidated revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 due to increases in
technology development activities within our digital services business, including the acquisition of
LiveVault and associated research and development activities and increased spending to support our
growing digital archiving business. Additionally, during 2006, we wrote-off $5.9 million of previously
deferred costs, primarily internal labor costs, associated with internal use software development projects
that were discontinued prior to being implemented. Higher utilization of existing information
technology resources to revenue producing projects, which are charged to costs of goods sold and
decreased information technology spending in our European operations, partially offset this increase.

Depreciation, Amortization, and (Gain) and Loss on Disposal/Writedown of Property, Plant and
Equipment, Net

Consolidated depreciation and amortization expense increased $40.9 million to $249.3 million
(9.1% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $208.4 million (8.9% of
consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2006. Consolidated depreciation and
amortization expense increased $21.5 million to $208.4 million (8.9% of consolidated revenues) for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from $187.0 million (9.0% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Depreciation expense increased $34.9 million for the yvear ended December 31,
2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, and increased $17.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, primarily due to the additional
depreciation expense related to recent capital expenditures and acquisitions, including storage systems,
which include racking, building and leasehold improvements, computer systems hardware and software,
and buildings, as well as accelerated depreciation on buildings we have chosen to exit.

Amortization expense increased $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2006, and increased $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, primarily due to amortization of intangible assets,
such as customer relationship intangible assets and intellectual property acquired through business
combinations. We expect that amortization expense will continue to increase as we acquire new
businesses and reflect the full year impact of our 2007 acquisitions.
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Consolidated gain on disposal/writedown of property, plant and equipment, net of $5.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2007, consisted primarily of a gain related to insurance proceeds from
our property claim of $7.7 million associated with the July 2006 fire in one of our London, England
facilities, net of a $1.3 million write-off of previously deferred software costs in our North American
Physical Business associated with a discontinued product after implementation. Consolidated gain on
disposalfwritedown of property, plant and equipment, net of $9.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, consisted primarily of a gain on the sale of a property in the U.K. of $10.5 million
offset by disposals and writedowns. Consolidated gain on disposal/writedown of property, plant and
equipment, net of $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, consisted primarily of a gain on
the sale of a property in the UK. of $4.5 million offset primarily by software asset writedowns of
$1.1 million.

OPERATING INCOME

As a result of all the foregoing factors, consolidated operating income increased $47.5 million, or
11.7%, to $454.7 million (16.7% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2007 from
$407.2 million (17.3% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2006. Consolidated
operating income increased $20.4 million, or 5.3%, to $407.2 million (17.3% of consolidated revenues)
for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $386.8 million (18.6% of consolidated revenues) for the
year ended December 31, 2005.

OIBDA

As a result of all the foregoing factors, consolidated OIBDA increased $88.5 million, or 14.4%, to
$704.0 million (25.8% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2007 from
$615.6 million (26.2% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2006. Consolidated
OIBDA increased $41.9 million, or 7.3%, to $615.6 million (26.2% of consolidated revenues) for the
year ended December 31, 2006 from $573.7 million (27.6% of consolidated revenues) for the year |
ended December 31, 2005. '

OTHER EXPENSES, NET |
Interest Expense, Net . |

Consolidated interest expense, net increased $33.6 million to $228.6 million (8.4% of consolidated ‘
revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2007 from $195.0 million (8.3% of consolidated revenues) '
for the year ended December 31, 2006 due to increased borrowings to fund acquisitions, offset by a
decrease in our weighted average interest rate from 7.5% as of December 31, 2006 to 7.4% as of
December 31, 2007. In addition, as a result of the repayment of IME’s revolving credit facility and term
loans with borrowings in the U.S., we had an increase of approximately $4.1 million in consolidated
interest expense in the second quarter of 2007. This is a result of the difference in our calendar
reporting period and that of IME which is two months in arrears, and had no impact on cash flows.

Consolidated interest expense, net increased $11.4 million to $195.0 million (8.3% of consolidated
revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $183.6 million (8.8% of consolidated revenues)
for the year ended December 31, 2005. The change is primarily due to increased borrowings to fund
out 2005 and 2006 acquisitions, particularly LiveVault and Pickfords Records Management
{“Pickfords™). I
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Other (Income) Expense, Net (in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2007 Change
Foreign currency transaction (gains) losses, net ................. $(12,534) $ 11,311 § 23,845
Debt extinguishment expense . ..............c.c.tnnnn.. 2972 5,703 2,731
OHhET, IEL « o v v o e e e e e e e e e e (2,427) (13913) (11,486)

$(11,989) § 3,101 $ 15,090

Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2006 Change
Foreign currency transaction (gains) losses, net . .. ... .. .. ... ... $ 7,201  $(12,534) $(19,735)
Debt extinguishment expense ... ...ttt — 2,972 2972
Other, net . . ... .. e (1,019)  (2,427)  (1,408)

$ 6,182 $(11,989) $(18,171)

Foreign currency transaction losses, net of $11.3 million based on period-end exchange rates were
recorded in the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily due to the strengthening of the Euro and
Canadian dollar, offset by the strengthening of the British pound sterling against the U.S. dollar
compared to December 31, 2006, as these currencies relate to our intercompany balances with and
between our Canadian and European subsidiaries, and British pounds sterling and Euro denominated
debt held by our U.S. parent company.

Foreign currency gains of $12.5 million based on period-end exchange rates were recorded in the
year ended December 31, 2006 primarily due to the strengthening of the British pound sterling against
the U.S. dollar compared to December 31, 2005, as these currencies relate to our intercompany
balances with our U.K. subsidiaries, borrowings denominated in certain foreign currencies under our
revolving credit facility and British pounds sterling denominated debt held by our U.S. parent company.

Foreign currency losses of $7.2 million based on period-end exchange rates were recorded in the
year ended December 31, 2005 primarily due to the weakening of the British pound sterling and Euro,
net of the strengthening of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar compared to December 31,
2004, as these currencies relate to our intercompany balances with and between our Canadian, UK.
and European subsidiaries, borrowings denominated in foreign currencies under our revolving credit
facility and British pounds sterling denominated debt held by our U.S. parent company.

Other, net increased by $11.5 million in the year ended December 31; 2007 over the same period
in 2006 primarily as a result of business interruption insurance proceeds of $12.9 million pertaining to
the July 2006 fire in one of our London, England facilities. During 2007, we wrote-off $5.7 million of
deferred financing costs related to the early extinguishment of U.S. and U.K. term loans and revolving
credit facilities.

During 2006, we redeemed or purchased a portion of our outstanding 8% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2011 and 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013 resulting in a charge of $2.8 million,
which consists of tender premiums and transaction costs, deferred financing costs, as well as original
issue discounts and premiums.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were 41.4%, 41.8%
and 30.9%, respectively. The primary reconciling items between the statutory rate of 35% and our
effective rate are state income taxes (net of federal benefit) and differences in the rates of tax to which
our foreign earnings are subject. Our 2007 effective tax rate reflects the positive impact of our recent
global treasury program of approximately 8.2%. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2007,
our effective tax rate was reduced by approximately 2.7% as a result of foreign currency gains and
losses, which were incurred in different tax jurisdictions.

Our effective tax rate is subject to future variability due to, among other items: (a) changes in the

mix of income from foreign jurisdictions; (b) tax law changes; (c} volatility in foreign exchange gains
and (losses); and (d) the timing of the establishment and reversal of tax reserves. We are subject to
income taxes in both the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. We are subject to examination by
various tax authorities in jurisdictions in which we have significant business operations. We regularly
assess the likelihood of additional assessments by tax authorities and provide for these matters as
appropriate. Although we believe our tax estimates are appropriate, the final determination of tax
audits and any related litigation could result in changes in our estimates.

Minority Interest

Minority interest in earnings of subsidiaries, net resulted in a charge to income of $1.7 million
(0.1% of consolidated revenues), $1.6 million (0.1% of consolidated revenues) and $0.9 million (less
than 0.1% of consolidated revenues) for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007,
respectively. This represents our minority partners’ share of earnings in our majority-owned
international subsidiaries that are consolidated in our operating results.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset
Retirement Obligations” (“FIN 47”), an interpretation of SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS No. 143”). FIN 47 clarifies that conditional asset retirement
obligations meet the definition of liabilitics and should be recognized when incurred if their fair values
can be reasonably estimated. Uncertainty surrounding the timing and method of settlement that may be
conditional on events occurring in the future are factored into the measurement of the liability rather
than the existence of the liability. SFAS No. 143 established accounting and reporting standards for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets legally required by law,
regulatory rule or contractual agreement and the associated asset retirement costs, SFAS No. 143
requires entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in
which it is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the entity capitalizes the cost by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset, which is then depreciated over the useful life of the
related asset. The liability is increased over time through income as a component of depreciation
expense, such that the liability will equate to the future cost to retire the long-lived asset at the
expected retirement date. Upon settlement of the liability, an entity either settles the obligation for its
recorded amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement. Qur obligations are primarily the result of
requirements under our facility lease agreements which generally have “return to original condition”
clauses which would require us to remove or restore items such as shred pits, vaults, demising walls and
office build-outs, among others. As of December 31, 2005, we have recognized the cumulative effect of
initially applying FIN 47 as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle as prescribed in
FIN 47, which resulted in a gross charge of $4.4 million ($2.8 million, net of tax) in 2005,
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NET INCOME

As a result of all the foregoing factors, for the year ended December 31, 2007, consolidated net
income increased $24.2 million, or 18.8%, to $153.1 million (5.6% of consolidated revenues) from net
income of $128.9 million (5.5% of consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2006. For
the year ended December 31, 2006, consolidated net income increased $17.8 million, or 16.0%, to
$128.9 million (5.5% of consolidated revenues) from net income of $111.1 million (5.3% of
consolidated revenues) for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Segment Analysis (in thousands)

The results of our various operating segments are discussed below. Our reportable segments are
North American Physical Business, International Physical Business and Worldwide Digital Business. See
Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Our North American Physical Business, which
consists of the United States and Canada, offers the storage of paper documents, as well as all other
non-electronic media such as microfilm and microfiche, master audio and videotapes, film, X-rays and
blueprints, including healthcare information seryices, vital records services, service and courier
operations, and the collection, handling and disposal of sensitive documents for corporate customers
(“Hard Copy™); the storage and rotation of backup computer media as part of corporate disaster
recovery plans, including service and courier operations (“Data Protection™); secure shredding services
(“Shredding™); and the storage, assembly, and detailed reporting of customer marketing literature and
delivery to sales offices, trade shows and prospective customers’ sites based on current and prospective
customer orders, which we refer to as the “Fulfillment” business. Our International Physical Business
segment offers information protection and storage services throughout Europe, South America, Mexico
and Asia Pacific, including Hard Copy, Data Protection and Shredding. Our Worldwide Digital
Business offers information protection and storage services for electronic records conveyed via
telecommunication lines and the Internet, including online backup and recovery solutions for server
data and personal computers, as well as email archiving, third party technology escrow services that
protect intellectual property assets such as software source code, and electronic discovery services for
the legal market that offers in-depth discovery and data investigation solutions.

North American Physical Business

Years Ended Dollar Increase Percentage Increase
December 31, December 31, December 31, from 2005 from 2006 from 2005 from 2006
2005 2006 2007 to 2006 to 2007 to 2006 to 2007
Segment Revenue .......... $1,529,612  $1,671,009 $1,890,068 $141,397 $219,059 9.2% 13.1%
Segment Contribution(1}. ... .. $ 444343 % 478,653 § 539,027 § 34,310 § 60,374 1.7% 12.6%
Segment Contribution(1) as a :
Percentage of Revenue . .. .. 25.0% 28.6% 28.5%

Depreciation and Amortization
excluded from the Calculation
of Segment Contribution(1) .. § 118493 § 127,562 § 154,898

(1) See Note 9 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for definition of Contribution and for the basis
on which allocations are made and a reconciliation of Contribution to income before provision for income
taxes and minority interest on a consolidated basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, revenue in our North American Physical Business
segment increased 13.1%, primarily due to stable storage internal growth rates, continued strength in
special projects, higher recycled paper revenues, and acquisitions, primarily ArchivesOne, which
contributed $32.0 million or approximately 2%. In addition, favorable currency fluctuations during the
year ended December 31, 2007 in Canada resulted in increased revenue, as measured in U.S. dollars, of
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0.6% when compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. Contribution as a percent of segment
revenue decreased slightly in the year ended December 31, 2007 due mainly to increased occupancy
costs such as insurance and maintenance, and higher costs associated with the acquisition of new real
estate and moving out of substandard facilities obtained through acquisitions, offset by strong service
revenue growth and overhead leverage.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue in our North American Physical Business
segment increased 9.2% primarily due to increasing storage internal growth rates resulting from stable
net volume growth and an increasingly positive pricing environment, increasing service revenue growth
rates particularly in data protection and fulfillment, growth of our secure shredding operations, and
acquisitions. In addition, favorable currency fluctuations during the year ended December 31, 2006 in
Canada increased revenue, as measured in U.S. dollars, by $9.8 million when compared to the year
ended December 31, 2005. Contribution as a percent of segment revenue decreased in the year ended
December 31, 2006 due mainly to (a) higher transportation costs, primarily fuel and rental costs
associated with a larger fleet of leased vehicles, and the accelerated implementation of a fleet-wide
maintenance program in North America, (b) increased facility costs, primarily utilities, maintenance and
insurance, (c) increased investment in sales, marketing and account management primarily related to a
shift in hiring more experienced personnel at a higher cost, (d) costs associated with the North
American reorganization, including a new level of field management, and (e) costs associated with our
enterprise-wide sales meeting and a field operations meeting, both held in 2006 but not in 2005.

Included in our North American Physical Business segment are certain costs related to staff
functions, including finance, human resources and information technology, which benefit the enterprise
as a whole. These costs are primarily related to the general management of these functions on a
corporate level and the design and development of programs, policies and procedures that are then
implemented in the individual segments, with each segment bearing its own cost of implementation.
Management has decided to allocate these costs to the North American segment as further allocation is
impracticable.

International Physical Business

Years Ended Dollar Increase Percentage Increase
December 31, December 31, December 31, from 2005 from 2006 from 2005 from 2006
2005 2006 2007 to 2006 to 2007 to 2006 to 2007
Segment Revenue .......... $435,106 $539,335 $676,749  $104,229 $137414 24.0% 25.5%
Segment Contribution(1). ... .. 113,417 $117,568 $135714 § 4,151 $ 18,146 3.7% 15.4%
Segment Contribution(1) as a
Percentage of Revenue . .. .. 26.1% 21.8% 20.1%

Depreciation and Ameortization
excluded from the Calculation
of Segment Contribution(1} .. $ 43,285 $ 54,803 $ 67,135

(1) See Note 9 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for definition of Contribution and for the basis
on which allocations are made and a reconciliation of Contribution to income before provision for income
taxes and minority interest on a consolidated basis.

Revenue in our International Physical Business segment increased 25.5% during the year ended
December 31, 2007, due to internal growth of 12%, and acquisitions in Europe and Latin America.
Further, favorable currency fluctuations during the year ended December 31, 2007, primarily in Europe,
resulted in increased revenue, as measured in U.S. dollars, of approximately 10% compared to the year
ended December 31, 2006. Contribution as a percent of segment revenue decreased in the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily due to the acquisition of
lower-margin shredding and document management solutions businesses in Europe and Latin America,
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the impact of start-up costs in certain international joint ventures and the loss of gross margin
associated with the July, 2006 fire in one of our London, England facilities. Offsetting these decreases
in contribution as a percent of segment revenue were higher-margin special projects, in particular two
large public sector contracts in Europe, one that was completed in the third quarter of 2007 and one
that will be completed in 2008.

Revenue in our International Physical Business segment increased 24.0% during the year ended
December 31, 2006 primarily due to acquisitions, which contributed $92.0 million or 18.6%. This was
partially offset by net unfavorable currencyffluctuations in Europe and Latin America of $6.3 miilion or
1.5% during the year ended December 31, 2006. The balance of the increase in revenue represents
internal growth. Contribution as a percent of segment revenue decreased primarily due to the
acquisition of two shredding businesses in the U.K. that operate at lower margins, the acquisition of
Pickfords, and costs associated with the fire in one of our London, England facilities.

Worldwide Digital Business
Years Ended Dollar Increase Percentage Increase
December 31, December 31, December 31, from 2005 from 2006 from 2005 from 2006
2005 2006 2007 to 2006 to 2007 to 2006 to 2007
Segment Revenue .......... $113,437 $139,998 $163218  $26,561 $23,220 23.4% 16.6%
Segment Contribution(l). . . . .. $ 12,461 $ 97719 $ 23799 $(2,682) $14020 (215)% 1434%
Segment Contribution(1) as a
Percentage of Revenue . .. .. 11.0% 7.0% 14.6%

Depreciation and Amortization
excluded from the Calculation
of Segment Contribution(1) .. § 25,144 $ 26,008 $ 27,261

(1) See Note 9 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for definition of Contribution and for the basis
on which allocations are made and a reconciliation of Contribution to income before provision for income
taxes and minority interest on a consolidated basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, revenue in our Worldwide Digital Business segment
increased 16.6%, due primarily to strong internal growth of 14% and the acquisition of Stratify in
December 2007. The increase is primarily attributable to growth in digital storage revenue from our
online backup service offerings for both personal computers and remote servers, and growth in storage
of email archiving. Contribution as a percent of segment revenue increased due to the full benefit of
the integration of the LiveVault acquisition and the write-off of $5.9 million of previously deferred
costs, primarily internal labor costs, associated with internal use software development projects that
were discontinued prior to being implemented in 2006 and did not repeat in 2007, which offset the
impact of increases in engineering headcount.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue in our Worldwide Digital Business segment
increased 23.4% primarily due to internal growth of 16%, primarily attributable to growth in digital
storage revenue and our online backup service offerings for both personal computer and server data.
The internal growth rate of our digital business was offset by a large data restoration project in the
third quarter of 2005, which was not repeated in 2006 but drove the increase in the digital storage
growth rate beginning in the fourth quarter of 2005. The acquisition of LiveVault in December 2005
contributed approximately $12 million in revenue during the year ended December 31, 2006,
Contribution as a percent of segment revenue decreased primarily due to the acquisition of LiveVault,
increased investment in the European sales force, increases in information technology costs, including
the write-off of $5.9 million of previously deferred costs, primarily internal labor costs, associated with
internal use software development projects that were discontinued, and the benefit of a large data
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restoration project in the third quarter of 2005. This decrease was offset by higher absorption of fixed
costs as a result of increased revenues and a reduction in royalty payments.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following is a summary of our cash balances and cash flows (in thousands) as of and for the
years ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Cash flows provided by operating activities . . .. . ............. $ 377,176 $ 374282 % 484,644
Cash flows used in investing activities . ... .................. (436,175)  (466,714)  (866,635)
Cash flows provided by financing activities . ................. 81,449 82,734 457,005
Cash and cash equivalents at theend ofyear ................ 53,413 45,369 125,607

Net cash provided by operating activities was $484.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to $374.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase resulted primarily
from an increase in operating income, including $12.9 million of business interruption insurance income
related to the fire in one of our Londoen, England facilities, and non-cash items, such as depreciation
and amortization, deferred income taxes, early extinguishment of debt, and foreign currency gains and
losses, and the net change in operating assets and liabilities, exclusive of acquisitions.

Due to the nature of our businesses, we make significant capital expenditures and additions to
customer acquisition costs. Qur capital expenditures are primarily related to growth and include
investments in storage systems, information systems and discretionary investments in real estate. Cash
paid for our capital expenditures and additions to customer acquisition costs during the year ended
December 31, 2007 amounted to $386.4 million and $16.4 million, respectively. From time to time and
in the normal course of business we sell certain fixed assets, primarily real estate. In the year ended
December 31, 2007, we received $19.6 million of net proceeds from the sales of assets, including
proceeds associated with our property claim from our insurer related to the fire in one of our London,
England facilities of $17.8 million. For the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, capital
expenditures, net and additions to customer acquisition costs were funded primarily with cash flows
provided by operating activities. Excluding acquisitions, we expect our capital expenditures to be
between $440 million and $480 million in the year ending December 31, 2008. Included in our
estimated capital expenditures for 2008 is $40 million to $50 million of opportunity driven real estate
purchases.

In the year ended December 31, 2007, we paid net cash consideration of $481.5 million for
acquisitions, most notably the ArchivesOne and RMS acquisitions in our U.S. records and information
management business and Stratify in our digital business. We also acquired a number of small records
management and shredding businesses in North America and Europe. Cash flows provided from
operating activities, borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, the proceeds from the sale of
senior subordinated notes, and cash equivalents on-hand funded these acquisitions.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $457.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, we had gross borrowings under our revolving credit and
term loan facilities and other debt of $2.3 billion, $435.8 million of proceeds from the sale of senior
subordinated notes, $21.8 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock options and employee stock
purchase plan, $6.8 million of excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation, and $2.5 million
investment by a minority partner in one of our joint ventures. We used the proceeds from these
financing transactions to repay revolving credit and term loan facilities and other debt (52.3 billion), to
repay debt financing from minority stockholders, net ($0.5 million), for payment of deferred financing
costs of ($8.1 million) and to fund acquisitions.
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We are highly leveraged and expect to continue to be highly leveraged for the foreseeable future.
Qur consolidated debt as of December 31, 2007 was comprised of the following (in thousands):

Revolving Credit Facility(1} ... ... ... ..o i i $ 394,156
Term Loan Facility(1) .. ...... ... e 408,500
8Y4% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011(2) . ..... ... o, 71,809
8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013(2) . ...... ... ... i 447981
TV% GBP Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014(2) ... ... ... .. o i, 299,595
7¥% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015(2) ........ ... .. .. . . L 437,680
6%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2016(2) . ....... ... .. .. . i ., 316,047
7v2% CAD Senior Subordinated Notes due 2017 (the “Subsidiary Notes™)(3) .......... 178,395
8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018(2) .......... . . i i, 200,000
8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018(2) .......... ... .. .. i " 49,692
6%% Euro Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018(2) . . ...... ... ... it 372,719
Real Estate Mortgages, Seller Notes and Other . . .. ................ e 89,714
Total Long-term Debt . . .. ... .. e e e 3,266,288
Less Current POTtiOn . . ... .. oot i e (33,440)
Long-term Debt, Net of Current Portion . . .. ........ ... i, $3,232,848

(1) The capital stock or other equity interests of most of our U.S. subsidiaries, and up to 66% of the,
capital stock or other equity interests of our first tier foreign subsidiaries, are pledged to secure
these debt instruments, together with all intercompany obligations of foreign subsidiaries owed to
us or to one of our U.S. subsidiary guarantors.

(2) Collectively referred to as the Parent Notes. Iron Mountain Incorporated (“IMI”) is the direct
obligor on the Parent Notes, which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a senior
subordinated basis, by substantially all of its direct and indirect wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries (the
“Guarantors’”). These guarantees are joint and several obligations of the Guarantors. Iron
Mountain Canada Corporation (“Canada Company”) and the remainder of our subsidiaries do not
guarantee the Parent Notes. :

(3) Canada Company is the direct obligor on the Subsidiary Notes, which are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed, on a senior subordinated basis, by IMI and the Guarantors. These guarantees are joint
and several obligations of IMI and the Guarantors.

Our revolving credit and term loan facilities, as well as our indentures, use earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) based calculations as primary measures of
financial performance, including leverage ratios. IMI’s revolving credit and term leverage ratio was 4.4
and 4.5 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, compared to a maximum allowable ratio of
5.5. Similarly, our bond leverage ratio, per the indentures, was 4.6 and 5.1 as of December 31, 2006 and
2007, respectively, compared to a maximum allowable ratio of 6.5. Noncompliance with these leverage
ratios would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and liquidity. Our bond leverage
ratio decreased from 5.7 as of September 30, 2007 to 5.1 as of December 31, 2007 due to the
designation as Excluded Restricted Subsidiaries, as defined in the indentures, of our subsidiaries that
own our assets and conduct our operations in the United Kingdom. As a result of such designation,
these subsidiaries are now subject to substantially all of the covenants of the indentures, except that
they are not required to provide a guarantee, and the EBITDA of these subsidiaries is included for
purposes of calculating the leverage ratio.

Our ability to pay interest on or to refinance our indebtedness depends on our future
performance, working capital levels and capital structure, which are subject to general economic,
financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors which may be beyond our control. There
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can be no assurance that we will generate sufficient cash flow from our operations or that future
financings will be available on acceptable terms or in amounts sufficient to enable us to service or
refinance our indebtedness, or to make necessary capital expenditures.

In January 2007, we completed an underwritten public offering of 225 million Euro in aggregate
principal amount of our 6%% Eurc Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018, which were issued at a price
of 98.99% of par and priced to yield 6.875%. Our net proceeds were 219.2 million Euro
($289.1 million), after paying the underwriters’ discounts and commissions and estimated expenses
(excluding accrued interest payable by purchasers of the notes from October 17, 2006). These net -
proceeds were used to repay outstanding indebtedness under our old IMI term loan and revolving
credit facilitics. '

In March 2007, one of our Canadian subsidiaries, Iron Mountain Nova Scotia Funding Company,
which was subsequently party to an amalgamation under which Canada Company was the continuing
company, issued, in a private placement, 175 million CAD in aggregate principal amount of the
Subsidiary Notes, which were issued at par and subsequently exchanged for publicly registered notes in
the U.S., on July 27, 2007. The net proceeds of $146.8 million, after sales commissions, were used to
repay outstanding indebtedness under our old IMI term loan facility.

On April 16, 2007, we entered into a new credit agreement (the “New Credit Agreement”) to
replace both the IMI revolving credit and term loan facilities of-$750 million and the IME revolving
credit and term loan facilities of 200 million British pounds sterling. On November 9, 2007, we
increased the aggregate amount available to be borrowed under the New Credit Agreement from
$900 million to $1.2 billion. The New Credit Agreement consists of revolving credit facilities where we
can borrow, subject to certain limitations as defined in the New Credit Agreement, up to an aggregate
amount of $790 million (including Canadian dollar and multi-currency revolving credit facilities) (the
“new revolving credit facility”), and a $410 million term loan facility (the “new term loan facility”). Our
subsidiaries, Canada Company and Iron Mountain Switzerland GmbH, may borrow directly under the
Canadian revolving credit and multi-currency revolving credit facilities, respectively. Additional
subsidiary borrowers may be added under the multi-currency revolving credit facility. The new revolving
credit facility terminates on April 16, 2012. With respect to the new term loan facility, quarterly loan
payments of approximately $1.0 million are required through maturity on April 16, 2014, at which time
the remaining outstanding principal balance of the new term loan facility is due. The interest rate on
borrowings under the New Credit Agreement varies depending on our choice of interest rate and
currency options, plus an applicable margin. IMI guarantees the obligations of each of the subsidiary
borrowers under the New Credit Agreement, and substantially all of our U.S. subsidiaries guarantee the
obligations of IMI and the subsidiary borrowers. The capital stock or other equity interests of most of
our U.S, subsidiaries, and up to 66% of the capital stock or other equity interests of our first tier
foreign subsidiaries, are pledged to secure the New Credit Agreement, together with all intercompany
obligations of foreign subsidiaries owed to us or to one of our U.S. subsidiary guarantors. We recorded
a charge to other expense (income}), net of approximately $5.7 million in 2007 related to the early
retirement of the old IMI and IME revolving credit facilities and term loans, representing the write-off
of deferred financing costs.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $394.2 million of outstanding borrowings under the new
revolving credit facility, of which $149.5 million was denominated in U.S. dollars and the remaining
balance was denominated in Canadian dollars (CAD 240.0 million); we also had various outstanding
letters of credit totaling $34.5 million. The remaining availability, based on IMI’s leverage ratio, which
is calculated based on the last 12 months’ earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization,
other adjustments as defined in the New Credit Agreement and current external debt, under the new
revolving credit facility on December 31, 2007, was $361.3 million. The interest rate in effect under the
new revolving credit facility and new term loan facility ranged from 6.8% to 8.3% and 6.2% to 7.1%,
respectively, as of December 31, 2007.
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The New Credit Agreement, our indentures and other agreements governing our indebtedness
contain certain restrictive financial and operating covenants, including covenants that restrict our ability
to complete acquisitions, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness, make investments, sell assets and take
certain other corporate actions. The covenants do not contain a rating trigger. Therefore, a change in
our debt rating would not trigger a default under the New Credit Agreement and our indentures and
other agreements governing our indebtedness. We were in compliance with all debt covenants in
material agreements as of December 31, 2007.

In the second quarter of 2007, we completed the acquisition of ArchivesOne, a leading provider of
records and information management services in the United States. ArchivesOne has 31 facilities
located in 17 major metropolitan markets in 10 states and the District of Columbia. The purchase price
for ArchivesOne was $200.3 million. We funded this acquisition with cash and cash equivalents on-hand
and borrowings under the New Credit Agreement.

In September 2007, we acquired RMS for $45.4 million in cash. RMS, a leading provider of
outsourced file-room services, offers hospitals comprehensive, next generation file-room and film-library
management solutions.

In December 2007, we acquired Stratify for $130.0 million in cash (net of cash acquired) and
$22.8 million in fair value of options issued to augment our suite of eDiscovery services, providing
businesses with a complete, end-to-end eDiscovery solution. Stratify, a leader in advanced electronic
discovery services for the legal market, offers in-depth discovery and data investigation solutions for
AmLaw 200 law firms and leading Fortune 500 corporations. Stratify is based in Mountain View,
California. We funded this acquisition with cash and cash equivalents on-hand and borrowings under
the New Credit Agreement.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007 and the
anticipated effect of these obligations on our liquidity in future years (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5 Years

Capital Lease Obligations .. ... $ 53,689 $ 6490 $ 5020 § 14,119 $ 28,059
Long-Term Debt Obligations

(excluding Capital Lease

Obligations) ............. © 3,213,272 26,948 14,016 477,657 2,694,651
Interest Payments(1) .. ....... 1,684,347 235,179 469,546 441,457 538,165
Operating Lease Obligations ... 3,058,482 209,001 389,871 366,877 2,092,643
Purchase and Asset Retirement

Obligations(2) . . . ... ...... 76,028 25,385 34,869 7,854 7,920
Total(3) .................. $8,085,818 $503,094 $913,322 $1,307,964 $5,361,438

(1) Amounts include variable rate interest payments, which are calculated utilizing the applicable
interest rates as of December 31, 2007; see Note 4 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) In addition, in connection with some of our acquisitions, we have potential earn-out obligations
that may be payable in the event businesses we acquired meet certain operational objectives. These
payments are based on the future results of these operations, and our estimate of the maximum
contingent earn-out payments we may be required to make under ali such agreements as of
December 31, 2007 is approximately $24.3 million.
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(3) The table above excludes $72.9 million in uncertain tax positions as we are unable to make
reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement, if any, with the respective taxing
authorities. ' '

We expect to meet our cash flow requirements for the next twelve months from cash generated
from operations, existing cash, cash equivalents, borrowings under the New Credit Agreement and
other financings, which may include secured credit facilities, securitizations and mortgage or capital
lease financings. We expect to meet our long-term cash flow requirements using the same means
described above, as well as the potential issuance of debt or equity securities as we deem appropriate.
See Note 4, 7, and 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Regulation S-K Item 303(a)(4)(ii).

Net Operating Loss, Alternative Minimum Tax and Foreign Tax Credit Carryforwards

We have federal net operating loss carryforwards which begin to expire in 2019 through 2022 of
$78.9 million at December 31, 2007 to reduce future federal taxable income, if any. We also have an
asset for state net operating loss of $24.7 million (net of federal tax benefit), which begins to expire in
2008 through 2025, subject to a valuation allowance of approximately 98%. Additionally, we have
federal alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $11.8 million, which have no expiration date
and are available to reduce future income taxes, if any, and foreign tax credits of $56.1 million, which
begin to expire in 2016.

Inflation

Certain of our expenses, such as wages and benefits, insurance, occupancy costs and equipment
repair and replacement, are subject to normal inflationary pressures. Although to date we have been
able to offset inflationary cost increases through increased operating efficiencies and the negotiation of
favorable long-term real estate leases, we can give no assurance that we will be able to offset any future
inflationary cost increases through similar efficiencies, leases or increased storage or service charges.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Interest Rate Risk

Given the recurring nature of our revenues and the long term nature of our asset base, we have
the ability and the preference to use long term, fixed interest rate debt to finance our business, thereby
helping to preserve our long term returns on invested capital. We target approximately 75% of our debt
portfolio to be fixed with respect to interest rates. Occasionally, we will use interest rate swaps as a tool
to maintain our targeted level of fixed rate debt. See Notes 3 and 4 to Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $829.8 million of variable rate debt outstanding with a weighted
average variable interest rate of 6.8%, and $2,436.5 million of fixed rate debt outstanding. As of
December 31, 2007, 75% of our total debt outstanding was fixed. If the weighted average variable
interest rate on our variable rate debt had increased by 1%, our net income for the year ended
December 31, 2007 would have been reduced by $5.4 million. See Note 4 to Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K for a discussion of our long-term indebtedness,
including the fair values of such indebtedness as of December 31, 2007.
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Currency Risk

Our investments in IME, Canada Company, Iron Mountain Mexico, SA de RL de CV, Iron
Mountain South America, Litd., Iron Mountain Australia Pty Ltd., Iron Mountain New Zealand Ltd.
and our other international investments may be subject to risks and uncertainties related to fluctuations
in currency valuation. Qur reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. However, our international revenues
and expenses are generated in the currencies of the countries in which we operate, primarily the Euro,
Canadian dollar and British pound sterling. Declines in the value of the local currencies in which we
are paid relative to the U.S. dollar will cause revenues in U.S. dollar terms to decrease and doliar-
denominated liabilities to increase in local currency.

The impact on our earnings is mitigated significantly by the fact that most operating and other .
expenses are also incurred and paid in the local currency. We also have several intercompany
obligations between our foreign subsidiaries and IMI and our U.S.-based subsidiaries. In addition Iron
Mountain Switzerland GmbH and our foreign subsidiaries and IME also have intercompany obligations
between them. These intercompany obligations are primarily denominated in the local currency of the
foreign subsidiary.

We have adopted and implemented a number of strategies to mitigate the risks associated with
fluctuations in currency valuations. One strategy is to finance our largest international subsidiaries with
local debt that is denominated-in local currencies, thereby providing a natural hedge. In determining .
the amount of any such financing, we take into account local tax strategies among other factors.
Another strategy we utilize is for IMI to berrow in foreign currencies to hedge our intercompany
financing activities. Finally, on occasion, we enter into currency swaps to temporarily or permanently
hedge an overseas investment, such as a major acquisition to lock in certain transaction economics. We
have implemented these strategies for our four foreign investments in the U.K., Continental Europe,
Canada and Asia Pacific. Specifically, through our 150 million British pounds sterling denominated
7¥%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 and our 255 million 6%% Euro Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2018, we effectively hedge most of our outstanding intercompany loans denominated in British
pounds sterling and Euros. Canada Company has financed its capital needs through direct borrowings
in Canadian dollars under the New Credit Agreement and its 175 million CAD denominated 7%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2017. This creates a tax efficient natural currency hedge. To fund the
acquisition of Pickfords in Australia and New Zealand in December 2005, IMI borrowed Australian
and New Zealand dollars under its multi-currency revolving credit facility. These borrowings provided a
natural hedge against the intercompany loans created at the time of the acquisition. Subsequently, we
repaid such borrowings under our multi-currency revolving credit facility and, contemporaneously in
September 2006, we entered into forward contracts to exchange U.S. dollars for 55 million in
Australian dollars (“AUD™) and 20.2 million in New Zealand dollars (“NZD") to hedge our
intercompany exposure in these countries. In addition, in January, 2007 we entered into forward
contracts to exchange 124.4 million U.S. dollars for 96 million Euros and 194 million CAD for
127.5 million Euros to hedge our intercompany exposures with Canada and our subsidiaries whose
functional currency is the Euro. In March 2007, in conjunction with the issuance of CAD denominated
senior subordinated notes, the CAD for Euro swap was not renewed and was replaced with additional
U.S. for Euro swaps. These forward contracts were not renewed in the third quarter of 2007. In the
third quarter of 2007, we designated a portion of our 6¥%% Euro Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018
issued by IMI as a hedge of net investment of certain of our Euro denominated subsidiaries. As a
result, we recorded $6.1 million ($3.9 million, net of tax) of foreign exchange losses related to the
“marking-to-market” of such debt to currency translation adjustments which is a component of
accumulated other comprehensive items, net included in stockholder’s equity for the year ended
December 31, 2007. In May 2007, we entered into forward contracts to exchange 146.1 million
U.S. dollars for 73.6 million in British pounds sterling to hedge our intercompany exposures with IME.
These forward contracts settle on a monthly basis, at which time we may enter into new forward
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contracts for the same underlying amounts to continue to hedge movements in the underlying
currencies. At the time of settlement, we either pay or receive the net settlement amount from the
forward contract and recognize this amount in other expense (income), net in the accompanying
statement of operations as a realized foreign exchange gain or loss. We have not designated these
forward contracts as hedges. We recorded a realized gain in connection with these forward contracts of
$8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. At the end of each month, we mark the
outstanding forward contracts to market and record an unrealized foreign exchange gain or loss for the
mark-to-market valuation. As of December 31, 2007, we recorded an unrealized foreign exchange gain
of $0.9 million in other expense (income), net in the accompanying statement of operations. As of
December 31, 2007, except as noted above, our currency exposures to intercompany balances are
unhedged.

The impact of devaluation or depreciating currency on an entity depends on the residual effect on
the local economy and the ability of an entity to raise prices and/or reduce expenses. Due to our
constantly changing currency exposure and the potential substantial volatility of currency exchange
rates, we cannot predict the effect of exchange fluctuations on our business. The effect of a change in
foreign exchange rates on our net investment in foreign subsidiaries is reflected in the “Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Items, net” component of stockholders’ equity. A 10% depreciation in year-end
2007 functional currencies, relative to the U.S. dollar, would result in a reduction in our stockholders’
equity of approximately $69.8 million.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The information required by this item is included in Item 15(a) of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The term “disclosure controls and procedures” is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™). These rules refer to the controls
and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information is recorded,
processed, summarized and communicated to management, including its principal executive and
principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding what is required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it files under the Exchange Act. As of December 31, 2007
(the “Evaluation Date”), we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the effectiveness
of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls and
procedures are effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate interna! control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in Intermal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under
the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting has been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is
included herein.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Iron Mountain Incorporated

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Iron Mountain Incorporated and
subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal controt over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or frand may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements and includes an explanatory paragraph relating to the adoption of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.

fsf DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2008
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter
ended December 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect,
our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 5, 2008.
Item 11, Executive Compensation.

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 5, 2008.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters.

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 5, 2008.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 5, 2008.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 5, 2008.
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules filed as part of this report:

A. Iron Mountain Incorporated

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ..........................
Consolidated Balance Sheets, December 31,2006 and 2007 .. ... ... ... . v,
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 ... ...

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income, Years Ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 .. . ... . i e e e e e

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 ... ...

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . ... ... . ... .ttt tetteneas

(b) Exhibits filed as part of this report: As listed in the Exhibit Index following the signature page hereof
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Iron Mountain Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Iron Mountain Incorporated
and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Iron Mountain Incorporated and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As discussed in Note 7, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB”)
Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, effective January 1, 2007.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

/s{f DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2008
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31,
2006 2007
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cashandcashequivalents . ........ .. . ... .. . . . . . .. $ 45369 $§ 125607
Accounts receivable (less allowances of $15,157 and $19,246, respectively) . . .. 473,366 564,049
Deferred INCOME taXES . « . v v v vt vttt et e et ettt et e et et et 60,537 41,465
Prepaid expenses and other . ... ... ... ... . . i i e 100,449 91,275
Total Current ASSelS . ..o vttt e e e e e e 679,721 822,396
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment . . ... ... ... ... i e, 2,965,995 3,522,525
Less—Accumulated depreciation . ............. ... .. i (950,760)  (1,186,564)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment . . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ..... 2,015,235 2,335,961
Other Assets, net;
Goodwill . ... .. e 2,165,129 2,574,292
Customer relationships and acquisition costs ... ...................... 282,756 480,403
Deferred financing costs . ... .. ... . i e 29,795 34,030
OtheT L L e 36,885 60,839
Total Other Assets, IEt. . - . . ...\ttt r et en e m e 2,514,565 3,149,564
Total ASSEES . .. e e $5,200,521  § 6,307,921

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt ... ..... ... ... ... ... .. . .. ... $ 63,105 § 33,440
Accounts payable .. ... ... . ... e 148,461 208,672
ACCried BXPEMSES . . . .o v it i e e e 266,933 329,221
Deferred TeVenUE . ..ot i ittt e i e e e e e 160,148 194,344
Total Current Liabilities . .. ... ... ... .t et e 638,647 765,677
Long-term Debt, net of current portion . . ......... ... . iy 2,605,711 3,232,848
Other Long-term Liabilities . . . .. .. ... ... ... i, 72,778 89,990
Deferred Rent . . . .. ., .. .. e 53,597 63,636
Deferred InCome TaXES . . - . o v it it i e et e e et e et e 280,225 351,226
Commitments and Contingencies (see Note 10)
2% 61T o 2 63T =3 = - 5,290 9,089
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock (par value $0.01; authorized 10,000,000 shares; none issued and
outstanding) . ... .. ... e e — —
Common stock (par value $0.01; authorized 400,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 199,109,581 shares and 200,693,217 shares, respectively) ....... 1,991 2,007
Additional paid-in capital. ... ... .. L e 1,144,101 1,269,512
Retained earnings . . ... .. ..o i ittt e e 373,387 509,875
Accumulated other comprehensive items, net. . ....... ..., ... ... 33,794 74 061
Total Stockholders’ Equity . ... .........c. .0 i 1,553,273 1,795,455
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . .. ..o o.v v iie i eunnnn.. $5,209,521 § 6,307,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
CBtoTAge L e e
Service and storage material sales .. ........ ... .00

Total Revenues . .. ... it i

Operating Expenses:
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization) ... ..
Selling, general and administrative. . . ..................
Depreciation and amortization .......................
Gain on disposal/writedown of property, plant and equipment,
1)

Total Operating Expenses .........................
Operating Income . ........ .o
Interest Expense, Net ... .. ... i
Other Expense (Income), Net. . ... .. e

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes and Minority
Interest . ..... o i e e
Provision for Income Taxes. .. ............ .. ... .. 0,
Minority Interests in Earnings of Subsidiaries, Net. .. ........

Income before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle . . ... .. e
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (net of tax
benefit) . ... ... e

Net Income & oottt e s e e e e s et i e e

Net Income per Share—Basic:
Income before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle . . .. ... e e
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (net of
tax benefit) . . ... ... L e

Net Income per Share—Basic . .................. ...

Net Income per Share—Diluted:
Income before Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle . . ... ... .
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle (net of
tax benefit) . .. ... ...

Net Income per Share—Diluted . . .. ...... ... ........
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding—Basic. . ... ..
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding—Diluted . . . . .

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
$1,181,551 $1,327,169 $1,499,074
896,604 1023173 1,230,961
2,078,155 2,350,342 2,730,035
938239 1,074,268 1,260,120
569,695 670074 771,375
186,922 208373 249294
(3485)  (9560) (5472
1,691,371 1,943,155 2,275,317
386,784 407,187 454,718
183,584 194958 228,593
6182  (11,989) 3,101
197,018 224218 223,024
81,484 93,795 69,010
1,684 1,560 920
113,850 128,863 153,094
(2,751) — —
$ 111,099 $ 128863 § 153,004
$ 058 $ 065 § 077
(0.01) — —
$ 057 $ 065 $ 077
$ 057 $ 064 $ 076
(0.01) — _
$ 056 $ 064 $ 076
195988 198,116 199,938
198,104 200463 202,062

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Voting Additional

Retained  Accumulated Other  Total Stockholders’

Shares Amounts Paid-in Capital Earnings Comprehensive Items Equity

Balance, December 31,2004 ... ... .. 194,726,871 $1,947 $1,062,911 $133,425 $20,285 $1,218,568
Issuance of shares under employee stock

purchase plan and option plans,

including tax benefit of $9,668. . .. .. 2,767,436 28 57,315 — — 57,343
Deferred compensation. . .. ........ - — {16,060) — — (16,060)
Currency translation adjustment . . . . .. — — — — (4,300} (4,300)
Stock options issued in connection with

an acquisition .. .............. - — 780 — — 780
Market value adjustments for hedging

contracts, netoftax ............ —_ —_ —_ — 2,458 2,458
Market value adjustments for securities,

netoftax ................... — — — —_ 241 241
Netincome ...........co00nun. —_ —_ —_ 111,099 — 111,099
Balance, December 31, 2005 ... ... .. 197,494 307 1,975 1,104,946 244,524 18,684 1,370,129
Issuance of shares under employee stock

purchase plan and option plans,

including tax benefit of $4,387. ... .. 1,615,274 16 39,155 — — 39,171
Currency translation adjustment . . . . . . — — — — 14,659 14,659
Market value adjustments for hedging

contracts, netof tax .. .......... — — — _ 43 43
Market value adjustments for securities,

netoftax ... ... ... .. .. ..., — —_ — - 408 408
Netincome ................... — — — 128,863 — 128,863
Balance, December 31,2006 .. .. .... 199,109,581 1,991 1,144,101 373,387 33,794 1,553,273
Issuance of shares under employee stock

purchase plan and option plans,

including tax benefit of $6,765. . . . . . 1,583,636 16 42 583 — —_ 42.599
Currency translation adjustment . ... .. — —_ — — 40,480 40,480
Stock options issued in connection with

an acquisition . . ... ... .. ... ... — — 22.828 — — 22,828
Reserve related to uncertzin tax

positions (Note 7). . . . ....... ... —_ —_ — (16,606} — (16,606)
Market value adjustments for hedging

contracts, netof tax . ..., ....... — —_ — — 170 170
Market value adjustments for securities,

netoftax ............ ... ... - — — — (383) (383)
Netincome ......... e — — — 153,094 — 153,094
Balance, December 31, 2007 ... ... .. 200,693,217 $2,007 $1,209,512  $509,875 $74,061 $1,795,455

2005 2006 2007

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Net Income . ... .o e e e e e $111,099  $128,863  $153,094
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income:

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments. . . .. .. .. ... ..ttt {4,300) 14,659 40,480

Market Value Adjustments for Hedging Contracts, Net of Tax Provision of $973, $13, and $51,

TeSpeCtively . .. e e e e 2,458 43 170

Market Value Adjustments for Securities, Net of Tax . . . ... . ... . ... . 0., 241 408 (383)

Comprehensive INCOME . . . . . . ... . i it et et et e e e $109,498 $143,973  $193,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Nl IMCOIMIE © . o ot ot e et e et ettt e n e ettt e e e $ 111,099 §$ 128863 $ 153,094
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows from operating activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (net of tax benefit) . ............. 2,751 — —
Minority interests in earnings of subsidiaries,net .. ......... ... .. oo o 1,684 1,560 920
Depreciation . . . .. .. i e e e e . 170,698 187,745 222,655
Amortization (includes deferred financing costs and bond discount of $4,951, $5,463, and '
$5361, respectively) . . .. e 21,175 - 26,091 32,000
Stock compensation EXpense . . . . ... ... e e e e 6,189 12,387 13,861
Provision for deferred income taxes . .......... ot e e e e e 59,470 53,139 43,813
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . .. ... ... 0. .. ... i C—_ 2972 5,703
Gain on disposal/writedown of property, plant and equipment, net . . . .. ...... ... . ... (3,485} . {9.560) (5,472}
Loss (Gain) on foreign currency and other, met ... .. ... ... . i e 6,472 (16,990) 17,110
Changes in Assets and Liabilities (exclusive of acquisitions):
Accounts receivable. .. ... ... ..o AP e (45572)  (53,867) (33,650)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . .., .. ... . ... {13,360) (12,317) (11,973)
Accounts payable . .. ... e e 21,017 9,008 14,213
Accrued expenses, deferred revenue and other current liabilities . . ................. 34,360 37,320 25,932
Other assets and long-term labilities . .. .. ... . . . i i i s 4,678 7,931 6,438
Cash Flows from Operating Activities . . . . .. .. i oo 377,176 374,282 484,644
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expendilUres . .. . . ... it i e e e (272,129)  (381,970) (386,442)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired . .. ........ ... ... .. . ... .. ... (178,238) (81,208) (481,526)
Additions to customer relationship and acquisition costs . . . ... ... .. ... o L. (13,431) (14,251) (16,403)
Investment in JOINE VENTUIES . . . . .. .. L. Lt it e — (5,943) —
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment and other,net . ................... 27,623 16,658 17,736
Cash Flows from Investing ACtivities .. ... ... ... ... ..t ens (436,175)  (466,714) (866,635}
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: '
Repayment of revolving credit and term loan facilities and otherdebt. .. ........... .. (509,595) (654,960) (2,311,331}
Proceeds from revolving credit and term loan facilities and other debt .. .. ........... 568,726 543,540 2,310,044
Early retirement of senior subordinated notes . . .. ... ... . .o i —  (112,397) —
Net proceeds from sales of senior subordinated notes . . ................ . ....... —_ 281,984 435,818
Debt financing (repayment to) and equity contribution from (distribution to) minority
stockholders, NEt . . . . . vt e e e e e (2,399) (2,068) 1,950
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and employee stock purchase plan ... ......... 25,649 22,245 21,843
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation . . ... ... ... . . oo o .- 4,387 6,765
Payment of debt financing costs and stock issuance costs . . ... ... e e {932) (397) (8,084)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities . ... .. ... ... i e 81,449 82,734 457,005
Effect of Exchange Rates on Cash and Cash Equivalents. . . ... ....... ... ... ..0. (979} 1,654 5224
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . .. .......... e e 21,471 (8,044) 80,238
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year . .. ... ... .. ... ... .. . . ou.. 31,942 53413 45,369
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year . ... ... ... .. i $ 53413 § 45369 $§ 125,607
Supplemental Information: .
Cash Paid for Interest. . ... ....... e e e e e e e e e $ 183,657 $ 185072 § 215451
Cash Paid for Income TaXES . . . v v v i it o e e it et e, e $ 21,858 § 17,143 § 33994
Non-Cash Investing Activities:
Capital Leases . . . . .. oo e e e $ 23885 § 17027 § 17,207
$ 32068 § 59979

Accrued Capital Expenditures . . . ... ... 0 e e $ 19,124

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Nature of Business

On May 27, 2005, Iron Mountain Incorporated, a Pennsylvania corporation (“Iron Mountain PA”),
reincorporated as a Delaware corporation. The reincorporation was effected by means of a statutory
merger (the “Merger”) of Iron Mountain PA with and into Iron Mountain Incorporated, a Delaware
corporation (“Iron Mountain DE”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Iron Mountain PA. In connection
with the Merger, Iron Mountain DE succeeded to and assumed all of the assets and liabilities of Iron
Mountain PA. Apart from the change in its state of incorporation, the Merger had no effect on Iron
Mountain PA’s business, board composition, management, employees, fiscal year, assets or liabilities, or -
location of its facilities, and did not result in any relocation of management or other employees. The
Merger was approved at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 26, 2005. Upon
consummation of the Merger, Iron Mountain DE succeeded to Iron Mountain PA’s reporting
obligations and continued to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbo! “IRM.”

On December 7, 2006, our board authorized and approved a three-for-two stock split effected in
the form of a dividend on our common stock. We issued the additional shares of common stock
resulting from this stock dividend on December 29, 2006 to all stockholders of record as of the close of
business on December 18, 2006. All share data has been adjusted for such stock split.

The accompanying financial statements represent the consolidated accounts of Iron Mountain
Incorporated, a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries. We are a global full-service provider of
information protection and storage and related services for all media in various locations throughout
North America, Europe, Latin America and Asia Pacific. We have a diversified customer base
comprised of commercial, legal, banking, health care, accounting, insurance, entertainment and
government organizations, including more than 93% of the Fortune 1000 and more than 90% of the
FTSE 100. ' ‘

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying financial statements reflect our financial position and results of operations on a
consolidated basis. Financial position and results of operations of Iron Mountain Europe Limited
(“IME”), our European subsidiary, are consolidated for the appropriate periods based on its fiscal year
ended October 31. All intercompany account balances have been eliminated or presented to reflect the
underlying economics of the transactions.

b. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires us to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and for the period then ended. On an
on-going basis, we evaluate the estimates used, including those related to accounting for acquisitions,
allowance for doubtful accounts and credit memos, impairments of tangible and intangible assets,
income taxes, stock-based compensation and self-insured liabilities. We base our estimates on historical
experience, actuarial estimates, current conditions and various other assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates form the basis for making judgments about the
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

carrying values of assets and liabilities and are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

¢. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and cash invested in short-term securities which
have remaining maturities at the date of purchase of less than 90 days. Cash and cash equivalents are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

d. Foreign Currency

Local currencies are considered the functional currencies for our operations outside the United
States, with the exception of certain foreign holding companies, whose functional currency is the
U.S. dollar. All assets and liabilities are translated at period-end exchange rates, and revenues and
expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the applicable period, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation.”
Resulting translation adjustments are reflected in the accumulated other comprehensive items
component of stockholders’ equity. The gain or loss on foreign currency transactions, calculated as the
difference between the historical exchange rate and the exchange rate at the applicable measurement
date, including those related to (a) our 7%% GBP Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014, (b) our 6%%
Euro Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018, (¢) the borrowings in certain foreign currencies under our
revolving credit agreements, and (d) certain foreign currency denominated intercompany obligations of
our foreign subsidiaries to us and between our foreign subsidiaries, are included in other expense
(income), net, on our consolidated statements of operations. The total of such net loss amounted to
$7,201, a net gain of $12,534, and a net loss of $11,311 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006
and 2007, respectively.

e. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” requires that every
derivative instrument be recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or a liability measured at its
fair value. Periodically, we acquire derivative instruments that are intended to hedge either cash flows
or values which are subject to foreign exchange or other market price risk, and not for trading
purposes. We have formally documented our hedging relationships, including identification of the
hedging instruments and the hedged items, as well as our risk management objectives and strategies for
undertaking each hedge transaction. Given the recurring nature of our revenues and the long term
nature of our asset base, we have the ability and the preference to use long term, fixed interest rate
debt to finance our business, thereby preserving our long term returns on invested capital. We target
approximately 75% of our debt portfolio to be fixed with respect to interest rates. Occasionally, we will
use interest rate swaps as a tool to maintain our targeted level of fixed rate debt. In addition, we will
use borrowings in foreign currencies, either obtained in the U.S. or by our foreign subsidiaries, to
naturally hedge foreign currency risk associated with our international investments. Sometimes we enter
into currency swaps to temporarily hedge an overseas investment, such as a major acquisition, while we
arrange permanent financing or to hedge our exposures due to foreign currency exchange movements
related to our intercompany accounts with and between our foreign subsidiaries.
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TRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
f.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method’
with the following useful lives:

Buildings ....................... 40 to 50 years

Leasehold improvements . ........... 8 to 10 years or the life of the lease,
whichever is shorter

Racking ............. .. ... ... 5 to 20 years

Warehouse equipment ... ........... 3 to 9 years

Vehicles .. ...................... 5 to 10 years

Furniture and fixtures ............... 2 to 10 years

Computer hardware and software . . . ... 310 5 years

Property, plant and equipment (including capital leases in the respective category), at cost, consist
of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007
Land and buildings ............................. $ 931,784 $1,073,548
Leasehold improvements ......................... 240,341 314,858
Racking. .. .. ...t iiiaen.. 944,299 1,158,017
Warehouse equipment/fvehicles . ................. ... 162,735 202,496
Furniture and fixtures . . .. ......... ... .. ... 0. ... 60,047 68,091
Computer hardware and software . ... ............... 449,713 543,535
Construction in ProOgress. .. ..t e v i een e, 177,076 161,980

$2,965,995 $3,522,525

Minor maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Major improvements which extend the life,
increase the capacity or improve the safety or the efficiency of property owned are capitalized. Major
improvements to leased buildings are capitalized as leasehold improvements and depreciated.

We develop various software applications for internal use. Payroll and related costs for employees
who are directly associated with, and who devote time to, the development of internal use computer
software projects (to the extent of the time spent directly on the project) are capitalized in accordance
with Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use” (“SOP 98-17). Capitalization begins when the design stage of the
application has been completed and it is probable that the project will be completed and used to
perform the function intended. Capitalized software costs are depreciated over the estimated useful life
of the software beginning when the software is placed in service. During the year ended December 31,
2006, we wrote-off $6,329 of previously deferred costs of our Worldwide Digital Business, primarily
internal labor costs, associated with internal use software development projects that were discontinued
prior to being 1mplemented and such costs are included as a component of selling, general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. During the year
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

ended December 31, 2007, we wrote-off $1,263 of previously deferred software costs in our North
American Physical Business, primarily internal labor costs, associated with internal use software
development projects that were discontinued after implementation, which resulted in a loss on disposal/
writedown of property, plant and equipment, net in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations.

In March 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation
No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations™ (“FIN 47”), an interpretation of
SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS No. 143™). FIN 47 clarifies that
conditional asset retirement obligations meet the definition of liabilities and should be recognized when
incurred if their fair values can be reasonably estimated. Uncertainty surrounding the timing and
method of settlement that may be conditional on events occurring in the future are factored into the
measurement of the liability rather than the existence of the liability. SFAS No. 143 established
accounting and reporting standards for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets legally required by law, regulatory rule or contractual agreement and the associated asset
retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation in the period in which it is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the
entity capitalizes the cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset, which is
then depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. The liability is increased over time through
income such that the liability will equate to the future cost to retire the long-lived asset at the expected
retirement date. Upon settlement of the liability, an entity either settles the obligation for its recorded
amount or incurs a gain or loss upon settlement. Qur obligations are primarily the result of
requirements under our facility lease agreements which generally have “return to original condition”
clauses which would require us to remove or restore items such as shred pits, vaults, demising walls and
office build-outs, among others. As of December 31, 2005, we have recognized the cumulative effect of
initially applying FIN 47 as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle as prescribed in
FIN 47. The impact of adopting FIN 47 as of December 31, 2005 was a gross charge of $4,422 (2,751,
net of tax), an increase in property, plant and equipment, net of $1,889 and long-term liabilities of
$6,311. The significant assumptions used in estimating our aggregate asset retirement obligation are the
timing of removals, estimated cost and associated expected inflation rates that are consistent with
historical rates and credit-adjusted risk-free rates that approximate our incremental borrowing rate.

A reconciliation of liabilities for asset retirement obligations is as follows:

December 31,
2006 2007
Asset Retirement Obligations, beginning of the year . .......... $6,311  $7,074
Liabilities Incurred . ... .. .. e 537 287
Liabilities Settled . . . .. ... ... . i (410) (473)
Accretion EXpense . . ... ..o i e 636 887
Asset Retirement Obligations, end of the year. .. ............. $7,074 $7,775
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Had we applied the provisions of FIN 47 as of January 1, 2005, the pro forma impacts on net
income and basic and diluted earnings per common share would not be material for 2005.

g. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We apply the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Under
SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are reviewed
annually for impairment or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. Separable intangible assets
that are not deemed to have indefinite lives are amortized over their useful lives.

We have selected October 1 as our annual goodwill impairment review date. We performed our
annual goodwill impairment review as of October 1, 2005, 2006 and 2007 and noted no impairment of
goodwill. In making this assessment, we rely on a number of factors including operating results,
business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, transactions and market place data.
There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and our judgment in applying them to the
analysis of goodwill impairment. As of December 31, 2007, no factors were identified that would alter
this assessment. When changes occur in the composition of one or more reporting units, the goodwill is
reassigned to the reporting units affected based on their relative fair value. Qur reporting units at
which level we performed our goodwill impairment analysis as of October 1, 2007 were as follows:
North America {excluding Fulfillment), Fulfillment, U.K., Continental Europe, Worldwide Digital
Business (excluding Iron Mountain Intellectual Property Management, Inc. (“IPM”)), IPM, South
America, Mexico and Asia Pacific.

Goodwill valuations have been calculated using an income approach based on the present value of
future cash flows of each reporting unit. This approach incorporates many assumptions including future
growth rates, discount factors, expected capital expenditures and income tax cash flows. Changes in
economic and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in goodwill impairments in
future periods.
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IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Centinued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill attributable to each reportable operating segment
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 is as follows: :

North

American International  Worldwide

Physical Physical Digital Total

Business Business Business Consolidated
Balance as of December 31,2005 .............. $1,543,037 $463,742  $131,862 $2,138,641
Deductible goodwill acquired during the year. ... .. 5,581 1,726 — 7,307
Non-deductible goodwill acquired during the year. . . 3,215 5,877 — 9,092
Adjustments to purchase reserves .............. (369) (2,414) (91) (2,874)
Fair value and other adjustments(1)............. (9,661) 1,726 (7,734) (15,609)
Currencyeffects . . ......... ... ... .. . .. 22 28,610 — 28,632
Balance as of December 31,2006 .............. 1,541,825 499,267 124,037 2,165,129
Deductible goodwill acquired during the year . ... .. 62,760 10,962 — 73,722
Non-deductible goodwill acquired during the year. . . 89,044 18,982 135,360 243,386
Adjustments to purchase reserves . ............. (26) (469) — (495)
Fair value and other adjustments(2) . ............ (11,392) 13,463 — 2,071
Currency effects ......... ... o i 35,489 54,990 — 90,479
Balance as of December 31,2007 .............. $1,717,700  $597,195  $259,397 $2,574,292

(1) Fair value and other adjustments primarily includes contingent payments of approximately $14,200
related to acquisitions made in previous years, as well as, finalization of customer relationship, core
technology, property, plant and equipment (primarily racking) and operating lease fair value
allocations from preliminary estimates previously recorded of approximately $(25,600), and
adjustments to deferred income taxes of approximately $(4,200).

(2) Fair value and other adjustments primarily includes contingent payments of approximately $1,800
related to acquisitions made in previous years, as well as, adjustments to record deferred tax
liabilities of approximately $(4,500) and finalization of customer relationship allocations from
preliminary estimates previously recorded for two acquisitions in 2006 of approximately $4,700.

h. Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” we review long-lived assets and all amortizable intangible assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted net cash flows of
the operation to which the assets relate to their carrying amount. The operations are generally
distinguished by the business segment and geographic region in which they operate. If the operation is
determined to be unable to recover the carrying amount of its assets, then intangible assets are written
down first, followed by the other long-lived assets of the operation, to fair value. Fair value is
determined based on discounted cash flows or appraised values, depending upon the nature of the
assets.
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Consolidated gains on disposal/writedown of property, plant and equipment, net of $3,485 for the
year ended December 31, 2005, consisted primarily of a gain on the sale of a facility in the U.K. during
the fourth quarter of 2005 of approximately $4,500 offset by software asset writedowns of approximately
$1,100. Consolidated gains on disposal/writedown of property, plant and equipment, net of $9,560 in
the year ended December 31, 2006 consisted primarily of a gain on the sale of a facility in the UK. in
the fourth quarter of 2006 of approximately $10,499 offset by disposals and asset writedowns.
Consolidated gains on disposal/writedown of property, plant and equipment, net of $5,472 in the year
ended December 31, 2007 consisted primarily of a gain related to insurance proceeds from our
property claim of $7,745 associated with the July 2006 fire in one of our London, England facilities, net
of a $1,263 write-off of previously deferred software costs in our North American Physical Business
associated with a discontinued product after implementation.

i.  Customer Relationships and Acquisition Costs and Other Intangible Assets

Costs related to the acquisition of large volume accounts, net of revenues received for the initial
transfer of the records, are capitalized. Costs incurred to transport the boxes to one of our facilities,
which includes labor and transportation charges, are amortized over periods ranging from five to
30 years (weighted average of 25 years at December 31, 2007) and are included in depreciation and
amortization in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Payments to a customer’s
current records management vendor or direct payments to a customer are amortized over
approximately 5 years to the storage and service revenue line items in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. If the customer terminates its relationship with us, the unamortized cost is
charged to expense or revenue. However, in the event of such termination, we generally collect, and
record as income, permanent removal fees that generally equal or exceed the amount of the
unamortized costs. Customer relationship intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
which represents the majority of the balance, are amortized over periods ranging from six to 30 vears
(weighted average of 22 years at December 31, 2007). Amounts allocated in purchase accounting to
customer relationship intangible assets are calculated based upon estimates of their fair value. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, the gross carrying amount of customer relationships and acquisition costs
was $339,591 and $557,192, respectively, and accumulated amortization of those costs was $56,835 and
$76,789, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, amortization expense was
$12,910, $16,292 and $22,110, respectively, included in depreciation and amortization in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007,
the charge to revenues associated with large volume accounts was $3,681 and $4,864, respectively, which
represents the level anticipated over the next 5 years.

Other intangible assets, including noncompetition agreements, acquired core technology and
trademarks, are capitalized and amortized over a weighted average period of eight years, As of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, the gross carrying amount of other intangible assets was $32,985 and
$50,004, respectively, and accumulated amortization of those costs was $9,521 and $13,183, respectively,
included in other in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. For the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, amortization expense was $3,314, $4,336 and $4,526, respectively,
included in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Estimated amortization expense for existing intangible assets (excluding deferred financing costs,
which are amortized through interest expense, of $4,828, $4,828, $4,828, $4,571 and $4,025 for 2008,
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively) for the next five succeeding fiscal years is as follows:

Estimated

Amortization Expense
2008 . e e e e e s $30,521
2009 ... e i e e 29,743
2000 ... e e e e e 29,086
72 1 3 26,628
1.1 1 25,586

j- Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are amortized over the life of the related debt using the effective interest
rate method. If debt is retired early, the related unamortized deferred financing costs are written off in
the period the debt is retired to other expense (income), net. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, gross
carrying amount of deferred financing costs was $50,775 and $52,034 respectively, and accumulated
amortization of those costs was $20,980 and $18,004, respectively, and was recorded in other assets, net
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

k. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007
Interest ............. e e e $ 56,971 § 66,586
Payroll and vacation ............. ... . .. i 48,946 65,284
Derivative liability . ... ... ... ... 1,336 —
Restructuring costs (see Note 6) . ..................... 2,821 1,857
Incentive compensation . .. ...... .o PR 34,773 45,333
INCOME LAXES . . v vttt ee et e et inaia e aans 6,973 2,025
L 11 =1 115,113 148,136

$266,933  $329,221

1.  Revenues

Our revenues consist of storage revenues as well as service and storage material sales revenues.
Storage revenues consist of periodic charges related to the storage of materials or data (generally on a
per unit basis). Service and storage material sales revenues are comprised of charges for related service
activities and courier operations and the sale of software licenses and storage materials. Included in
service and storage matefials sales are related core service revenues arising from: (a) the handling of
records including the addition of new records, temporary removal of records from storage, refiling of
removed records, destruction of records, and permanent withdrawls from storage; (b) courier
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operations, consisting primarily of the pickup and delivery of records upon customer request; (c) secure
shredding of sensitive documents; and (d) other recurring services including maintenance and support
contracts. Qur complementary services revenues, included in service and storage material sales, arise
from special project work, including data restoration, providing fulfillment services, consulting services
and product sales, including software licenses, specially designed storage containers, magnetic media
including computer tapes and related supplies.

We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectability of the
resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Storage and service revenues are recognized in the month
the respective storage or service is provided and customers are generally billed on a monthly basis on
contractually agreed-upon terms. Amounts related to future storage or prepaid service contracts,
including maintenance and support contracts, for customers where storage fees or services are billed in
advance are accounted for as deferred revenue and recognized ratably over the applicable storage or
service period or when the service is performed. Storage material sales are recognized when shipped to
the customer and title has passed to the customer and include software license sales. Sales of software
licenses to distributors are recognized at the time a distributor reports that the software has been
licensed to an end-user and all revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

m. Rent Normalization

We have entered into various leases for buildings. Certain leases have fixed escalation clauses or
other features which require normalization of the rental expense over the life of the lease resulting in
deferred rent being reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In addition, we have
assumed various above and below market leases in connection with certain of our acquisitions. The
difference between the present value of these lease obligations and the market rate at the date of the
acquisition was recorded as a deferred rent liability or other long-term asset and is being amortized
over the remaining lives of the respective leases.

n. Stock-Based Compensation

We adopted the measurement provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition
and Disclosure” in our financial statements beginning January 1, 2003. We adopted SFAS No. 123R,
“Share-Based Payment”, effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method. We record
stock-based compensation expense, utilizing the straight-line method, for the cost of stock options,
restricted stock and shares issued under the employee stock purchase plan (together, “Employee Stock-
Based Awards”). For the year ended December 31, 2006, the incremental stock-based compensation
expense due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R caused income before provision for income taxes and
minority interest to decrease by $894, and net income to decrease by $539, and had no impact on basic
and diluted earnings per share.

Stock-based compensation expense, included in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $6,189 ($4,757 after tax or
$0.02 per basic and diluted share), $12,387 (89,188 after tax or $0.05 per basic and diluted share) and
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$13,861 ($10,164 after tax or $0.05 per basic and diluted share), respectively, for Employee Stock-Based
Awards.

SFAS No. 123R requires that the benefits associated with the tax deductions in excess of
recognized compensation cost be reported as a financing cash flow. This requirement reduces reported
operating cash flows and increases reported financing cash flows. As a result, net financing cash flows
included $4,387 and $6,765 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, from the
benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost. We used the short form method
to calculate the Additional Paid-in Capital (“APIC”) pool. The tax benefit of any resulting excess tax
deduction increases the APIC pool. Any resulting tax deficiency is deducted from the APIC pool.

The following table details the effect on net income and earnings per share had stock-based
compensation expense for the Employee Stock-Based Awards been recorded based on SFAS No. 123R.
The reported and pro forma net income and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2007 in the table below are the same since stock-based compensation expense is calculated under
the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. These amounts for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 are
included in the table below only to provide the detail for a comparative presentation to the 2005
period.

Year Ended December 31,

_ 2005 2006 2007

Net income, asreported .. ...... ... o0ttt $111,099 $128,863 $153,094
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income, net of tax benefit . ............. .. ... .. 4,757 9,188 10,164
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of

tax benefit . . ... ... .. e (5,965)  (9,188) (10,164)
Netincome, proforma .. ... ... ... ..y $109,891 $128863 $153,094
Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported . . . . . e $ 057 § 065 $ 077

Basic—proforma ... ... ... ... ... .. il 0.56 0.65 0.77

Diluted—as reported . ... ..o e 0.56 0.64 0.76

Diluted—proforma .. ...... ... .. i i 0.55 0.64 0.76

Stock Options

Under our various stock option plans, options were granted with exercise prices equal to the
market price of the stock at the date of grant. The majority of our options become exercisable ratably
over a period of five years and generally have a contractual life of 10 years, unless the holder’s
employment is terminated. Beginning in 2007, certain of the options we issue become exercisable
ratably over a period of ten years and have a contractual life of 12 years, unless the holder’s
employment is terminated. As of December 31, 2007, 10-year vesting options represent 11.8% of total
outstanding options. Our Directors are considered employees under the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.

7




IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

A total of 30,036,442 shares of common stock have been reserved for grants of options and other
rights under our various stock incentive plans. The number of shares available for grant at
December 31, 2007 was 2,695,809,

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $7.90, $9.89 and
$11.72 per share, respectively. The values were estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The following table summarizes the weighted average assumptions used for
grants in the year ended December 31:

Weighted Average Assumption 2005 2006 2007

Expected volatility . ..................... 26.5% 24.2% 27.9%
Risk-free interest rate .. .......... PRI 4.12% 4.66% 4.42%
Expected dividend yield . .. ............... None None None
Expected life of the option . . .. ............ 6.6 years 6.6 years 1.5 years

Expected volatility was calculated utilizing daily historical volatility over a period that equates to
the expected life of the option. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury interest rates
whose term is consistent with the expected life of the stock options. Expected dividend yield was not
considered in the option pricing model since we do not pay dividends and have no current plans to do
so in the future. The expected life (estimated period of time outstanding) of the stock options granted
was estimated using the historical exercise behavior of employees.

A summary of option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise  Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Term Value
Qutstanding at December 31,2000 ................ 8,067,327 $17.21
Granted . . .. .. e 4,714,805 28.26
Issued in Connection with Acquisitions ............. 923,757 3.01
Exercised . ........ . ... . (1,309,086) 10.65
Forfeited ............ .. . . 0 i, (356,102) 23.26
Expired .. ... . e (44,066) 16.56
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 ................ 11,996,635 $21.01 1.6 $192.066
Options exercisable at December 31,2007 ........... 4,385,087 $13.34 5.5 $103,839

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised for the years ended December 31, 20035,
2006 and 2007 was approximately $31,539, $18,271 and $24,113, respectively. The aggregate fair value
of stock options vested for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was approximately
$4,717, $7,487 and $29,361, respectively.
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Restricted Stock

Under our various stock option plans, we may also issue grants of restricted stock. We granted
restricted stock in July 2005, which had a 3-year vesting period, and December 2006 and December
2007, which had a 5-year vesting period. The fair value of restricted stock is the excess of the market
price of our common stock at the date of grant over the exercise price, which is zero. Included in our
stock-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 is a portion
of the cost related.to restricted stock granted in July 2005, December 2006 and December 2007.

A summary of restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted-

Average
Restricted  Grant-Date
Stock Fair Value

Non-vested at December 31, 2006 .. ... ... vrunenn. 62,348 $21.18
Granted . ........ .o [ 1,012 3753
Vested .. ... e e e -(31,351) 20.75
Forfeited ... ... .. i e (2,139) 28.16
Non-vested at December 31,2007 ....... S ... 29870 21.69

The total fair value of shares vested for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 was
$0, $1,003 and $863, respectively.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We offer an employee stock purchase plan in which participation is available to substantially all
U.S. and Canadian employees who meet certain service eligibility requirements (the “ESPP”). The
ESPP provides a way for our eligible employees to become stockholders on favorable terms. The ESPP
provides for the purchase of our common stock by eligible employees through successive offering
periods. We generally have two 6-month offering periods, the first of which begins June 1 and ends
November 30 and the second begins December 1 and ends May 31. During each offering period,
participating employees accumulate after-tax payroll contributions, up to a maximum of 15% of their
compensation, to pay the exercise price of their options. Participating employees may withdraw from an
offering period before the purchase date and obtain a refund of the amounts withheld as payroll
deductions. At the end of the offering period, outstanding options are exercised, and each employee’s
accumulated contributions are used to purchase our common stock. Prior to the December 1, 2006
offering period, the price for shares purchased under the ESPP was 85% of the fair market price at
either the beginning or the end of the offering perlod whichever was lower. Beginning with the
December 1, 2006 ESPP offering period, the price for shares purchased under the ESPP was changed
to 95% of the fair market price at the end of the offering period, without a look back feature. As a
result, we no longer need to recognize compensation cost for our ESPP shares purchased beginning
with the December 1, 2006 offering period and will, therefore, no longer have disclosure relative to our
weighted average assumptions associated with determining the fair value stock option expense in our
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consolidated financial statements on a prospective basis relative to offering periods after December 1,
2006. The ESPP was amended and approved by our stockholders on May 26, 2005 to increase the
number of shares from 1,687,500 to 3,487,500. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
there were 579,173, 535,826 and 274,881 shares, respectively, purchased under the ESPP. The number
of shares available for purchase at December 31, 2007 was 1,375,532,

The fair value of the ESPP offerings was estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes
option valuation model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table for the respective
periods. Expected volatility was calculated utilizing daily historical volatility over a period that equates
to the expected life of the option. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve
in effect at the time of grant. The expected life equates to the 6-month offering period over which
employees accumulate payroll deductions to purchase our common stock. Expected dividend vield was

not considered in the option pricing model since we do not pay dividends and have no current plans to
do so in the future.

December 2004 May 2005 December 2005 May 2006

Weighted Average Assumption Offering Offering Offering Offering

Expected volatility . . ........ 24.0% 27.5% 26.6% 20.1%
Risk-free interest rate . ...... 3.41% 3.96% 4.04% 4.75%
Expected dividend yield . ... .. None None None None
Expected life of the option.... 6 months 6 months 6 months 6 months

The weighted average fair value for the ESPP options was $4.05, $4.01, $5.80 and $4.80 for the
December 2004, May 2005, December 2005 and May 2006 offerings, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation cost related to the unvested portion of our
Employee Stock-Based Awards was $73,759 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average
period of 5.2 years.

We generally issue shares for the exercises of stock options, issnance of restricted stock and
issuance of shares under our ESPP from unissued reserved shares.

0. Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
(“SEAS No. 109”), which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax and financial reporting basis of assets
and liabilities and for loss and credit carryforwards. Valuation allowances are provided when recovery
of deferred tax assets is not considered more likely than not. We adopted the provisions of FASB
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”), an interpretation of
SFAS No. 109, on January 1, 2007. '

p- Income Per Share—Basic and Diluted

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” basic net income per common share is |
calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. The
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calculation of diluted net income per share is consistent with that of basic net income per share but
gives effect to all potential common shares (that is, securities such as options, warrants or convertible
securities) that were outstanding during the period, unless the effect is antidilutive.

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
NELICOME « . o oo ettt ittt e, $ 111,099 § 128863 § 153094
Weighted-average shares—basic ................... 195,988,000 198,116,000 199,938,000
Effect of dilutive potential stock options ... .......... 2,108,120 2,317,375 2,108,554
Effect of dilutive potential restricted stock ........... 8,503 29 828 15,764
Weighted-average shares—diluted . . .. .............. 198,104,623 200,463,203 202,062,318
Net income per share—basic ..................... $ 057 $§ 065 § 0.77
Net income per share—diluted 3 . .............. ... $ 056 $ 064 §$ 0.76

Antidilutive stock options, excluded from the calculation . 961,407 725,398 2,039,601
g. New Accounting Pronouncements "

In Septemnber 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”
(“SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements, and is effective for. financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. We do not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations. In February 2008, the FASB delayed the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonrecurring
fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities until fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2008.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”7 (“SFAS No. 159”).
SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items
at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not
expect the adoption of SFAS No. 159 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of
operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS No. 141R™), and SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statement-an amendment to ARB No. 51” (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 141R and SFAS No. 160 will
require (a) more of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed to be measured at fair value as of the
acquisition date, (b) liabilities related to contingent consideration to be remeasured at fair value in
each subsequent period, (¢) an acquirer to expense as incurred acquisition-related costs, such as
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transaction fees for attorneys, accountants and investment bankers, as well as, costs associated with
restructuring the activities of the acquired company, and (d) noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries
initially to be measured at fair value and classified as a separate component of equity. SFAS No. 141R
is effective and provided for prospective application for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008.
SFAS No. 160 is required to apply retrospectively in comparative financial statements for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. The impact of SFAS No. 141R and SFAS No. 160 is dependent
upon the level of future acquisitions; however, they will generally result in (1) increased operating costs
associated with the expensing of transaction and restructuring costs, as incurred, (2) increased volatility
in earnings related to the fair valuing of contingent consideration through earnings in subsequent
periods, and (3) increased depreciation, amortization and equity balances associated with the fair
valuing of noncontrolling interests and their classification as a separate component of consolidated
stockholders’ equity.

r. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Credit Memo Reserves

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts and credit memos for estimated losses resulting
from the potential inability of our customers to make required payments and disputes regarding billing
and service issues. When calculating the allowance, we consider our past loss experience, current and
prior trends in our aged receivables and credit memo activity, current economic conditions, and specific
circumstances of individual receivable balances. We consider accounts receivable to be delinquent after
such time as reasonable means of collection have been exhausted. We charge-off uncollectible balances
as circumstances warrant, generally, no later than one year past due.

Rollforward of allowance for doubtful accounts and credit memo reserves is as follows:

Allowance for

Balance at Credit Memos Bad Debts Balance at

Beginning of the Charged to Charged to Other End of

Year Ended December 31, Year ' Revenue Expense Additions{(1)  Deductions(2) the Year
2005 ... .. ... $13,886 $21,124 $4,402 $ 67 $(24,957)  $14,522
2006 ............. 14,522 23,147 2,836 596 {25,944) 15,157
2000 . ............ 15,157 21,075 2,897 1,186 {21,069) 19,246

(1) Primarily consists of recoveries of previously written-off accounts receivable, allowances of
businesses acquired and the impact associated with currency translation adjustments.

(2) Primarily consists of the write-off of accounts receivable.
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s.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Items, Net

Accumulated other comprehensive items, net consists of the following:

December 31,

2006 2007
Foreign currency translation adjustments . ................. $32,918 $73,398
Market value adjustments for hedging contracts, net of tax . . . .. (170) —
Market value adjustments for securities, netof tax . . .. ....... 1,046 663

$33,794  $74,061

t. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally
of temporary cash investments and accounts receivable. The only significant concentration of credit risk
as of December 31, 2007 relates to cash and cash equivalents held on deposit with primarily 3 global
banks which we consider to be large, highly rated investment grade institutions.

u. Available-for-sale Securities

We have one trust that holds marketable securities. Marketable securities are classified as
available-for-sale, as defined by SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments and Debt and
Equity Securities.” As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, the fair value of the money market and mutual
funds included in this trust amounted to $7,414 and $7,659, respectively, included in prepaid expenses
and other in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, Included in other expense (income), net in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations were net realized gains of $127, $336 and $961
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Unrealized gains and losses are
reported as a component of accumulated other comprehensive items, net in the accompanying
consolidated statement of stockholder’s eguity.

v. Investments

As of December 31, 2007, we have investments in joint ventures, including minority interests in
Archive Management Solutions of 20% (Poland), in Team Delta Holding A/S of 20% (Denmark), in
Iron Mountain Arsivleme Hizmetleri A.S. of 19.9% (Turkey), and in Safe doc S.A. of 13% (Greece).
These investments are accounted for using the equity method. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, the
carrying value related to these investments was $3,510 and $4,320, respectively, included in other assets
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, we have an investment in Image Tag of
$1,500 as of December 31, 2007, which is accounted for using the cost method, included in other
long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
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3. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We previously entered into two interest rate swap agreements, which were derivatives as defined by
SFAS No. 133 and designated as cash flow hedges. These swap agreements hedged interest rate risk on
certain amounts of our term loan. Both of these swap agreements expired in the first quarter of 2006.
As a result of the foregoing, for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, we recorded additional
interest expense of $3,952 and $127 resulting from interest rate swap payments.

In connection with certain real estate loans, we swapped $97,000 of floating rate debt to fixed rate
debt. This swap agreement was terminated in the second quarter of 2007. The estimated cost to
terminate these swaps (fair value of derivative liability) was $760 at December 31, 2006, and is included
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The total impact of marking to market the fair market
value of the derivative liability and cash payments associated with the interest rate swap agreement
resulted in our recording interest income of $1,698, $646 and $34 for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

In June 2006, IME entered into a floating for fixed interest rate swap contract with a notional
value of 75,000 British pounds sterling and was designated as a cash flow hedge. This swap agreement
hedged interest rate risk on IME’s British pounds multi-currency term loan facility. The notional value
of the swap declined to 60,000 British pounds sterling in March 2007 to match the remaining term loan
amount outstanding as of that date and was terminated in the second quarter of 2007. We have
recarded, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, the fair value of the derivative liability, a
deferred tax asset and a corresponding charge to accumulated other comprehensive items of $364 ($273
recorded in accrued expenses and $91 recorded in other long-term liabilities), $109 and $255,
respectively, as of December 31, 2006. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, we recorded
additional interest expense of $124 and interest income of $799, respectively, resulting from interest
rate swap cash settlements and changes in fair vaiue.

In September 2006, we entered into a forward contract program to exchange 11.S. dollars for
55,000 in Australian dollars (“AUD”} and 20,200 in New Zealand dollars (“NZD"”) to hedge our
intercompany exposure in these countries. These forward contracts settle on a monthly basis, at which
time we enter into new forward contracts for the same underlying AUD and NZD amounts, to
continue to hedge movements in AUD and NZD against the U.S. dollar. At the time of settlement, we
either pay or receive the net settlement amount from the forward contract and recognize this amount
in other expense (income), net in the accompanying statement of operations as a realized foreign
exchange gain or loss. We have not designated these forward contracts as hedges. These forward
contracts were not renewed in the third quarter of 2007. We recorded a realized loss of $3,179 and
$5,906 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. At the end of each month, we
mark the outstanding forward contracts to market and record an unrealized foreign exchange gain or
loss for the mark-to-market valuation. As of December 31, 2006, we recorded an unrealized foreign
exchange loss of $303 in other expense (income}, net in the accompanying statement of operations.

In January 2007, we entered into forward contracts to exchange 124,368 U.S. dollars for
96,000 Euros and 194,000 Canadian dollars (“CAD”) for 127,500 Euros to hedge our intercompany
exposures with Canada and our subsidiaries whose functional currency is the Euro. In March 2007, in
conjunction with the issuance of CAD denominated senior subordinated notes, the CAD for Eurg swap
was not renewed and was replaced with additional U.S. for Euro swaps. These forward contracts were
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3. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (Continued)

not renewed in the third quarter of 2007. In the third quarter of 2007, we designated a portion of our
6%% Euro Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018 issued by IMI as a hedge of net investment of certain
of our Euro denominated subsidiaries. As a result, we recorded $6,136 (33,926, net of tax) of foreign
exchange losses related to the mark to marking of such debt to currency translation adjustments which
is a component of accumulated other comprehensive items, net included in stockholders’ equity for the
year ended December 31, 2007. In May 2007, we entered into forward contracts to exchange 146,096
U.S. dollars for 73,600 in British pounds sterling to hedge our intercompany exposures with IME.
These forward contracts settle on a monthly basis, at which time we may enter into new forward
contracts for the same underlying amounts to continue to hedge movements in the underlying
currencies. At the time of setttement, we either pay or receive the net settlement amount from the
forward contract and recognize this amount in other expense (income}, net in the accompanying
statement of operations as a realized foreign exchange gain or loss. We have not designated these
forward contracts as hedges. We recorded a realized gain in connection with these forward contracts of
$8,045 for the year ended December 31, 2007. At the end of each month, we mark the outstanding
forward contracts to market and record an unrealized foreign exchange gain or loss for the
mark-to-market valuation. As of December 31, 2007, we recorded an unrealized foreign exchange gain
of $935 in other expense {(income), net in the accompanying statement of operations.
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4, Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following:
December 31,
2006 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

IMI Revolving Credit Facility(1y . ... ................... $ 170472 $170472 % — % —
IMI Term Loan Facility(1) .. . ... . ... .. ... ... ..., 312,000 312,000 —_ _—
IME Revolving Credit Facility(1) ...................... 77,819 77,819 — —
IME Term Loan Facility(1) ... ............. ... ... ..... 189,005 189,005 —_ —_
New Revolving Credit Facility(1). . . .................... — — 394,156 394,156
New Term Loan Facility(1) . .. ... ... ... ... .......... — — 408,500 408,500
8%4% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011

(the “B%%%” notes)(2)(3) ... oo oo s 71,789 72,240 71,809 71,790
8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2013 ’

(the “8%%” notes)(2)(3) . ... ... 448,001 461,310 447,981 453,844
TVa% GBP Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014

(the “T%%"” notes)(2H(3) - ... ... ... i 293,865 287,988 299,595 281,619
7%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015

(the “T¥%" notes)(2)(3) - - - - i v v e 438,594 438,802 437680 437,366
6%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2016

(the “6%%"” notes)(2)(3} .. ... i 315,553 305,600 316,047 302,534
7% CAD Senior Subordinated Notes due 2017

(the “Subsidiary Notes"{2)(4) . . . . . . ..o, — — 178395 172,151
8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018

(the “8%%" notes}2)(3) - - - - o oo i e 200,000 212,500 200,000 210,750
8% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2018 (the “8%” notes}(2)(3) . 49,663 50,000 49,692 50,000
6%% Euro Sentor Subordinated Notes due 2018

{the “6%%” notes)(2)(3) . ... ... e 39,429 39,609 372,719 353,054
Real Estate Mortgages(5) .. ....... .. ... 4,081 4,081 7,381 7,381
Seller Notes(5) . ... .. ... i e 8,757 8,757 8,329 8,329
Other(SH6) - - - - oo e 49,788 49788 74,004 74,004
Total Long-term Debt . . . . ... ... . ... ... . 2,668,816 3,266,288
Less Current Portion. . . .......... ... ..o ... (63,105) (33,440)
Long-term Debt, Net of Current Portion . ................ $2,605,711 $3,232,848

(1) The capital stock or other equity interests of most of our U.S. subsidiaries, and up to 66% of the capital stock

)
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or other equity interests of our first tier foreign subsidiaries, are pledged to secure these debt instruments,
together with all intercompany obligations of foreign subsidiaries owed to us or to one of our U.S. subsidiary
guarantors. The fair value of this long-term debt either approximates the carrying value (as borrowings under
these debt instruments are based on current variable market interest rates as of December 31, 2006 and

The fair values of these debt instruments is based on quoted market prices for these notes on December 31,
2006 and 2007, respectively.
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4. Debt (Continued)

(3) . Collectively referred to as the Parent Notes. Iron Mountain Incorporated (“IMI") is the direct obligor on the
Parent Notes, which are fully and unconditionally guaranteed,.on a senior subordinated basis, by substantially
all of its direct and indirect wholly owned U.S. subsidiaries (the “Guarantors’). These guarantees are joint
and several obligations of the Guarantors. Iron Mountain Canada Corporation (“Canada Company”) and the
remainder of our subsidiaries do not guarantee the Parent Notes.

(4) Canada Company is the direct obligor on the Subsidiary Notes, which are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed, on a senior subordinated basis, by IMI and the Guarantors. These guarantees are joint and
several obligations of IMI and the Guarantors.

(5) We believe the fair value of this debt approximates its carrying value.

(6) Includes (a) capital lease obligations of $41,384 and $53,689 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively,
and (b) other various notes and other obligations, which were assumed by us as a result of certain acquisitions
and other agreements, of $8,404 and $20,315 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

a. Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loans

On April 16, 2007, we entered into a new credit agreement (the “New Credit Agreement”) to
replace both the IMI revolving credit and term loan facilities of $750,000 and the IME revolving credit
and term loan facilities of 200,000 British pounds sterling. On November 9, 2007, we increased the
aggregate amount available to be borrowed under the New Credit Agreement from $900,000 to
$1,200,000. The New Credit Agreement consists of revolving credit facilities, where we can borrow,
subject to certain limitations as defined in the New Credit Agreement, up to an aggregate amount of
$790,000 (including Canadian dollar and multi-currency revolving credit facilities) (the “new revolving
credit facility”), and a $410,000 term loan facility (the “new term loan facility”). Our subsidiaries, Iron
Mountain Canada Corporation (“Canada Company”) and Iron Mountain Switzerland GmbH, may
borrow directly under the Canadian revolving credit and multi-currency revolving credit facilities,
respectively. Additional subsidiary borrowers may be added under the multi-currency revolving credit
facility. The new revolving credit facility terminates on April 16, 2012. With respect to the new term
loan facility, quarterly loan payments of approximately $1,000 are required through maturity on
April 16, 2014, at which time the remaining outstanding principal balance of the new term loan facility
is due. The interest rate on borrowings under the New Credit Agreement varies depending on our
choice of interest rate and currency options, plus an applicable margin. IMI guarantees the obligations
of each of the subsidiary borrowers under the New Credit Agreement, and substantially all of our U.S.
subsidiaries guarantee the obligations of IMI and the subsidiary borrowers. The capital stock or other
equity interests of most of our U.S. subsidiaries, and up to 66% of the capital stock or other equity
interests of our first tier foreign subsidiaries, are pledged to secure the New Credit Agreement,
together with all intercompany obligations of foreign subsidiaries owed to us or to one of our U.S.
subsidiary guarantors. We recorded a charge to other expense (income), net of approximately $5,703 in
2007 related to the early retirement of the IMI and IME revolving credit facilities and term loans,
representing the write-off of deferred financing costs. As of December 31, 2007, we had $394,156 of
outstanding borrowings under the new revolving credit facility, of which $149,500 was denominated in
U.S. dollars and the remaining balance was denominated in CAD 240,000; we also had various
outstanding letters of credit totaling $34,534. The remaining availability, based on IMI’s leverage ratio,
which is calculated based on the last 12 months’ earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
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4. Debt (Continued)

amortization (“EBITDA”), and other adjustments as defined in the New Credit Agreement and current
external debt, under the new revolving credit facility on December 31, 2007, was $361,310. The interest
rate in effect under the new revolving credit facility and new term loan facility ranged from 6.8% to
8.3% and 6.2% to 7.1%, respectively, as of December 31, 2007. For the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2006, we recorded commitment fees of $806 and $477, respectively, based on the unused
balances under the old IME revolving credit facility. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006,
we recorded commitment fees of $846 and $558, respectively, based on the unused balances under the
old IMI revolving credit facility. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded commitment fees
of $1,307 based on the unused balances under our revolving credit facility.

The New Credit Agreement, our indentures and other agreements governing our indebtedness
contain certain restrictive financial and operating covenants, including covenants that restrict our ability
to complete acquisitions, pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness, make investments, sell assets and take
certain other corporate actions. The covenants do not contain a rating trigger. Therefore, a change in
our debt rating would not trigger a default under the New Credit Agreement and our indentures and
other agreements governing our indebtedness. Our revolving credit and term loan facilities, as well as
our indentures, use EBITDA based calculations as primary measures of financial performance,
including leverage ratios. IMI’s revolving credit and term leverage ratio was 4.4 and 4.5 as of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, compared to a maximum allowable ratio of 5.5. Similarly,
our bond leverage ratio, per the indentures, was 4.6 and 5.1 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007,
respectively, compared to a maximum allowable ratio of 6.5. Noncompliance with these leverage ratios
would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and liquidity. We were in compliance
with all debt covenants in material agreements as of December 31, 2007. Our bond leverage ratio
decreased from 5.7 as of September 30, 2007 to 5.1 as of December 31, 2007 due to the designation as
Excluded Restricted Subsidiaries, as defined in the indentures, of our subsidiaries that own our assets
and conduct our operations in the United Kingdom. As a result of such designation, these subsidiaries
are now subject to substantially all of the covenants of the indentures, except that they are not required
to provide a guarantee, and the EBITDA of these subsidiaries is included for purposes of calculating
the leverage ratio.

b. Notes Issued under Indentures

As of December 31, 2007, we have nine series of senior subordinated notes issued under various
indentures, cight are direct obligations of the parent company, IMI; one (the Subsidiary Notes) is a
direct obligation of Canada Company; and all are subordinated to debt outstanding under the New
Credit Agreement:

+ $71,881 principal amount of notes maturing on July 1, 2011 and bearing interest at a rate of
8% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on January 1 and July 1;

* $447,874 principal amount of notes maturing on April 1, 2013 and bearing interest at a rate of
8%% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1;
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+ 150,000 British pounds sterling principal amount of notes maturing on April 15, 2014 and
bearing interest at a rate of 7%4% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and
October 15 (these notes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange);

* $431,255 principal amount of notes maturing on January 15, 2015 and bearing interest at a rate
of 7%% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15;

* $320,000 principal amount of notes maturing on January 1, 2016 and bearing interest at a rate of
6%% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on January 1 and July 1;

* 175,000 CAD principal amount of notes maturing on March 15, 2017 and bearing interest at a
rate of 7%2% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and September 15 (the
Subsidiary Notes);

* $200,000 principal amount of notes maturing on July 15, 2018 and bearing interest at a rate of
8%:% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15;

* $50,000 principal amount of notes maturing on October 15, 2018 and bearing interest at a rate
of 8% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15; and

* 255,000 Euro principal amount of notes maturing on October 15, 2018 and bearing interest at a
rate of 6%% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears on April 15 and October 15.

The Parent Notes and the Subsidiary Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a senior
subordinated basis, by substantially all of our direct and indirect 100% owned U.S. subsidiaries (the
“Guarantors”). These guarantees are joint and several obligations of the Guarantors. The remainder of
our subsidiaries do not guarantee the senior subordinated notes. Additionally, IMI guarantees the
Subsidiary Notes. Canada Company does not guarantee the Parent Notes.

In January 2007, we completed an underwritten public offering of 225,000 Euro in aggregate
principal amount of our 6%% Euro Senior Subordinated Notes due 2(18, which were issued at a price
of 98.99% of par. Our net proceeds were 219,200 Euro ($289,058), after paying the underwriters’
discounts and commissions and estimated expenses (excluding accrued interest payable by purchasers of
the notes from October 17, 2006). These net proceeds were used to repay outstanding indebtedness
under the old IMI term loan and revolving credit facilities,

In March 2007, one of our Canadian subsidiaries, Iron Mountain Nova Scotia Funding Company,
which was subsequently party to an amalgamation under which Canada Company was the continuing
company, issued, in a private placement, 175,000 CAD in aggregate principal amount of the Subsidiary
Notes, which were issued at par and subsequently exchanged for publicly registered notes in the U.S,,
on July 27, 2007. The net proceeds of $146,760, after sales commissions, were used to repay
outstanding indebtedness under the old IMI term loan facility.

Each of the indentures for the notes provides that we may redeem the outstanding notes, in whole
or in part, upon satisfaction of certain terms and conditions. In any redemption, we are also required
to pay all accrued but unpaid interest on the outstanding notes.

83




IRON MOUNTAIN INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

4. Debt (Continued)

The following table presents the various redemption dates and prices of the senior subordinated
notes. The redemption dates reflect the date at or after which the notes may be redeemed at our
option at a premium redemption price. After these dates, the notes may be redeemed at 100% of face
value:

Redemption 8%% notes 8%% notes 7Y% notes 7%% notes 6%% notes 7Y% notes 8%% notes 8% notes  &%% notes

Date July 15, April 1,  April 15, Januwary 15, Julyl, March 15, July 15, October 15, October 15,
2007 ... .. 100.000% 102.875% — — - - — — —
2008 ...... 100.000% 101.438% — 103.875% 103.313% — -_ - —
2009 ...... 100.000% 100.000% 103.625% 102.583% 102.208% —_ — — —
2010 ...... 100.000% 100.000% 102.417% 101.292% 101.104% — — — -
0] I 100.000% 100.000% 101.208% 100.000% 100.000% — 104.375% 104.000% 103.375%
012 ...... — 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 103.750% 102917% 102.667% 102.250%
2013 ...... — 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 102.500% 101.458% 101.333% 101.125%
2014 ...... — — 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 101.250% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%
2015 ...... — — — 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

Prior to April 15, 2009, the 7%% notes are redeemable at our option, in whole or in part, at a
specified make-whole price.

Prior to January 15, 2008, the 7%4% notes are redeemable at our option, in whole or in part, at a
specified make-whole price.

Prior to July 1, 2008, the 6%% notes are redeemable at our option, in whole or in part, at a
specified make-whole price.

Prior to March 15, 2010, we may under certain conditions redeem a portion of the 7/4% notes
with the net proceeds of one or more public equity offerings, at a redemption price of 107.50% of the
principal amount.

Prior to July 15, 2011, the 8%% notes are redeemable at our option, in whole or in part, at a
specified make-whole price. Prior to July 15, 2009, we may under certain conditions redeem a portion
of the 8%% notes with the net proceeds of one or more public equity offerings, at a redemption price
of 108.750% of the principal amount. ‘

Prior to October 15, 2011, the 8% notes and 6%% notes are redeemable at our option, in whole or
in part, at a specified make-whole price.

Each of the indentures for the notes provides that we must repurchase, at the option of the
holders, the notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest, upon the
occurrence of a “Change of Control,” which is defined in each respective indenture. Except for
required repurchases upon the occurrence of a Change of Control or in the event of certain asset sales,
each as described in the respective indenture, we are not required to make sinking fund or redemption
payments with respect to any of the notes,

Our indentures and other agreements governing our indebtedness contain certain restrictive
financial and operating covenants including covenants that restrict our ability to complete acquisitions,
pay cash dividends, incur indebtedness, make investments, sell assets and take certain other corporate
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actions. The covenants do not contain a rating trigger. Therefore, a change in our debt rating would
not trigger a default under our indentures and other agreements governing our indebtedness. As of
December 31, 2007, we were in compliance with all debt covenants in material agreements.

c. Real Estate Mortgages

In connection with the purchase of real estate and acquisitions, we assumed several mortgages on
real property. The mortgages bear interest at rates ranging from 3.2% to 7.3% and are payable in
various installments through 2023.

d. Seller Notes

In connection with the merger with Pierce Leahy in 2000, we assumed debt related to certain
existing notes as a result of acquisitions which Pierce Leahy completed in 1999. The notes bear interest
at a rate of 4.75% per year, The outstanding balance of 4,170 British pounds sterling ($8,329) on these
notes at December 31, 2007 is due on demand through 2009 and is classified as a current portion of-
long-term debt.

€. Othe;

Other long-term debt includes various notes, capital leases and other obligations assumed by us as
a result of certain acquisitions and other agreements. The outstanding balance of $74,004 on these
notes at December 31, 2007 have a weighted average interest rate of 7.5%.

Maturities of long-term debt, excluding (premiums) discounts, net, are as follows:

Y_e_a_l: Amount
200 . L e e e e e e $ 33,440
2000 . . e e e e e e e e 10,497
1 1 8,538
7. 13 1 OO , 80,070
2002 . e e e e e e e 411,706
Thcreafter ............................................. 2,722,710
$3,266.961

5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and
Non-Guarantors

The following data summarizes the consolidating Company on the equity method of accounting as
of December 31, 2006 and 2007 and for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,

The Parent Notes and the Subsidiary Notes are guaranteed by the subsidiaries referred to below as
the “Guarantors.” These subsidiaries are 100% owned by the Parent. The guarantees are full and
unconditional, as well as joint and several.
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5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and

Non-Guarantors (Continued)

Additionally, the Parent guarantees the Subsidiary Notes which were issued by Canada Company.
Canada Company does not guarantee the Parent Notes. The other subsidiaries that do not guarantee
the Parent Notes or the Subsidiary Notes are referred to below as the “Non-Guarantors.”

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents. . .. . .
Accounts Receivable . .. .......
Intercompany Receivable . . ... ..
Other Current Assets .........

Total Current Assets. . .. .., ..
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net .
Other Assets, Net:

Long-term Notes Receivable from
Affiliates and Intercompany
Receivable .. ... ..........

Investment in Subsidiaries . ... ..

Goodwill, Net ..............

Other.............. ..., ..

Total Other Assets, Net ... ...
Total Assets .. ............

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Intercompany Payable . ........
Current Portion of Long-term Debt
Total Other Current Liabilities . . .
Long-term Debt, Net of Current

Portion . ................
Long-term Notes Payable to

Affiliates and Intercompany

Payable .. ...............
Other Long-term Liabilities . . . . .
Commitments and Contingencies
Minority Interests . . ... .......
Stockholders” Equity ... ... .. ..

Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity . . ... ..

December 31, 2006

Canada Non-

Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
$ — § 16354 § 762 § 28253 § — § 45369
—_ 320,084 27,487 125,795 — 473,366
867,764 — — — (867,764) —
48 104,118 3,125 54,153 (458) 160,986
867,812 440,556 31,374 208,201 (868,222) 679,721
— 1,362,891 149,653 502,691 — 2,015,235
1,795,790 10,962 — — (1,806,752) —
1,095,821 797,014 — — (1,892,835) —
—_— 1,474,120 173,247 517,762 - 2,165,129
26,451 142,382 9,233 172,406 {(1,036) 349,436
2,918,062 2,424,478 182,480 690,168 (3,700,623) 2,514,565
$3,785,874  $4,227.925  $363,507 $1,401,060  $(4,568,845)  $5,209,521
$ — ¥ 642376 811,226 % 114,162 $ (867,764) § —
4,260 6,458 415 51,972 — 63,105
53,980 366,192 31,358 124,470 (458) 575,542
2,169,508 17,115 166,917 252,171 —_ 2,605,711
1,000 1,795,790 — 9,962 (1,806,752) —_
3,853 323,986 23,264 56,533 (1,036) 406,600
— — — 5,290 — 5,290
1,553,273 1,076,008 30,327 786,500 (1,892,835) 1,553,273
$3,785,874  $4,227.925  $363,507 $1,401,060  $(4,568,845)  $5,209,521
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Non-Guarantors (Continued)

December 31, 2007

Canada Non-
Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents. . . . .. $ — $ 27955 $ 15529 §$ 82123 § - § 125,607
Accounts Receivable . . .. ...... — 365,626 33,900 164,523 — 564,049
Intercompany Receivable . . ... .. 910,450 — 56,773 — (967,223) —
Other Current Assets . .. ...... 1,036 91,763 3,680 36,789 (528) 132,740
Total Current Assets. . ....... 911,486 485,344 109,882 283,435 | (967,751) 822,396
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net . - 1,506,261 184,993 644,707 — 2,335,961
Other Assets, Net:
Long-term Notes Receivable from
Affiliates and Intercompany
Receivable . .............. 1,991,357 1,000 — — (1,992,357} —
Investment in Subsidiaries . ... .. 1,682,963 1,404,005 —_ —_ (3,086,968) —
Goodwill, Net . ............. — 1,750,477 205,182 618,633 —_— 2,574,292
Other.................... 30,064 323,493 15,601 206,595 (481) 575,272
Total Other Assets, Net . ... .. 3,704,384 3,478,975 220,783 825,228 (5,079,806) 3,149,564
Total Assets .. ............ $4,615,870  $5470,580 $515,658  §1,753,370  §,(6,047,557) 56,307,921
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Intercompany Payable .. ....... $ — $ 942323 $ - — § 24900 § (967,223) § —
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 4,889 12,439 533 15,579 — 33,440
Total Other Current Liabilities . . . 61,250 472,865 36,878 161,772 (528) 732,237
Long-term Debt, Net of Current
Portion ................. 2,749,423 13,130 423,051 47244 — 3,232,848
Long-term Notes Payable to .
Affiliates and Intercompany
Payable ................. 1,000 1,991,357 — — (1,992,357) —
Other Long-term Liabilities . .. .. 3,853 385,647 23811 92,012 (481) 504,852
Commitments and Contingencies .
Minority Interests . . . ......... — —_ — 9,089 — 9,089
Stockholders’ Equity . .. ....... 1,795,455 1,652,819 31,375 1,402,774 (3,086,968) 1,795,455
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity .. ... .. $4,615,870  $5,470,580 $515,658  $1,753,370  § (6,047,557) $6,307,921
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5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and

Non-Guarantors (Continued)

Revenues:
Storage . ........ ... ... ..
Service and Storage Material Sales .

Total Revenues . .. ..........
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales (Excluding
Depreciation and Amortization) .
Selling, General and Administrative .
Depreciation and Amortization . . . .
Loss (Gain) on Disposal/Writedown
of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Net ....... it

Total Operating Expenses . . . . . .

Operating (Loss) Income . . ... ....
Interest Expense {Income), Net . . . ..
Other (Income) Expense, Net . . .. ..

(Loss) Income Before Provision for
Income Taxes and Minority
Interest. . .............. .

Provision for Income Taxes . ... ....

Equity in the Earnings of Subsidiaries,
Netof Tax .................

Minority Interest in Earnings of
Subsidiaries, Net . . ...........

Income Before Cumulative Effect of
Changes in Accounting Principle,
Net of Tax Benefit . ... ........

Cumulative Effect of Changes in
Accounting Principle, Net of Tax
Benefit ...................

NetIncome .. .............

,

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Canada Non-
Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
$ — § 862961 § 60,957 $257,633 3 - $1,181,551
— 642,659 65,836 188,109 — 896,604
— 1,505,620 126,793 445742 — 2,078,155
— 662,485 67,031 208,723 —_ 938,239
187 432 588 20,777 116,143 -— 569,695
70 134,509 8,165 44,178 — 186,922
— 416 22 (3,923) _— (3,485)
257 1,229,998 95,995 365,121 — 1,691,371
(257) 275,622 30,798 80,621 — 386,784
156,057 (33,325) 8,931 51,921 - 183,584
(32,420) 36,956 — 1,646 —_— 6,182
(123,894) 271,991 21,867 27,054 — 197,018
— 64,075 9,589 7,820 —_ 81,484
(234,993) (28,586) — — 263,579 _—
— — (496) 2,180 — 1,684
111,099 236,502 12,774 17,054 {263,579) 113,850
— (2,215) — (536} — (2,751}
$ 111,099 § 234287 $ 12,714 $ 16,518 $(263,579) $ 111,099
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5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and

Non-Guarantors (Continued)

Revenues:
Storage ........ ... ...,
Service and Storage Material Sales .

Total Revenues . . . . ... ......
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales (Excluding
Depreciation and Amortization) .
Selling, General and Administrative .
Depreciation and Amortization. . . .
Loss (Gain) on Disposal/Writedown
of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Net ........... ..o n..

Total Operating Expenses . . . . ..

Operating (Loss) Income . ... .....
Interest Expense (Income), Net . . . . .
Other Expense (Income), Net .. .. ..

(Loss) Income Before Provision for
Income Taxes and Minority
Interest. . ................

Provision for Income Taxes . . . ... ..

Equity in the Earnings of Subsidiaries,
Netof Tax . ................

Minority Interest in Earnings of
Subsidiaries, Net . ... .........

Netlncome ................

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Canada Non-
Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
$ — $ 960421 § 71,993  $294,755 $ —_ $1,327,169
— 689,444 77,111 256,618 — 1,023,173
— 1,649,865 149,104 551,373 — 2,350,342
— 718,154 77,169 278,945 - — 1,074,268
(47) 497,524 25,424 147,173 - — 670,074
79 142,746 9,784 55,764 — 208,373
— 704 166 (10,430) —. (9,560)
32 1,359,128 112,543 471,452 — 1,943,155
(32) 290,737 36,561 79,921 — 407,187
167,668 (34,689) 12,768 49,211 — 194,958
45,253 (42,626) (13} (14,603) = (11,989)
(212,953) 368,052 23,806 45,313 - 224,218
— 75,407 8,418 9,970 — 93,795
(341,816) (46,918) — — 388,734 —
— - (586) 2,146 — 1,560
$128863 $§ 339563 $ 15974  § 33,197 $(388,734) $ 128,863
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5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and

Non-Guarantors (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Canada Non-
Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues:
Storage ... ... $ —  $1,074,743  § 84,075 $340,256 L3 — $1,499,074
Service and Storage Material Sales . — 790,997 89,350 350,614 —_ 1,230,961
Total Revenues . . . .......... — 1,865,740 173,425 690,870 — 2,730,035
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales (Excluding
Depreciation and Amortization) . — 827,135 79,926 353,059 — 1,260,120
Selling, General and Administrative . (129) 548,918 30,146 192,440 — 771,375
Depreciation and Amortization . . . . 153 168,910 11,942 68,289 —_ 249,294
Loss (Gain) on Disposal/Writedown
of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Net © oo — 1,162 284 (6,918) - (5,472)
Total Operating Expenses . . . . .. 24 1,546,125 122,298 606,870 — 2,275,317
Operating (Loss) Income ... ...... 24) 319,615 51,127 84,000 — 454,718
Interest Expense (Income), Net . . . . . 195,785 (9,411) 25,025 17,194 — 228,593
Other Expense (Income), Net ... ... 46,132 (2,301) (5,087} (35,643) —_ 3,101
(Loss) Income Before Provision for
Income Taxes and Minority Interest . (241,941) 33,327 31,189 102,449 _ 223,024
Provision for Income Taxes . . . ... .. — 47,063 13,077 8,870 — 69,010
Equity in the Earnings of Subsidiaries,
Netof Tax ................. {395,035} (99,045) — — 494,080 —
Minority Interest in (Losses)} Earnings
of Subsidiaries, Net . .......... — — (348) 1,268 — 920
NetIncome . .............. $ 153,094 § 383309 § 18,460 $ 92,311 $ (494,080) § 153,094
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5, Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and
Neon-Guarantors (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Canada Non-
Parent Guarantors  Company  Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Cash Flows from Operating Activities  ${149,143) $433,730 § 22,034 § 70,555 — $ 377,176
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures . ......... — (190,143) (17,829) (64,157) — (272,129)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of
cash acquired ............. — (66,890) (56) (111,292} — (178,238)
Intercompany loans to subsidiaries . 73,702 (107,286) — — 33,584 —
Investment in subsidiaries . . .. ... (15,687) (15,687) — — 31,374 —
Additions to customer relationship
and acquisition costs . . . ... ... — (7,90%) (856) (4,666) - {13,431}
Proceeds from sales of property
and equipment and other, net . . — 15,895 4 11,724 — 27,623
Cash Flows from Investing
Activitles . . .. ........... 58,015 (372,020) (18,737)  (168,391) 64,958 (436,175}
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayment of revolving credit and
term loan facilities and other
debt . ... ... .. ... L. (300,322) (2,783)  (106,861) (99,629) — (509,595)
Proceeds from revolving credit and )
term loan facilities and other
debt ... .. . oL 366,352 — 125,350 77,024 — 568,726
Debt financing (repayment to) and
equity contribution from
(distribution to) minority
stockholders, met . ... ....... — — — (2,399) C— (2,399)
Intercompany loans from parent . . — (74,977) (19,239) 127,800 (33,584) —
Equity contribution from parent. . . — 15,687 — 15,687 (31,374) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock
options and employee stock
purchase plan . ............ 25,649 — - _— -_— 25,649
Payment of debt financing and
stock issuance costs .. ....... {551) —_ - (381) —_ (932)
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities. . . ............ 91,128 (62,073) (750) 118,102 (64,958) 81,449
Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents . .. .......... — — (1,115) 136 — (979)
(Decrease) Increase in cash and cash
equivalents ... ............. — {363) 1,432 20,402 — 21,471
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
ofperiod ... ............... — 11,021 1,085 19,836 — 31,942
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period. . ........ .. ...... .. — $ 10658 § 2517 $ 40,238 - $ 53413
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5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and

Non-Guarantors (Continued}

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Canada Non-
Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Cash Flows from Operating Activities . $(153,741) § 434,021 $ 35437 § 58565 5 — $ 374,282
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures. . . . ....... — (266,310)  (27,956) (87,704) — (381,970)
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of
cash acquired . . . ........... — (24,576) {1,388) (55,244) — {81,208)
Intercompany loans to subsidiaries . 76,874 (36,506) —_ - (40,368) -
Investment in subsidiaries . ... ... (16,800) (16,800) — — 33,600 —
Additions to customer relationship
and acquisition costs . ... ..., . — (9,263} (516) (4,472) — (14,251)
Investment in joint ventures . . . . . . — (2,814) — (3,129) — (5,943)
Proceeds from sales of property and
equipment and other, net . . . . . . — 257 124 16,277 — 16,658
Cash Flows from Investing Activities. . 60,074 (356,012}  (29,736)  (134,272) (6,768) (466,714)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Repayment of revolving credit and
term loan facilities and other debt (571,456) (10,113) (5,031) (68,360) — (654,960)
Proceeds from revolving credit and
term loan facilities and other debt 469,273 — 26,987 47,680 — 543,940
Early retirement of notes .. ... .. (112,397} — — — — (112,397)
Net proceeds from sales of senior
subordinated notes . ......... 281,984 — —_ _ — 281,984
Debt financing (repayment to) and
equity contribution from
{distribution to) minority
stockholders, net. . . ... ... ... — — — (2,068) — (2,068)
Intercompany loans from parent . . . — (79,000)  (29,470) 68,102 40,368 —
Equity contribution from parent . . . — 16,800 16,800 (33,600) —
Proceeds from exercise of stock
options and employee stock
purchase plan. . ............ 22,245 — — — — 22,245
Excess tax benefits from stock-based
compensation . . . ... ........ 4,387 —_ — _ - 4,387
Payment of debt financing and stock
issuance costs . . ... . ... ... .. (369) — — (28) —_ (397)
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities . .. ... ......... 93,667 (72,313) (7,514) 62,126 6,768 82,734
Effect of exchange rates on cash and
cash equivalents. . .. .......... — — 58 1,596 — 1,654
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents . . . ....... ... ... — 5,696 (1,755) (11,985) — (8,044)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
ofperiod . ................. — 10,658 2,517 40,238 — 53,413
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period .. ...... ... .. ... ... 3 — §$ 16354 § 762 § 28253 b3 — $ 45,369
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5. Selected Consolidated Financial Statements of Parent, Guarantors, Canada Company and

Non-Guarantors (Continued)

Cash Flows from Operating

Activities. . . ..............

Cash Flows from Investing
Activities: ’
Capital expenditures
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of

cash acquired
Intercompany loans to

subsidiaries. . . ...........
Investment in subsidiaries. . . . ..

Additions to customer
relationship and acquisition
CcOosts

Proceeds from sales of property

and equipment and other, net .

Cash Flows from Investing

Activities . . . .. ... ...

Cash Flows from Financing

Activities:

Repayment of revolving credit
and term loan facilities and
other debt

Proceeds from revolving credit
and term loan facilities and
other debt

Net proceeds from sales of senior

subordinated notes. . .......

Debt financing (repayment to)
and equity contribution from
(distribution to) minority
stockholders, net

Intercompany loans from parent .
Equity contribution from parent .

Proceeds from exercise of stock
options and employee stock
purchase plan

Excess tax benefits from stock-
based compensation

Payment of debt financing and
stock issuance costs

Cash Flows from Financing

Activities. . . . ..........

Effect of exchange rates on cash
and cash equivalents

Increase in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents,

beginning of period . . . .. ... ..

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period

Yezr Ended December 31, 2007

Canada Non-

Parent Guarantors Company Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
$ (177,057) $474366 § 39928° § 147,407 3 —_ $ 484644
- (248,102) (16,360) (121,980} —_ (386,442)

- (415,611) (2,303) (63,612} - (481,526)
(356,735 (157,492 — — 514,227 -
(20,298 (20,298 —_ — 40,596 —
— (7,124) (960} (8,319) —_ (16,403)

- 7,340 T o391 10:005 : —_ 17,736
(377,033}  (841,287) (19,232)  (183,906) 554,823 (866,635)
(1,239,836) (10,894)  (723,277)  (337.324) — (2,311,331)
1,481,750 9,056 762,498 56,740 —_ 2,310,044
289,058 — 146,760 — -— 435,818
— — — 1,950 — 1,950

— 360,062 (190,165) 344,330 (514,227 —

- 20,298 _ 20,298 (40,596 —_

21,843 - —_ — — 21,843
6,765 — — — — 6,765
(5,450) — (2,687) 93 — (8,084)
554,090 378,522 (6,871) 86,087 (554,823) 457,005
— — 942 4,282 — 5,224

— 11,601 14,767 53,870 — 80,238

— 16,354 762 28,253 — 45,369

$ — § 27955 5 15529 § 82123 $ — $ 125,607
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6. Acquisitions

The acquisitions we consummated in 2005, 2006 and 2007 were accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting, and accordingly, the results of operations for each acquisition have been
included in our consolidated results from their respective acquisition dates. Cash consideration for the
various acquisitions was primarily provided through borrowings under our credit facilities, the proceeds
from the sale of senior subordinated notes and cash equivalents on-hand. The unaudited pro forma
results of operations for the period ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 are not presented due to the
insignificant impact of the 2006 and 2007 acquisitions on our consolidated results of operations,
respectively. Noteworthy acquisitions are as follows:

To develop our presence in Asia Pacific, in December 2005, we acquired the Australian and New
Zealand operations of Pickfords Records Management for total cash consideration of approximately
Australian Dollar 115,000 (386,276, net of cash acquired).

To extend our leadership role in the protection of our customer’ business data, in December 2005,
we acquired full ownership of LiveVault Corporation (“LiveVault”) for cash consideration of $35,798
(net of cash acquired). As of December 31, 2004, we had a minority interest investment in LiveVault
with a carrying value of $3,615. LiveVault is a provider of disk-based online server backup and recovery
solutions.

To extend our leadership role in the information protection and storage services industry, in May
2007, we acquired ArchivesOne, Inc. (“ArchivesOne”), a leading provider of records and information
management services in the United States. ArchivesOne has 31 facilities located in 17 major
metropolitan markets in 10 states and the District of Columbia. The purchase price was $200,295 (net
of cash acquired) for ArchivesOne.

To complement our current health information solutions, in September 2007, we acquired RMS
Services—USA, Inc. (“RMS") for $45,400 in cash. RMS, a leading provider of outsourced file-room
services, offers hospitals comprehensive, next generation file-room and film-library management
solutions.

In December 2007, we acquired Stratify, Inc. (“Stratify”)} for $130,051 in cash (net of cash
acquired) and $22,828 in fair value of options issued (based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model)
to augment our suite of eDiscovery services, providing businesses with a complete, end-to-end
Discovery Services solution. Stratify, a leader in advanced electronic discovery services for the legal
market, offers in-depth discovery and data investigation solutions for AmLaw 200 law firms and leading
Fortune 500 corporations. Stratify is based in Mountain View, California.
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6. Acquisitions (Continued)

A summary of the consideration paid and the allocation of the purchase price of the acquisitions is
as follows:

. 2005 2006 2007
Cash Paid (gross of cash acquired) . .. .......... ... .. ..... $180,457(1) $60,428(1) $ 490,966
Previous Invesiment Balance of Businesses Acquired . ....... ... 3,615 —_ —_
Fair Valueof Options Issued .. ...... ... . ..ot 780 — 22,828
Total Consideration . ........... .ttt inerens 184,852 60,428 513,794
Fair Value of Identifiable Assets Acquired:
Cash, Accounts Receivable, Prepaid Expenses and Other .. .. .. 16,557 7,758 45,819
Property, Plant and Equipment(2) . . ... .................. 16,341 10,224 41,644
Customer Relationship Assets(3)................ . ....... 41,422 37,492 195,725
Core Technology ........ ... i, 10,500 — 15,025
Other ASSelS . . v v ittt ittt e e e e 250 — 11,548
Liabilities Assumed(4) . ... ...... ... ... i (21,876) (12,364)  (113,075)
Minority Interest . . .. ... i 8,142(5) 919(5) —
Total Fair Value of Identifiable Net Assets Acquired ......... 71,336 44,029 196,686

Recorded Goodwill . .. .. ... i e e e $113,516  $16,399  § 317,108

(1) Included in cash paid for acquisitions in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006 is a contingent payment of $704 and $21,382, respectively,
related to acquisitions made in previous years.

(2) Consisted primarily of land, buildings, racking, and leasehold improvements.

(3) The weighted average lives of customer relationship assets associated with acquisitions in 2005,
2006 and 2007 were 24 years, 18 years, and 24 years, respectively. :

(4) Consisted primarily of accounts payable, accrued expenses and notes payable.

(5) Consisted primarily of the carrying value of minority interests of Latin American partners at the
date of acquisition in 2005 and the carrying value of minority interests of European, Latin
American and Asia Pacific partners at the date of acquisition in 2006.

Allocation of the purchase price for the 2007 acquisitions was based on estimates of the fair value
of net assets acquired, and is subject to adjustment. The purchase price allocations of certain 2007
transactions are subject to finalization of the assessment of the fair value of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets (primarily customer relationship assets), operating leases, restructuring
purchase reserves, deferred revenue and deferred income taxes. We are not aware of any information
that would indicate that the final purchase price allocations will differ meaningfully from preliminary
estimates.

In connection with each of our acquisitions, we have undertaken certain restructurings of the
acquired businesses. The restructuring activities include certain reductions in staffing levels, elimination
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6. Acquisitions (Continued)

of duplicate facilities and other costs associated with exiting certain activities of the acquired businesses.
The estimated cost of these restructuring activities were recorded as costs of the acquisitions and were
provided in accordance with EITF No. 95-3, “Recognition of Liabilitics in Connection with a Purchase
Business Combination.” We finalize restructuring plans for each business no later than one year from
the date of acquisition. Unresolved matters at December 31, 2007 primarily include completion of
planned abandonments of facilities and severance contracts in connection with certain acquisitions.

The following is a summary of reserves related to such restructuring activities:

2006 2007
Reserves, beginning of the year .. ... ... e e $12,698 §$ 5,553
Reserves established .. ............. ... . . ... 3,642 2,246
Expenditures . ...... ... ... .. (5,181) (3,991)
Adjustments to goodwill, including currency effect(1) ......... (5,606) (206)
Reserves,endof the year . .......... ... .. ... ... .. ... $ 5553 $ 3,602

(1) Includes adjustments to goodwill as a result of management finalizing its restructuring
plans.

At December 31, 2006, the restructuring reserves related to acquisitions consisted of lease losses
on abandoned facilities ($3,010), severance costs ($259) and other exit costs (§2,284). At December 31,
2007, the restructuring reserves related to acquisitions consisted of lease losses on abandoned facilities
($2,018), severance costs ($407) and other exit costs ($1,177). These accruals are expected to be used
prior to December 31, 2008 except for lease losses of $1,523, severance contracts of $94, and other exit
costs of $128, all of which are based on contracts that extend beyond one year.

In connection with our acquisition in India, we entered into a shareholder agreement in May 2006.
The agreement contains a put provision that would allow the minority stockholder to sell the remaining
49.9% equity interest to us beginning on the third anniversary of this agreement for the greater of fair
market value or approximately 84,835 Rupees (approximately $2,200). In accordance with FASB
Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others—An Interpretation of FASB Statements
No. 5, 57 and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34,” we recorded a liability representing
our estimate of the fair value of the guarantee in the amount of $427.

In connection with some of our acquisitions, we have potential earn-out obligations that would be
payable in the event businesses we acquired meet certain operational objectives. These payments are
based on the future results of these operations and our estimate of the maximum contingent earn-out
payments we may be required to make under all such agreements as of December 31, 2007 is
approximately $24,300. 4 :
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7. Income Taxes

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. FIN 48 also
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN 48 is a two-step process. The first step is a
recognition process whereby the company determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax
position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is a measurement process
whereby a tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is calculated to
determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements. The tax position is measured
at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate
settlement.

The provisions of FIN 48 are to be applied to all tax positions upon initial adoption of this
standard. Only tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold at the effective
date may be recognized or continue to be recognized upon adoption of FIN 48. The cumulative effect
of applying the provisions of FIN 48 should be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings for that fiscal year.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 and, as a result, we recognized a $16,606
increase in the reserve related to uncertain tax positions, which was accounted for as a reduction to the
January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. Additionally, we grossed-up deferred tax assets and the
reserve related to uncertain tax positions in the amount of $7,905 related to the federal tax benefit
associated with certain state reserves. As of January 1, 2007, our reserve related to uncertain tax
positions, which is included in other long-term liabilities, amounted to $83,958. Of this amount,
approximately $35,439, if settled favorably, would reduce our recorded goodwill balance, with the
remainder being recognized as a reduction of income tax expense.

We have elected to recognize interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as a
component of the provision for income taxes in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. We recorded $226, $857 and $1,170 for interest and penalties for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

We have $4,263 and $3,630 accrued for the payment of interest and penalties as of January 1, 2007
and December 31, 2007, respectively.

A summary of tax years that remain subject to examination by major tax jurisdictions is as follows:

Tax Year Tax Jurisdiction
1999 to present : Canada
2002 to present United Kingdom

The normal statute of limitations for U.S. federal tax purposes is three years from the date the tax
return is filed. However, due to our net operating loss position, the U.S. government has the right to
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audit the amount of the net operating loss up to three years after we utilize the loss on our federal
income tax return. The normal statute of limitations for state purposes is between three to five years.

The components of income before provision for income taxes and minority interest are:

2008 2006 2007
US.and Canada(l) ............coovvern.... $178,300 $189,844 $125,143
Foreign ........... ... ... . . . i, 18,718 34,374 97,881

$197,018 $224,218 $223,024

(1) Our Canadian business operates primarily as a US branch and is included in ‘the US
income for tax purposes. The amount of Canadian income before provision for income
taxes included is $24,321, $26,816, and $22,100 for 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

We have federal net operating loss carryforwards which begin to expire in 2019 through 2022 of
$78,909 at December 31, 2007 to reduce future federal taxable income, if any. We also have an asset
for state net operating loss of $24,742 (net of federal tax benefit), which begins to expire in 2008
through 2025, subject to a valuation allowance of approximately 98%. Additionally, we have federal
alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $11,764, which have no expiration date and are
available to reduce future income taxes, if any, and foreign tax credits of $56,125, which begin to expire
in 2016.

We are subject to examination by various tax authorities in jurisdictions in which we have
significant business operations. We regularly assess the likelihood of additional assessments by tax
authorities and provide for these matters as appropriate. As of December 31, 2007, we had
approximately $72,908 of reserves related to uncertain tax positions included in other long-term
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Approximately $27,001 of the reserve is
related to pre-acquisition net operating loss carryforwards and other acquisition related items. If the tax
position is sustained, the reversal of this reserve will be recorded as a reduction of goodwill. Although
we believe our tax estimates are appropriate, the final determination of tax audits and any related
litigation could result in favorable or unfavorable changes in our estimates.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Gross tax contingencies—January 1, 2007 ... ........ ... ... ..... ... $83,958
Gross additions based on tax positions related to the current year ... .. .. 8,885
Gross additions for tax positions of prioryears . ... .............. ... 1,076
Gross reductions for tax positions of prioryears . ................... (5,872)
Lapses of statutes . . ... ... ... it W {14,947)
Settlements . .. ... e e - (192)
Gross tax contingencies—December 31,2007 .. .. ...........«...... $72,908

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007 are $45,907 ($39,761
net of federal benefit) of tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. We believe
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that it is reasonably possible that approximately $8,682 of our unrecognized tax positions may be
recognized by the end of 2008 as a result of a lapse of statute of limitations.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below:

Deceﬁber 3,

. 2006 2007
Deferred Tax Assets:
Accrued liabilities . .. ... ... .. i $ 25223 § 22,762
Deferred rent ... ... e 12,722 15,085
Net operating loss carryforwards . .................. 78,850 66,411
AMT and foreign tax credits .. ....... ... 29,285 67,889
Valuation Allowance . ........... .. . iiiiaian, (27,274)  (43,404)
4013 17 O 12,918 44211

131,724 172,954
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Other assets, principally due to differences in amortization (136,149)  (211,185)
Plant and- equipment, principally due to differences in

depreciation .. ....... .. i i (187,480)  (249,667)
Customer acquisition costs . . . ......... ... (27,783y  (21,863)
(351,412)  (482,715)

Net deferred tax liability .. .......... ... ... ... ... $(219,688) $(309,761)

Rollforward of valuation allowance is as follows:

Balance at Balance at

Beginning of Charged to Other End of

Year Ended December 31, the Year Expense Additions  Deductions the Year
2005 ... $ 5,691 $ 1,092 $2,535 $ —  $9318
2006 ... . 9,318 10,713 9,982 (2,739) 27,274
2007 ... 27,274 23,962 — (7,832) 43,404

We receive a tax deduction upon the exercise of non-qualified stock options or upon the
disqualifying disposition by employees of incentive stock options and shares acquired under our
employee stock purchase plan for the difference between the exercise price and the market price of the
underlying common stock on the date of exercise or disqualifying disposition. The tax benefit for
non-qualified stock options is included in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which
compensation expense is recorded. The tax benefit associated with compensation expense recorded in
the consolidated financial statements related to incentive stock options is recorded in the period the
disqualifying disposition occurs. All tax benefits for awards issued prior to January 1, 2003 and
incremental tax benefits in excess of compensation expense recorded in the consolidated financial
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statements are credited directly to equity and amounted to $9,668, $4,387 and $6,765 for the years
ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

We have not provided deferred taxes on book basis differences related to certain foreign
subsidiaries because such basis differences are not expected to reverse in the foreseeable future and we
intend to reinvest indefinitely outside the U.S. These basis differences arose primarily through the
undistributed book earnings of our foreign subsidiaries. The basis differences could be reversed through
a sale of the subsidiaries, the receipt of dividends from subsidiaries as well as certain other events or
actions on our part, which would result in an increase in our provision for income taxes. It is not
practicable to calculate the amount of such basis differences.

The provision for income taxes consists of the following components:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Federal—cusrent . .. .. oot e e et $ — §$9156 $11,429
i Federal—deferred .. ........... .. ... ... ...... 55,891 44,862 37,301
| State—current . . ...... ... ... . . 8,847 14,433 10,443
' State—deferred . . ........ ... ... ... . ... . .. 181 7,143 1,683
Foreign—current . . ........ ... i — 16,258 3,325
Foreign—deferred .. ....... .. ... ... ... .... 16,565 1,943 4,829

$81,484 $93,795 $69,010

A reconciliation of total income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the federal
income tax rate of 35% to income before provision for income taxes and minority interests for the
| years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Computed “expected” tax provision. . ............ $68,956 378,477 § 78,058
Changes in income taxes resulting from:
State taxes (net of federal tax benefit) .......... 6,430 5,545 1,844
Increase in valuation allowance . .............. 1,092 10,713 23,962
Foreign tax rate differential and tax law change . .. (94) (5,151) (38,917)
Other,net . ... ... ... . i 5,100 4,211 4063

$81,484 §$93,795 $ 69,010
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Our effective tax rates for the years ended December 31,2005, 2006 and 2007 were 41.4%, 41.8%
and 30.9%, respectively. The primary reconciling items between the statutory rate of 35% and our
effective rate are state income taxes (net of federal benefit) and differences in the rates of tax at which
our foreign earnings are subject.

8. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Quarter Ended - March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec, 31
2006 '

Total revenues .. ... ......... ... .. . $563,657 $581,568 $595,610 .$609,507
Operating income . ................ 92,435 102,894 97130 114,728
Netincome .....:..vviieirnnnnn 27,273 37,842 26,613 . 37,135
Net income per share—basic ........ 0.14 0.19 0.13 0.19
Net income per share—diluted ... .... 0.14 0.19 0.13 -0.18
2007

Total revenues . ... covvievn v ous +$632,512 $668,680 $701,833 $727,001
Operating income . ............... 99,793 111,234 128,787 114904
Netincome .........cooviniunnn.. 34,707 39,052 51,334 28,001
Net income per share—basic ....... ; 0.17 0.20 0.26 0.14
Net income per share—diluted . ... ... 0.17 0.19 0.25 0.14

9. Segment Information
We have six operating segments, as follows:

» North American Physical Business—throughout the United States and Canada, the storage of
paper documents, as well as all other non-electronic media such as microfilm and microfiche,
master audio and videotapes, film, X-rays and blueprints, including healthcare information
services, vital records services, service and courier operations, and the collection, handling and
disposal of sensitive documents for corporate customers (“Hard Copy”); the storage and rotation
of backup computer media as part of corporate disaster recovery plans, including service and
courier operations (“Data Protection”); secure shredding services (“Shredding”); and the
storage, assembly, and detailed reporting of customer marketing literature and delivery to sales
offices, trade shows and prospective customers’ sites based on current and prospective customer
orders, which we refer to as the “Fulfillment” business

» Worldwide Digital Business—information protection and storage services for electronic records
conveyed via telecommunication lines and the Internet, including online backup and recovery
solutions for server data and’ personal computers, as well as email archiving, eDiscovery services
and third party technology escrow services that protect intellectual property assets such as
software source code

» Europe—information protection and storage services throughout Europe, including Hard Copy,
Data Protection and Shredding
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9. Segment Information (Continued)

* South America—information protection and storage services throughout South America,
including Hard Copy and Data Protection

* Mexico—information protection and storage services throughout Mexico, including Hard Copy,
Data Protection and Shredding

* Asia Pacific—information protection and storage services throughout Australia and New
Zealand, including Hard Copy, Data Protection and Shredding; and in certain cities in India,
Singapore, Hong Kong-SAR, China, Indonesia, Malaysia, Sri Lanka and Taiwan, including Hard
Copy and Data Protection

The South America, Mexico, Asia Pacific and Europe operating segments have been aggregated
given their similar economic characteristics, products, customers and processes and reported as one
reportable segment, “International Physical Business.” The Worldwide Digital Business does not meet
the quantitative criteria for a reportable segment; however, management detcrmlned that it would
disclose such information on a voluntary basis.

An analysis of our business segment information and reconciliation to the consolidated financial
statements is as follows:

North

American International Worldwide

Physical Physical Digital Total

Business Business Business Consolidated
2005
Total Revenues . ................. $1,529,612 $ 435,106 $113,437 $2,078,155
Depreciation and Amortization . . . .. ., 118,493 . 43,285 - 25,144 186,922
Contribution . ................... 444,343 113,417 12,461 570,221
Total Assets . ... ..o, 3,383,098 1,142,217 240,825 4,766,140
Expenditures for Segment Assets(1) . .. 225,178 178,662 59,958 463,798
2006
Total Revenues . ................. 1,671,009 539,335 139,998 2,350,342
Depreciation and Amortization . . ... .. 127,562 54,803 26,008 208,373
Contribution . ........c..0.. oo, 478,653 117,568 9,779 606,000
Total Assets . .. .................. 3,616,218 1,349,175 244,128 5,209,521
Expenditures for Segment Assets(1) ... 314,317 142,732 20,380 477,429
2007
Total Revenues .................. 1,890,068 676,749 163,218 - 2,730,035
Depreciation and Amortization. ., ... . 154,898 67,135 27,261 249,204
Contribution .................... 539,027 135,714 23,799 698,540
Total Assets . . ....... ..., 4,174,541 1,692,174 441,206 6,307,921
Expenditures for Segment Assets(1) ... 549,151 184,821 150,399 884,371

(1) Includes capital expenditures, cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and
additions to customer relationship and acquisition costs in the accompanying consolidated
statements of cash flows.
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The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 2
except that certain corporate and centrally controlled costs are allocated primarily to our North
American Physical Business and Worldwide Digital Business segments. These allocations, which include
human resources, information technology, finance, rent, real estate property taxes, medical costs,
incentive compensation, stock option expense, worker’s compensation, 401(k) match contributions and
property, general liability, auto and other insurance, are based on rates and methodologies established
at the beginning of each year. Included in the corporate costs allocated to our North American Physical
Business segment are certain costs related to staff functions, including finance, human resources and
information technology, which benefit the enterprise as a whole. These costs are primarily related to
the general management of these functions on a corporate level and the design and development of
programs, policies and procedures that are then implemented in the individual segments, with each
segment bearing its own cost of implementation. Management has decided to allocate these costs to the
North American Physical Business segment as further allocation is impracticable.

Contribution for each segment is defined as total revenues less cost of sales (excluding
depreciation and amortization) and selling, general and administrative expenses (including the costs
atlocated to each segment as described above). Internally, we use Contribution as the basis for
evaluating the performance of and allocating resources to our operating segments.

A reconciliation of Contribution to income before provision for income taxes and minority interest
on a consolidated basis is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

Contribution . ........cciiiiinerannia.n $570,221 $606,000 $698,540

Less: Depreciation and Amortization ......... 186,922 208,373 249,294

Gain on Disposal/Writedown of Property, Plant

and Equipment, Net. . .................. (3,485)  (9,560) (5472)

Interest Expense, Net . ................... 183,584 194,958 228,593

Other Expense (Income}, net. . ... T 6,182  (11,989) 3,101
Income before Provision for Income Taxes and

Minority Interest. . .. ....... ... ... .. ... .. $197,018 $224,218 $223,024
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Information as to our operations in different geographical areas is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Revenues: '
United States . .............c0uvuer... $1,504,907 $1,647,265 $1,862,809
United Kingdom . .. ................... 275,426 312,393 368,008
Canada .............. ... . v, 132,302 154,801 179,636
Other International . . ... .............. . 165,520 235,883 319,582
‘ Total Revenues . ............. e $2,078,155 $2,350,342 $2,730,035
| Long-lived Assets: - ’
United States . ............... ... ..... $2,887,981 $3,029,827 $3,633,588
United Kingdom ... . . ... e AP 594,178 645,218 723,128 .
| Canada ....................iinn.. 335,929 354,258 432,789
Other International . . .................. 393,884 500,497 696,020
| Total Long-lived Assets ............... $4,211,972  $4,529,800 $5,485,525

‘ Information as to our revenues by product and service lines is as follows:

Years Ended¢ December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Revenues:
Physical Records Management and Secure
SShredding .. ... .. . $1,614905 $1,856,873 $2,165,798
Physical Tape Rotation Services . .......... 349,813 353,471 401,019
Digital(1) .. ........ ... ... ... .. ... 113,437 139,998 163,218
Total Revenues . .................... $2,078,155 $2,350,342  $2,730,035

(1) Includes Digital Archiving, Electronic Vaulting, Intellectual Property Management,
DataDefense and eDiscovery.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
a. Leases

Most of our leased facilities are leased under various operating leases. A majority of these leases
have renewal options of five to ten years and may have fixed or Consumer Price Index escalation
clauses. We also lease equipment under operating leases, primarily computers which have an average
lease life of three years. Trucks and office equipment are also leased and have remaining lease lives
ranging from one to seven years. Total rent expense (including common area maintenance charges)
under all of our operating leases was $185,542, $207,760 and $240,833 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Included in total rent expense was sublease income of
$3,238, $3,740 and $4,973 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.
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Estimated minimum- future lease payments (excluding common area maintenance charges), net of
sublease income of $3,059, $2,554, $1,426, $860, $302 and $3,105 for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and
thereafter, respectively, are as follows:

Year . ‘ - : Operating

2008........... e . e e o 8 209,091
2000 . .. e IR 197,146
2000, .. e e e e 192,725
200 . e e e e e e 186,786
72 ) 180,091
Thereafter ........ e e e e e e e e e e 2,092,643
Total minimum lease payments ... .. e $3,058,482

We have guaranteed the residual value of certain vehicle operating leases to which we are a party.
The maximum net residual value guarantee obligation for these vehicles as of December 31, 2007 was
$77,811. Such amount does not take into consideration the recovery or resale value associated'with
these vehicles. We believe that it is not reasonably likely that we will be required to perform under
these guarantee agreements or that any performance requlrement would have a matenal impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

. In addition, we have certain contractual obligations which require minimum payments of $20,647,
$10 913, $8,895, $2,857, $496 and $145 in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 and thereafter, respectively.

b. Litigation

On September 19, 2007, back-up media belonging to one of our customers, the Louisiana Office of
Student Financial Assistance (“LOSFA”), was lost while being transported to the customer’s office. We
1mmed1ately undertook and continue to engage in efforts to locate the media and we promptly nonﬁed
LOSFA and appropriate law enforcement authorities; however, to date, the media has not been found.
Beginning on October 15, 2007, LOSFA issued one or more press réleases and other public
communications advising of the loss, indicating that personally identifiable information was on the
media and advising persons who might be affected as to how to protect themselves against possible
identity theft and fraud. LOSFA has demanded that we indemnify it in connection with any losses
arising from the lost media. In late October 2007 and early November 2007, actions seeking to
represent a purported class of allegedly affected individuals were filed in state courts in West Baton
Rouge, Louisiana, in the 18th Judicial District for the Parish of West Baton Rouge (West Baton
Rouge), in New Orleans, Louisiana, in the Civil District Court for the Parish of Orleans (New
Orleans), and in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Louisiana (Eastern District
of Louisiana}. These actions seek monetary damages under various theories of liability as a result of
the lost media. We removed the first of those actions (West Baton Rouge) to the United States District
Court for the Middle District of Louisiana where, subsequently, it was voluntarily dismissed. We
removed the second action (New Orleans) to the United States District Court for the Eastern District
of Louisiana, where it was consolidated with the third such action (Eastern District of Louisiana). We
have formally answered the complaints in these two remaining actions, denying liability and asserting
various affirmative defenses. We have also notified our insurers and intend to continue to defend these
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cases vigorously. As of December 31, 2007, we have not provided any loss reserves associated with
these matters.

We are involved in litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business with a portion of
the defense and/or settlement costs being covered by various commercial liability insurance policies
purchased by us. In the opinion of management, no material legal proceedings are pending to which
we, or any of our properties, are subject. We record legal costs associated with loss contingencies as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

c. London Fire

In July 2006, we experienced a significant fire in a leased records and information management
facility in London, England that resuited in the complete destruction of the facility and its content. The
London Fire Brigade issued a report in which it was concluded that the fire resulted from human
agency, i.e., arson, and its report to the Home Office concluded that the fire resulted from a deliberate
act. The London Fire Brigade also concluded that the installed sprinkler system failed to control the
fire due to the primary fire pump being disabled prior to the fire and the standby fire pump being
disabled in the early stages of the fire by third-party contractors. We have received notices of claims
from customers or their subrogated insurance carriers under various theories of liabilities arising out of
lost data and/or records as a resuit of the fire. We deny any liability in respect of the London fire and
we have referred these claims to our primary warehouse legal liability insurer for an appropriate
response. Certain of the claims have also been settled for nominal amounts, typically one to two British
pounds sterling per carton, as specified in the contracts, which amounts have been or will be
reimbursed to us from our primary property insurer. On or about April 12, 2007, a firm of British
solicitors representing 31 customers and/or their subrogated insurers has filed a Claim Form in the
(U.K)) High Court of Justice, Queen’s Bench Division, seeking unspecified damages in excess of 15
British pounds sterling on account of the records belonging to those customers that were destroyed in
the fire. We have also been informed that, on or about April 20, 2007, another firm of British solicitors
representing 21 customers and/or their subrogated insurer also filed a Claim Form in the same court
seeking provisional damages of approximately 15,000 British pounds sterling on account of the records
belonging. to those customers that were destroyed in the fire. Both of those matters are being held in
abeyance by agreement between the claimants and the solicitors appointed by our primary warehouse
legal liability carrier and some of them have been settled for nominal amounts. However, many of
these claims, including larger ones, remain outstanding. On or about October 17, 2007, our primary
warehouse legal liability carrier, in the name of our subsidiary Iron Mountain (U.K.) Limited, filed a
Claim Form with the (U.K.) High Court of Justice, Queen’s Bench Division, Commercial Court, against
The Virgin Drinks Group Limited, a customer who had records destroyed in the fire, seeking a
declaration to the effect that our liability to that customer is limited to a maximum of one British
pound sterling per carton of lost records and, in any event, to a maximum of 500 British pound sterling
in the aggregate, in accordance with the parties’ contract. Detailed Particulars of Claim in respect of
that matter were filed and served on January 18, 2008. Finally, we have recently been served with a
counterclaim for 5 British pounds sterling by Sucre Export London Ltd., a customer which lost records
in the fire, in connection with a U.K. Small Claims Court action in which we are seeking approximately
3.5 British pounds sterling in unpaid charges that are not disputed by the customer. We have referred
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that matter as well to our primary warehouse legal liability insurer for a formal response. We deny any
liability to Sucre Export London Ltd. in respect of its Small Claims Court counterclaim.

We believe we carry adequate property and liability insurance. We do not expect that this event
will have a material impact to our consolidated results of operations or financial condition. Revenues
from this facility represented less than 1% of our consolidated enterprise revenues. As of December 31,
2006 and 2007, we had approximately $9,600 and $0, respectively, recorded as an insurance receivable
which is included in prepaid expenses and other in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. This
represents primarily the net book value of the property, plant and equipment associated with this
facility at the time of the incident and paid customer claims, net of $1,750 and $17,755 of property
insurance proceeds received through IME’s October 31 fiscal year end of 2006 and 2007, respectively.
We recorded approximately $12,927 to other expense (income), net for the year ended December 31,
2007 related to recoveries associated with settlement of the business interruption portion of our
insurance claim. We have received recoveries related to our property claim with our insurance carriers
that exceed the carrying value of such assets. We have recorded a gain on the disposal of property,
plant and equipment of $7,745 for the year ended December 31, 2007. We will utilize cash received
from our insurance carriers to fund capital expenditures and for general working capital needs.
Recoveries from the insurance carriers related to business personal property claims are reflected in our
statemnent of cash flows under proceeds from sales of property and equipment and other, net included
in investing activities section when received. Recoveries from the insurance carriers related to business
interruption claims are reflected in our statement of cash flows as a component of net income included
in the operating activities section when received. :

11. Related Party Transactions

We lease space to an affiliated company, Schooner Capital LLC (“Schooner™), for its corporate
headquarters located in Boston, Massachusetts. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, Schooner paid rent to us totaling $161, $167 and $168, respectively. We lease facilities from an
officer in the U.S. Our aggregate rental payment for such facilities during 2005, 2006 and 2007 was
$978, $1,113 and $1,048, respectively.

We have an agreement with Leo W. Pierce, Sr., our former Chairman Emeritus and the father of I.
Peter Pierce, our former director, that requires pension payments of $8 per month until his death. The
estimated remaining benefit is recorded in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets in the amount of $538 as of December 31, 2007.

In December 2005, IME made a $2,860 investment in a Polish joint venture in which one of our
directors has an indirect 20% interest.

12, 401(k) Plans

We have a defined contribution plan, which generally covers all non-union U.S. employees meeting
certain service requirements. Eligible employees may elect to defer from 1% to 25% of compensation
per pay period up to the amount allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, IME operates a
defined contribution plan, which is similar to the U.S.’s 401(k) Plan. We make matching contributions
based on the amount of an employee’s contribution in accordance with the plan documents. We have
expensed $6,737, $9,997 and $11,619 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Certain exhibits indicated below are incorporated by reference to documents we have filed with the
Commission. Each exhibit marked by a pound sign (#) is a management contract or compensatory
plan.

Exhibit Item

21 Agreement, dated July 12, 2003, between Hays plc and Iron Mountain Europe Limited
(portions of which have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment).
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003).

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Iron Mountain Incorporated, a Pennsylvania
corporation, and the Company, dated as of May 27, 2005. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 27, 2005).

31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended.
(Incorporated by réference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006).

3.2 Bylaws of the Company (as amended on December 7, 2007). (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 13, 2007).

33 Declaration of Trust of IM Capital Trust 1, dated as of December 10, 2001 among the
Company, The Bank of New York, The Bank of New York (Delaware) and John P. Lawrence,
as trustees. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement No. 333-75068,
filed with the Commission on December 13, 2001).

34 Certificate of Trust of IM Capital Trust 1. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Registration Statement No, 333-75008, filed with the Commission on December 13, 2001).

4.1 Indenture for 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011, dated April 26, 1999, by and among
the Company, certain of its subsidiaries and The Bank of New York, as trustee. {Incorporated
by reference to Iron Mountain/DE's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 11, 1999).

42 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 24, 2006, by and among the Company, the’
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.
{Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 28, 2006).

43 Indenture for 8%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2008, dated as of April 3, 2001, among the
Company, the Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee. {Incorporated
by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2001).

4.4 First Supplemental Indenture; dated as of April 3, 2001, among the Company, the Guarantors
named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001).

4.5 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 14, 2001, among the Company, the
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee. (Incorporated by reference to
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

4.6 Indenture for 7%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014, dated as of January 22, 2004, by and
among the Company, the Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11, 2006).
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47

48

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Senior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of December 30, 2002, among the Company, the
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee. (Incorporated by reference to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 30, 2002, among the Company, the
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee. (Incorporated by reference to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 20, 2003, among the Company, the
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York, as trustee. (Incorporated by reference to
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 17, 2006, by and among the Company, the
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 20, 2006).

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 16, 2006, by and among the Company,
the Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.
{Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 17,
2006).

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 19, 2007, by and among the Company, the
Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2007).

Amendment No. 1 to Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 23, 2007, by and
among the Company, the Guarantors named therein and The Bank of New York Trust
Company, N.A., as trustee. {Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 15, 2007, by and among Iron Mountain Nova
Scotia Funding Company, the Company and the other guarantors named therein and The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 23, 2007).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2007, between Iron Mountain Nova
Scotia Funding Company, the Company and the other guarantors named therein and the
Initial Purchasers named therein. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated March 23, 2007).

Form of stock certificate representing shares of Common Stock, $.01 par value per share, of
the Company. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated February 1, 2000).

Iron Mountain Incorporated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. (#) (Filed herewith).

Iron Mountain Incorporated 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended. (#) (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000).

Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended. (#) (Incorporated by
reference to Iron Mountain/DE’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 16, 1999).

Iron Mountain Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Second Amendment to the Iron Mountain Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan. (#)
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 1, 2006).
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10.7

10.8
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Stratify, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan. (#) (Filed herewith).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Amended and Restated
Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option
Agreement. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Amended and Restated Iron
Mountain Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Incentive Stock Option
Agreement. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1995 Stock Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Stock Option
Agreement. (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1997 Stock Option Plan Stock Option Agreement
(version 1). (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 1997 Stock Option Plan Stock Option Agreement
(version 2). (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement
(version 1). (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-X for the
year ended December 31, 2004).

Form of Iron Mountain Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement
(version 2). (#) (Incorporated by reference to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004).

Iron Mountain Incorporated 2002 Stock Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement, dated

May 24, 2007, by and between Iron Mountain Incorporated and Brian P. McKeon. (#)
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2007). -

Summary Description of Compensation Plan for Executive Officers. (#) (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006).

Iron Mountain Incorporated 2003 Senior Executive Incentive Program. (#) (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 5, 2005).

Amendment to the Iron Mountain Incorporated 2003 Senior Executive Incentive Program. (#)
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 1, 2006).
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10.21
10.22
10.23

10.24
10.25
10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

2007 Categories of Criteria under the 2003 Senior Executive Incentive Plan, as amended.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2007).

Iron Mountain Incorporated 2006 Senior Executive Incentive Program. (#) (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 1, 2006).

2007 Categories of Criteria under the 2006 Senior Executive Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2007).

Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors. (#) (Filed herewith).
Iron Mountain Incorporated Director Deferred Compensation Plan. (#) (Filed herewith).

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of june 12, 1997, by and
among the Company and certain stockholders of the Company. (#) (Incorporated by reference

" to Iron Mountain/DE’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997).

Master Lease and Security Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2001, between Iron Mountain
Statutory Trust—2001, as Lessor, and Iron Mountain Records Management, Inc., as Lessee.
{Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2001).

Amendment No. 1 to Master Lease and Security Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2001
between Iron Mountain Statutory Trust—2001, as Lessor, and Iron Mountain Records
Management, Inc., as Lessee. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Amendment to Master Lease and Security Agreement and Unconditional Guaranty, dated
March 15, 2002, between Iron Mountain Statutory Trust—2001, Iron Mountain Information
Management, Inc. and the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2602).

Unconditional Guaranty, dated as of May 22, 2001, from the Company, as Guarantor, to Iron
Mountain Statutory Trust—2001, as Lessor. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Subsidiary Guaranty, dated as of May 22, 2001, from certain subsidiaries of the Company as
guarantors, for the benefit of Iron Mountain Statutory Trust—2001 and consented to by Bank
of Nova Scotia. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 20602).

Guaranty Letter, dated December 31, 2002, to Scotiabanc, Inc. from Iron Mountain
Information Services, Inc., as Lessee and the Company as Guarantor. (Incorporated by reference
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Master Construction Agency Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2001, between Iron Mountain
Statutory Trust—2001, as Lessor, and Iron Mountain Records Management, Inc., as
Construction Agent. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).
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10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

12

21

23.1
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Credit Agreement, dated as of April 16, 2007, among the Company, Iron Mountain Canada
Corporation, Iron Mountain Nova Scotia Funding Company, Iron Mountain

Switzerland GmbH, the lenders party thereto, I.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Barclays Capital,
as Co-Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners, Barclays Bank PLC and Bank of America, N.A,,
as Co-Syndication Agents, Citizens Bank of Massachusetts, The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC,
The Bank of Nova Scotia and HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as Co-Documentation
Agents, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Toronto Branch, as Canadian Administrative Agent, and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 20, 2007).

Acknowledgment, Confirmation and Amendment of Guarantee or Security Document, dated
as of April 16 2007, among Iron Mountain Incorporated, certain of its subsidiaries as
guarantors and/or pledgors, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Toronto Branch, as Canadian
Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 20, 2007).

Contract of Employment with Iron Mountain, between Iron Mountain (UK) Ltd and Marc
Duale. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K darted April 20,
2007).

Amendment to Contract of Employment with Iron Mountain, dated as of 14th June 2006,
between Iron Mountain (UK) Ltd and Marc Duale. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 20, 2007).

Agreement of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance, dated as of January 28, 2005, by and
among the Company, The Bank of New York, as prior trustee, and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, relating to the Indenture for 8%4% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2011, dated as of April 26, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11, 2000).

Agreement of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance, dated as of January 28, 2005, by and
among the Company, The Bank of New York, as prior trustee, and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, relating to the Indenture for 8%% Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2013, dated as of April 3, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 11, 2006).

Agreement of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance, dated as of January 28, 2005, by and
among the Company, The Bank of New York, as prior trustee, and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, relating to the Senior Subordinated Indenture for
7%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015 and 6%% Senior Subordinated Notes due 20186,
dated as of December 30, 2002. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated July 11, 2006).

Statement re: Computation of Ratios. (Filed herewith).

Subsidiaries of the Company. (Filed herewith).

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (Iron Mountain Incorporated, Delaware). (Filed herewith).
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer. (Filed herewith).

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer. (Filed herewith).

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer. (Filed herewith).

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer. (Filed herewith).
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Transfer Agent, Trustee
and Registrar
The Bank of New York
877/897-6892
201/680-6685 (outside the LS.}
800/231-5469 {Hearing Impaired
- TDD Phone)
E-Mail: shrrelations@bnymellon.com
Website: www.bnymellon.com/
shareowner/isd

Address Shareholder inquiries to:

Iron Mountain, Inc,

c/o BNY Mellon Shareowners
Services

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City, NJ 07310

Send Certificates for Transfer and

Address Changes to:

Iron Mountain, Inc.

c/o BNY Mellon Shareowners
Services

P.O. Box 358015

Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8015

Corporate Headquarters
Iron Mountain Incorporated
745 Atlantic Avenue

Boston, MA o21m
800/935-6966
www.ironmountain.com

Common Stock Data

Traded: NYSE

Symbol: IRM

Beneficial Shareholders:
more than 79,000

Investor Relations

Stephen P. Golden

Vice President, Investor Relations
Iron Mountain Incorporated

745 Atlantic Avenue

Boston, MA o2m

617/535-2994
www.ironmountain.com

Annual Meeting Date

Iron Mountain Incorporated will
conduct its annual meeting of
shareholders on Thursday, June s,
2008, 10:00 A.M. at the offices of
Sullivan & Worcester LLP

One Post Office Square

Boston, MA 02109

Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

Deloitte & Touche LLP

200 Berkeley Street

Boston, MA o216

Counsel

Sullivan & Worcester LLP
One Post Office Square
Boston, MA 02109

Dividends

The only dividend we have paid on
our common stock during the last
two years was the stock dividend
paid in connection with the stock
split on December 2g, 2006.

Our Board currently intends to
retain future earnings, if any, for
the development of our business
and does not anticipate paying
cash dividends on our common
stock in the foreseeable future.
Any determinations by our Board
to pay cash dividends on our
common stock in the future will be
based primarily upon our financial
condition, results of operations
and business requirements. Our
credit facility contains provisions
permitting the payment of cash
dividends and stock repurchases
subject to certain limitations.

Other Information

We have included as Exhibit 31

to our Annual Report on Form

10-K for fiscal year 2007 filed

with the Securities and Exchange
Commission certificates of our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer certifying the
quality of our public disclosure, and
we have submitted to the New
York Stock Exchange a certificate
of our Chief Executive Qfficer certi-
fying that he is not aware of any
violation by the Company of New
York Stock Exchange corporate
governance listing standards.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made statements in this report that constitute "forward-looking
statements” as that term is defined in the Private Securitles Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 and other federal securities laws. These forward-looking
statements concern cur operations, economic performance, financial
condition, goals, beliefs, future growth strategies, investment objectives,
plans and current expectations. The forward-looking statements are subject
to various known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors. When
we use words such as “believes,” “expects,” "anticipates,” “estimates” or
similar expressions, we are making forward-locoking statements.

Although we believe that our forward-looking statements are based on
reasonable assumptions, our expected results may not be achieved, and
actual results may differ materially from our expectations. Important
factors that could cause actual results to differ from expectations include,
among others:

« the cost to comply with current and future legislation or regulation
relating to privacy issues;

- the impact of litigation that may arise in connection with incidents of
inadvertent disclosures of customers’ confidential information;

- changes in the price for our services relative to the cost of providing
such services;

= changes in customer preferences and demand for our services;

= in the various digital businesses in which we are engaged, the cost of
capital and technical requirements, demand for our services, markets for
our services, or competition for customers;

+ our ability or inability to complete acquisitions on satisfactory terms and
to integrate acquired companies efficiently;

+ the cost or potential liabilities associated with real estate necassary for
our business;

+ business partners upon whom we depend for technical assistance or
management and acquisition expertise outside the U.5.;

+ changes in the paolitical and economic eavironments in the countries in
which our international subsidiaries operate;

+ claims that our technology viclates the intellectual property rights of a
third party; and

+ other trends in competitive or econemic conditions affecting our
financial condition or results of cperations not presentty contemplated.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements except as statements
of cur present intentions and of our present expectations, which may
or may not occur. You should read these cautionary statements as being
applicable to all forward-looking staterments wherever they appear. Except
as required by law, we undertake no obligation to release publicly the
result of any revision to these forward-looking statements that may
be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reftect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readers are also urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclosures we have made in this
document, as well as our other periodic reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
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OPERATIONAL LOCATIONS

PHYSICAL BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Asia Pacific
Australia
China

Hong Kong-5AR
India
Indonesia
Malaysia
New Zeatand
Singapore

Sri Lanka
Taiwan

Europe
Austria
Belgium
Czech Republic
Denmark
England
France
Germany
Hungary
Italy
Netherlands

DIGITAL SOLUTIONS DEPLOYED

Africa
Algeria
Angola
Cameroon
Chad
Congo
Egypt

Equatorial Guinea

Gabon
Nigeria
South Africa

Asia

Azerbaijan
China

Cyprus

Hong Kong-SAR
India

Indonesia

Israel

Japan

South Korea
Kuwait
Malaysia
Oman
Pakistan
Philippines
Qatar

Saudi Arabia
Singapore
Taiwan
Thailand
Turkey
United Arab Emirates
Viet Nam
Yemen

Europe

Austria
Belgium
Croatia

Czech Repubiic
Denmark

[As of 12/3v/07)

Norway

Northern Ireland
Poland

Scotland

Turkey

Republic of Ireland
Romania

Russia

Slovak Republic
Spain

Estonia
Finland
France
Germany
Creece
Hungary
Republic of Ireland
Italy
Lithuania
Luxembourg
Montenegro
The Netherlands
Norway
Poland
Portugal
Romania
Russia
Slovakia
Slovenia
Spain
Sweden

Latin America
Argentina
Brazil

Chile

Mexico

Peru

North America
Canada
United States

Switzerland
United Kingdom

North America
Canada

Costa Rica
Dominican Republic
Mexico

United States
Virgin Islands (US)

Oceania
Australia
New Zealand

South America
Argentina
Brazil

Chile

Ecuador
Venezuela
Columbia
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